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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”)
of China Healthwise Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), | present to you the annual results of
the Company and the Group for the nine months ended 31 December
2019.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Unit
1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road
Cenfral, Hong Kong and the telephone and facsimile numbers of the
Company are (852) 2268 8248 and (852) 2548 5575.

RESULTS

The Board announced on 2 December 2019 that the financial

year end date of the Group had been changed from 31 March to
31 December.

The above change was fo align with the financial year end date
of the Company’s substantial shareholder which have a significant
influence over the Company and whose accounts are fo be closed af
the financial year end date of 31 December. The Board considers that
this change will minimise the resources, such as audit fee, applied for
the preparation of the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group arising from the difference in the financial year end dates of the
Company and its above mentioned substantial shareholder.

On account of this change of its financial year end date, the
Company hereby announces its annual results for the nine months
ended 31 December 2019 [the “Reporting Period” or “FP19"). For
the Reporting Period, the Group's turnover from confinuing operations
decreased by approximately (“approx.”) 31% to approx. HK$310
million, compared with approx. HK$452 million for the year ended
31 March 2019 (the "FY18/19" or "Corresponding Period”).

Gross profit margin from continuing operations for the Reporting Period
was approx. 28% compared to approx. 36% in the Corresponding
Period. Overall, loss affributable to owners of the Company was
approx. HK$124 million compared with HK$9O5 million in the
Corresponding Period. The Direcfors do not recommend the payment
of any dividend for the nine months ended 31 December 2019
(FY18/19: Nil).
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, revenue from continuing operations
decreased due to (1] the decrease in sales from consumer electronic
products segment by approximately HK$42 million as a result of the
disposal of the segment during the Reporting Period; (2) the decrease
in revenue from the Chinese health product segment from HK$155
million in FY 18/19 to HK$89 million in the Reporting Period; and (3)
the investment in financial instruments segment recognised realised loss
of Approx. HK$2 million (FY18/19: redlised gain of QPprox. HK$43

million) during the Reporting Period.

The Group recorded an increase in loss for the nine months ended
31 December 2019 as compared to the year ended 31 March
2019. The increase in loss was mainly due fo (i) significant increase in
impairment loss and fair value loss on financial instruments; [ii) loss on
disposal of subsidiaries engaged in the consumer electronic products
business; (iii) an increase in loans receivable provision of the money
lending segment of the Group.

Chinese Health Products

Chinese health products business engaged in the sales of Chinese
and other pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng and
dried seafood products fo wholesaler and retailer. Nam Pei Hong Sum
Yung Drugs Company Limited, one of our subsidiaries, engages in the
business of trading and retail of “Sum Yung” (2% ) and dried seafood
products since 1977 and the brand name of “Nam Pei Hong" (3t
77) is highly recognised in Hong Kong and Southern Mainland China.

During the Reporting Period, this segment had contributed revenue of
approx. HK$89 million (FY18/19: HK$155 million) and segment
loss of approx. HK$18 million (inc|udmg the impairment losses of non-
million) (FY18/19: segment
profit of approximately HK$2 million). As at 31 December 2019, there
1 (31 March 2019

current assets of approximately HK$11

were 1 11] refail shops of Nam Pei Hong.

OBM Toy

The strengthened and continued recovery of the North American market
has posifively impacted the sales of our Own Brand Manufacturing
("OBM") business. Kid Galaxy has recorded an increase in sales by
approximately 10% overall due to the much improved market condition
in the United States and the favorable market respond to our new line
of products. Sales for the nine months ended 31 December 2019
increased approx. 10% from approx. HK$184 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019 to approx. HK$202 million for the nine
months ended 31 December 2019
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The sales increase was mainly due to reducing prices and lowering
margins in order to enlarge deliveries to North America’s largest
membership only retail warehouse club, largest discount retail chain
stores as well as the largest online retailer, accounting for approx. 96%
of the segment turnover (FY18,/19: 94%).

For the nine months ended 31 December 2019, North America
remained our major destination for the Group’s OBM toys, with
shipments amounting to approx. HK$195 million compared to
HK$173 million for year ended 31 March 2019, accounted for
approx. 63% (FY18/19: 38%) of the Group's total revenue from
continuing operations.

In view of the increased OBM foy sales mainly in the United States of
America, account receivables increased from approx. HK$31 million
as at 31 March 2019 to approx. HK$34 million as at 31 December
2019.

Money Lending

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s money lending business
generated interest income on loans amounting to approximately
HK$21 million (FY18/19: HK$23 million), and reported a segment
profit (before taxation) of approximately HK$2 million (FY18/19:
HK$8 million). The average monthly outstanding balance of loans
receivables was approximately HK$188 million (FY18/19: HK$221
million). During the Reporting Period, the Group granted new loans in
the aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$123 million to
5 customers. The Group's customers made drawings in the aggregate
principo\ amount of HK$268 million from the existing and new loans,
and repaid HK$ 115 million fo the Group. At the end of the Reporting
Period, the directors assessed the collectability of the loans receivable.
Although there was no objective evidence that the Group would not be
able to collect ifs loans receivable, an allowance for expected credit
losses on loans receivable of approximately HK$11 million (31 March
2019: HK$5 million) was recognised based on a valuation prepared
by an independent professional valuer. Such allowance for expected
credit losses was made in accordance with the new impairment model
of HKFRS @ Financial Instruments and had no effect on the Group's
cashflow.
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

Investment in Financial Instruments

During the Reporting Period, the Group's investment in financial
instruments business generated dividend income and realised loss on
sale of financial instruments amounting to net loss of approximately
HK$2 million (FY18/19: gain of HK$43 million), and reported a
segment loss of approximately HK$61 million (FY18/19: HK$2
million) including i) a loss of approximately HK$58 million (FY18/19:
HK$43 million) arising on change in fair value of financial assets af
fair value through profit or loss; and [ii) a realised loss of approximately
HK$3 million (FY18/19: redlised gain of HK$43 million) by disposal

of certain listed equities.

Movements in the listed equities held by the Group during the nine
months ended 31 December 2019 and the year ended 31 March

2019 are as follows:

REEMTA

REEHE A EERESRTAXBELERE
WARHESRTAELACREAEBR BEF
BHOR—ABEL () —NBEHFE: K&
ONT=g&8ET) kEGIMEROT—8
BEL(—)//-NAUBRFE:—BEEL) &
BIEATFEFABRSZEREEZATERD
EEZEBEBRORETNEEEL (—//—AHK
FE-OT=g8%T)  Rli)HEET EMEA
ZEEBRBROZABEL () —hBERF
E:EE#BRKENT=a8%81T) -

HE-T-AF+-A=+—BULNBAREE
SE-AFSAST-ALEE ARERAN
ETRARHIT ¢

Audited Audited

REZX LEZ

31 December 31 March

2019 2019

—E-hEF —E-hF

+=B=+—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At beginning of period/year ), F4) 228,022 232,722
Acquisitions Lodi 710 196,304
Loss arising on change in fair value N EEBEL 2 EIE (58,094) (42,509
Disposals HE& (32,057) (158,495)
At end of period/year HAR FER 138,581 228,022
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Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the

Group at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

R-B-NAF+-_A=+—R AKEERBAENE

TEAEB L MRAFENT :

Fair value
Fair value as gain/(loss)
compared fo recognised
the consolidated during the
Cost of Number of fofal assefs of nine months
shares af shares held af Fair value at the Group af ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
REZE
RZZ-1E =t Sk
+=ZA=+-B tZA=t-A
RZB-hE  RZB-hF  RIB-AF ATEEAEE LAEABER
+ZA=+-B +tZA=t-B +t=B=t-H GREERME ZRYE
Name of Hong Kong listed equities Principal activities HRGRE  HERRHHUA HATE 2hE® s/ (58
ERETRAZE TEEH HK$'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER
IDG Energy Investment Limited (stock code: 650)  Upstream oil and gas business, LNG liquefaction and
IDGERRERRDE* DG Energy exporting, ING importing, processing and scles,
Investment Limited) ( B3 45 : 650) and NG logistics services, as well as investment
in energy-elated and other industry and business
EHRRER BAXRAR ([ING])RICRED INGED
MIRBERINGHRRE URREFRRREMLTER
£BNRE 44,000 40,000 40,400 7% 5,200)
Global Mastermind Capital Limited Investment in listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong and
[stock code: 905) in the PRC
BRABREFR A R*(Global Mastermind RERBERTEMNLTRELTAR
Capital Limited) (B 13 : 905) 87,975 195,560 18,306 3% (21,310)
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited Provision of financial services, including securifies brokerage,
[stock code: 376) wealth management and investment, corporate finance
ZREREMERAT (RHBRE:376) consultancy, ESOP (Employee Stock Ownership Plan)
administration, and investment research.
RESBER ER5EL WEEERRE
PERERN BIBRHAUERRRERR - 36,486 7,526 26,868 4% 8,880)
*EHRAES
FEEEREZRERAT —TNFR 9



Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the

Group at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

ERBELTBRAFHBOT

RZBE-NF=ZA=+—RB AEEFAENHET

Fair value as
compared fo Fair value
the consolidated gain/[loss)|
Cost of Number of fotal assefs of  recognised during
shares af shares held of Fair volue of the Group of  the year ended
31-Mar19 31 Mar 19 31 Mar 19 31 Mar 19 31 Mar 19
REZE
RIE-NE ZT-hEF
=A=t-H =ZA=1+-8
RZE-NE RZE-NE RZE-NE ATHEEFRE IHEEEBR
ZA=+-8#8 ZA=t-H ZA=t-HH GHEEEEEZ ZRATHE
Name of Hong Kong listed eques Principal activifies RARE  HEHRHEE R¥E pE bE/ (BR)
BELTRASR TEER HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T & FhEr T
IDG Energy Invesiment Limited stock code: 650) Upsiream oil and gas business, ING liquefaction and
IDCELRREBRAA* (DG Energy exporfing, ING importing, processing and sales,
Invesiment Limited) (B3 %55 : 650) and ING logisfics services, as well as related
energy investment fund manogement
EHERER RICRAR(ING)) RILRLD INGER -
MIRHFERINGHRRE ARABEEREESER 44,000 40,000 45,600 7% 1,600
Global Mastermind Capital Limited Invesiment in listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong and
[stock code: 903 in the PRC
R BB AR A 7] *(Global Mastermind REREARPEN LA RFELTAR
Capital Limited) ( B 13 1£35 : 905) 87,975 195,500 38,905 6% [17,791)
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited Provision of financicl services, including securities brokerage,
[stock code: 376 wealh management and invesiment, corporate finonce
EReREARRAR (RHRSR: 3706) consultancy, ESOP [Employee Stock Ownership Plan)
administration, and investment research.
RESBERY DEEFEL HEERRRE.
PEREFARE B IRRHEERRREWE - 36,486 7,526 35,748 5% 1615
* EHER
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The Group had made investments with a short to long ferm perspective
with the objective of making capital gain as well as income from
dividend. The Group invested in a diversified portfolio of listed equity
securities in various industries. The directors believe that the future
performance of the Hong Kong listed equities held by the Group is
largely affected by economic factors, investor sentiment, demand and
supply balance of an investee company's shares and fundamentals
of an investee company, such as investee company’s news, business
fundamentals and development, financial performance and future
prospects. Accordingly, the directors closely monitor the above factors,
particularly the fundamentals of each individual investee company in
the Group's equity portfolio, and proactively adjust the Group's equity
portfolio mix in order to improve ifs performance.

Consumer Electronic Products

During the Reporting Period, the consumer electronic products had not
contributed any revenue (FY18/19: HK$42 million) and had recorded
a segment loss of HK$22 million (FY18/19: HK$16 million). Such
decrease in revenue and confinuing loss was mainly attributable fo the
expiry of the supply contract with Haier in December 2017.

Given the continuous loss-making position of this segment with
net liabilities in recent financial periods, and the difficulties and
uncerfainties faced by the consumer electronic products business, the
Company has disposed of this segment during the Reporting Period on
27 October 2019. It is considered that such disposal will enable the
Group tfo improve its financial position and eliminate any uncertainty
arising from the consumer electronic products business with an aim
fo stabilising the future financial performance of the Group. Defails of
which are set out in the Company's announcement dated 27 October

2019.
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

PLANS AND PROSPECTS

Chinese Health Products

In view of the increasing awareness in health and the aging of
population in Hong Kong, demand for health care products, especially
"Sum Yung” (2E) and dried seafood in Hong
Kong has grown steadily in recent years.

Chinese medicine,

As a result of the local social unrest since June 2019 and the recent
Coronoavirus outbreak globally, the number of tourists visiting Hong
Kong has reduced which negatively impact the retail market of Hong
Kong. At the same fime, the local demand on Chinese Healthcare
products decreased as well during the Reporting Period.

Despite the difficult business environment on the current refail market, the
Group will continue to invest in the health care business and to develop
its retail business of “Sum Yung" (2% ) dried seafood products and
other healthy food products in Hong Kong with an aim to broaden
its revenue base especially to the youth generation and middle class
consumers. The Group expects the number of fourists fo Hong Kong
will rebounce as soon as the situation in relation to the Coronavirus
becomes sfable to have a positive future impact on the retail market of
Hong Kong and the Group's performance on Chinese health products.

OBM Toys

Kid Galaxy has started gefting commitments from our current major
customers for 2020. We are in hope of keeping the similar amount
of business with some of our first tier customers like Walmart, Sam's
Club, Costco & Tractor Supply. However, with the global outbreak of
the Coronavirus, Kid Galaxy will lower our sales forecasts for 2020.
Although it is still too early to predict the full impact of the crisis on our
business, the Coronavirus outbreak unfortunately already starfed hurting
our first quarter business in 2020.

Kid Galaxy is reliant on China for its manufacturing heavily. With the
affect of the Coronavirus, our Chinese vendors may open for business,
but production lines are not necessarily running in full capacity. The
Coronavirus, therefore, has the potential to disrupt our supply chain.
Fortunately, we had started shifing some of the production from our
Chinese suppliers to an Indonesia manufacturer in 2019. With this
change, Kid Galaxy does not need to 100% count on their supplies
from China.

Another positive change, we are partnering with a major third party
on-line reseller in 2020 fo increase our on-line sales.
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Money Lending

Despite certain uncertainties in the global economy such as the
tightening of US-China frade relationship, the demand for money
lending business remain strong during the Reporting Period and the
Croup's loans receivables together with accrued interest receivables
increased slightly to HK$264 million (31 March 2019: HK$261
million). The Group expect the business environment for money lending
to be difficult given the current Coronavirus outbreak because many
economic activities could not be carried out normally. The Group will
be more cautious by strengthening ifs credit policy and risk control

policy.

Investment in financial instruments

The Group will closely monitor various factors such as global economy,
investment sentiment and fundamentals of investors and their future
prospects and protectively adjust our porffolio in order to improve our
performance. The Group will change our equity portfolio mix from fime
to time and realise the equities held by the Group info cash as and
when appropriate.

Business Portfolio Management

The current business strategies of the Group with an aim to achieve
the best use of its resources and improve its overall performance
and portfolio diversification have been confinuously evaluated. The
Company has been actively looking to diversify the revenue sources
of the Group in order to create shareholders’ value through making
investments and/or acquiring business or projects that have promising
outlooks and prospects.
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's cash and bank balances
were approx. HK$55 million (31 March 2019: HK$55 million). The
Group's total bank borrowings and convertible loan notes were approx.
HK$19 million (31 March 2019: HK$13 million) and HK$110
million (31 March 2019: HK$101 million], respectively. Gearing
ratio, calculated as the total borrowings divided by shareholders’
equity was approx. 39% as at 31 December 2019 (31 March 2019:
29%). As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded fotal current
assets of approx. HK$545 million (31 March 2019: HK$588 million)
and total current liabilities of approx. HK$264 million (31 March
2019: HK$199 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the total current assets by the current liabilities, was
approx. 206% (31 March 2019: 295%). The Group recorded a
decrease in shareholders fund from approx. HK$393 million as at
31 March 2019 to a net asset position of approx. HK$327 million
as at 31 December 2019. The decrease was mainly due fo shares
repurchased by the Company and the operating loss of the Group
during the Reporting Period.

APPRECIATION

In conclusion, | would like to sincerely thank my fellow Board members
and senior management, and all the employees for their contribution
and dedications to the Group, which enabled us to overcome the
challenges encountered during the Year. My appreciations go to our
invesfors, customers, financiers and suppliers for their support to the
Group during the past year.

Lei Hong Wai

Chairman and Executive Director

20 March 2020
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MARKET REVIEW

For the nine months ended 31 December 2019 [the "Reporting
Period” or “FP19"), North America remained one of our major export
destination for the Group's foy products, with shipments amounting to
approx. HK$195 million compared to approx. HK$173 million for
the year ended 31 March 2019 (the "FY18/19" or "Corresponding
Period”), accounted for approx. 63% [FY18/19: 38%) of the Group's
total revenue. The increase in dollar term sales in North America and
Canada were mainly affributable to the higher OBM orders. Mainland
China and Hong Kong account for approx. HK$ 111 million compared
to approx. HK$271 million in FY18/19, accounted for approx. 35%
(FY18/19: 60%) of the Group's revenue. The decrease in sales in
Mainland China and Hong Kong was mainly due to decrease in sales
of consumer electronic products segments following the contract expiry
with Haier in December 2017. Revenue to Europe were approx.
HK$4 million as compared with approx. HK$6 million in FY18/19,
accounted for approx. 1% [FY18/19: 1%] of the Group's revenue.

Review of Operations
RO
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Review of Operations
EBOE

PRODUCT REVIEW

Chinese Health Products

During the Reporting Period, the Chinese health products segment
generated approx. HK$89 million in revenue and segment loss of
approx. HK$18 million compared with HK$155 million and segment
profit of HK$2 million respectively in FY18/19. As at 31 December
2019, there were 11 (31 March 2019: 11) refail shops of Nam Pei
Hong.

OBM Toys

The OBM toys segment recorded an increase in revenue from approx.
HK$184 million in FY18/19 to approx. HK$202 million in the
Reporting Period, accounting for approx. 10% of the Group's revenue
from confinuing operations. The increase in revenue from the OBM Toys
segment was affributable fo the much improved market condition in
the United States and the favorable market respond to our new line of
products.

Money Lending

During the Reporting Period, the money lending segment generated
interest income on loans amounting to approx. HK$21 million
(FY18/19: HK$23 million) and reported a segment profit of approx.
HK$2 million (FY18/19: HK$8 million).
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Investment in Financial Instruments

During the Reporting Period, the Group's investment in financial
instruments business reported segment realised loss net of dividend
income of approximately HK$2 million (FY18/19: segment revenue
HK$43 million) and segment loss of approximately HK$61 million
(FY18/19: HK$2 million) which mainly included (i) a loss of
approximately HK$58 million (FY18/19: HK$43 million) arising on
change in fair value of financial assets af fair value through profit or
loss and impairment loss on available for sale investment; and (i) a
realised loss of approximately HK$3 million (FY18,/19: HK$43 million)

from disposal of certain listed equities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group developed its portfolio fo
10 (FY18/19: 15) Hong Kong listed equities with an aggregate
acquisition cost of approximately HK$1 million (FY18/19: HK$196

million).

Revenue by Product Type/Business

Review of Operations
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Review of Operations
EBOE

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approx. 120 employees
and contract workers based in Hong Kong headquarters, Macau office
and the U.S. sales office. The number of employees of the Group
varies from time to time depending on production needs and they are
remunerated based on indusiry practices.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like 1o take this opportunity to express
my sincere grafitude to all our longterm business partners for their
continuous support over the past year. | would also like to extend my
appreciation fo our group management and staff for their effort and
dedication, despite another challenging year we were facing.

Lei Hong Wai

Chairman and Executive Director

20 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a decrease in revenue
from continuing operations for approx. 31% from approx. HK$452
million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to approx. HK$310 million
for the nine months ended 31 December 2019. The decrease was
due to (1) the disposal of consumer electronic products segment during
the Reporting Period which generated approximately HK$42 million in
FY18/19; (2) the decrease in revenue from sales the Chinese health
produd segment from HK$155 million in FY18/19 to HK$89 million
in the Reporting Period; and (3] the investment in financial instruments
segment recognised realised loss of approx. HK$2 million (FY18/19:
realised gain of approx. HK$43 million) during the Reporting Period.

Cost of goods sold ["COGS") from continuing operations decreased by
approx. 23% compared to FY18/19. The decrease was affributable o
the corresponding decrease in revenue as mentioned above during the
Reporting Period. The COGS were approx. HK$222 million in FP1Q
compared with approx. HK$287 million in FY18/19.

The gross profit decreased to approx. HK$88 million for the Reporting
Period versus approx. HK$165 million in FY18/19. Gross profit
margin decreased to approx. 28% (FY18/19: 36%) because of the
higher gross profit margin confributed from the investment in financial
instruments segment in FY18/19.

Other income, gains and losses, net from continuing operations for the
nine months ended 31 December 2019 amounted to loss of approx.
HK$82 million, resulting in an increase of approx. 74% as compared
with the Corresponding Period (FY18/19: loss of HK$47 million).
Other income, gains and losses, net mainly included (1) fair value loss
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$58 million
(FY18/19: HK$43 million); (2) impairment loss on loans receivable
of HK$6 million (FY18/19: HK$5 million); and (3) loss on disposal
of subsidiaries of HK$ 14 million (FY18/19: Nil) during the Reporting
Period.

Selling and distribution expenses from continuing operations for the
nine months ended 31 December 2019 decreased to approx. HK$59
million, representing a decrease of approx. 32% against approx.
HK$87 million in the Corresponding Period. The decrease in selling
and distribution expenses was in line with the decrease in revenue
during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTEBHIRR S

Gross Profit Ratio
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For the period from 1 April 2019 fto 31 December 2019 and
for the year ended 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018, and
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General and Administrative expenses from continuing operations for the
nine months ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approx. HK$42
million, resulting in a decrease of approx. 49% as compared with the
previous year (FY18/19: HK$82 million) which was in line with the
decrease in revenue and decrease in the marketing expenses in the
Chinese health products segment.

The goodwill of approx. HK$1 million was written down in the
Reporting Period. The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating
units ["CGU") of the Chinese health products business has been
defermined from value in use calculations by an independent third
party valuer based on cash flow projections from formally approved
budgets covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the fiveryear
period are extrapolated using an esfimated weighted average growth
rate of 3% (FY18/19: 2%), which does not exceed the longterm
growth rate for the industry in the corresponding country. Management
reassessed the recoverable amount of the CGU of the Chinese health
products business as at 31 December 2019 by reference to the
discounted cash flow calculations. As at 31 December 2019, the
value in use of the CGU of the Chinese health products business was
approximately HK$39 million which is lower than the carrying amount
of approximately HK$51 million. Under the circumstance that the
Chinese health products business record losses in the Reporting Period,
management was of the opinion that an impairment loss for goodwill of
HK$1 million should be recognised. An additional impairment loss of
HK$5 million was allocated to intangible assets and HK$6 million was
allocated to rightofuse asses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THBRR A

BERRFECLEXBIRERATZEELAA
BERERER HEMNS B EREEETRASD
HEORITEE RO—TLEEET H -/
—hFRFERHONLBEET-

Finance costs from continuing operations incurred mainly for convertible
loan notes, interest on lease and bank borrowing for the OBM toys
segment during the Reporting Period was approx. HK$19 million as
compared with approx. HK$Q million in FY18/19

Al in all, the Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of — #B3EM & - A& B NS M5 IR G EE
approx. HK$124 million in the Reporting Period compared with ,n’] BoFHEEELT MR-/ —MEEF
approx. HK$95 million in FY18/19 BRIBHONTHEEBT
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RESULT OF DISCONTINUED OPERATION

loss for the year from discontinued operation in FY18/19 amounted
to HK$35 million, which represents (1) the results of the OEM Toys
segment for the period from 1 April 2018 to 30 January 2019, being
the date on which the companies in the OEM Toys segment ceased tfo
be subsidiaries of the Company; and (2] gain on disposal of the OEM
Toys segment of HK$ 12 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THBRR A

GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2019, the non-current assefs decreased approx.
50% 1o approx. HK$54 million compare with approx. HK$ 109 million
in the previous year. The decrease in non-current assets was mainly
due 1o (1) the fair value loss on non-current financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$21 million during the Reporting Period;
(2) certain non-current loan receivables as at 31 March 2019 had
become current as at 31 December 2019; and (3) the impairment on
goodwill and intangible assets of HK$6 million during the Reporting
Period.

Management placed much emphasis on inventory control and will
only authorise purchases in line with sales orders. The slight decrease
in inventories of approx. 4% compared to the Corresponding Period,
value of inventories decrease from approx. HK$72 million as at
31 March 2019 to approx. HK$69 million as at 31 December 2019.
Inventories turnover days from continuing operations were 87 days
compared with 89 days in the Corresponding Period.
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The trade receivables slightly decrease of approx. 5% as at
31 December 2019 to approx. HK$39 million, compared with
approx. HK$41 million as at 31 March 2019. Debtor turnover days
from continuing operations were 36 days in FP19 compared with 42
days in FY18/19. The Management regularly evaluates the Group's
cusfomers, assesses their known financial position and the credit risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash and bank balance as at 31 December 2019 were approx.
HK$55 million, compared with approx. HK$55 million as at 31 March
2019. The Group dealt with different revenue and expenditure
currencies during the Reporting Period such as HK$, US$ and RMB.

Trade payables, other payable and accrued charges recorded a
decrease against the Corresponding Period. Trade payables, other
payables and accrued charges were approx. HK$118 million as at
31 December 2019 compared with approx. HK$92 million as at
31 March 2019. The trade payables mainly consisted of payables
relafing to material purchases and the frading products. During the
Reporting Period, creditor tumnover days from confinuing operations
increased to 85 days from 59 days at the end of the previous year.

Borrowings and convertible loan notes increased to approx. HK$129
million as at 31 December 2019 from approx. HK$ 114 million as at
31 March 2019, mainly atfributable fo the interests accrued on the
convertible loan during the Reporting Period.

Debtor Turnover Days
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THBRR A

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had fotal assets of HK$598
million which was financed by shareholders’ fund, payables and
borrowings. The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred cosfs
in HK$, US$ and RMB and did not have any related hedges for the
nine months ended 31 December 2019. No financial instrument was
used for hedging purpose. The Group adopted a prudent funding and
freasury policy and managed the fluctuation exposures of exchange
rate and inferest rate on specific transactions.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's borrowings were repayable on
demand or within one year. All borrowings were denominated in either
HK$ (bore interest at a fixed rate) or US$ [bore interest at floating rate).
As at 31 December 2019, the convertible loan notes issued by the
Company amounted to HK$ 110 million which bore inferest at 6% per
annum and will be matured within one year at their principal amount or
can be converted info ordinary shares of the Company af the holder’s
option at the fixed rate of HK$O.1
principal.

per share of the outstanding

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded fofal current assets
of approx. HK$545 million and total current liabilities of approx.
HK$264 million. The current rafio of the Group, calculated by dividing
the total current assefs by total current liabilities, was approx. 206%.
The Group recorded a decrease in shareholders’ funds from approx.
HK$393 million as at 31 March 2019 to approx. HK$327 million
as at 31 December 2019. The decrease was mainly due fo shares
repurchased by the Company and the operating loss of the Group
during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed herein, the Group did
not have any debt securities issued and outstanding, or authorised or
otherwise created but unissued, any term loans [secured, unsecured,
guaranteed or nof), any other borrowings or indebtedness in the
nature of borrowing including bank overdrafts and liabilities under
acceptances (other than normal trade bills) or acceptance credits,
any mortgages or charges, or other material contingent liabilities or
guarantee at the close of business on 31 December 2019. Foreign
currency amounts have been translated af the approx. exchange rates
prevailing at the close of business on 31 December 2019.

The Group's operation relied upon the support from suppliers and
financial institutions. Facilities and credit terms are provided on the
basis of which certain financial and operational undertakings are
complied with. On behalf of the Board, the Directors are of the opinion
that, affer taking info accounts the Group's internal resources and cash
flow from operations, the Group will have sufficient working copifo| to
satisfy its present requirements for the next twelve months from the date
of this report in the absence of unforeseen circumstances.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 26 September 2019, the Group disposed the entire issued share
capitals in its subsidiary, Notton Limited, af an aggregate consideration
of HK$1 resulting in a gain on disposal of approximately HK$4
million.

On 27 October 2019, the Group disposed the enfire issued share
capital in its subsidiary, Keytime Global limited, af a consideration of
HK$1 resulting in a loss on disposal of approximately HK$ 18 million.

Given the continuous loss-making position of the abovementioned
disposal groups with net liabilities in recent financial periods, the
Company considers that the abovementioned disposal will enable the
Group to improve its financial position and eliminate any uncerfainty
arising from the disposed business with an aim to stabilising the future
financial performance of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THE®RE ST

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncerfainties which may impact

the Group's financial conditions, results of operations or future

performance and how the Group to mitigate these risks is set out

below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete and

comprehensive statfement of all potential risks and uncertainties faced

by the Group, but rather those risks which the Group currently believes

may have a significant impact on the Group's performance and future

prospects.

Principal risks

ETEEB

Strategic risk
RS 1 [ P

Description
RE

Strategic risk is the risk that medium and
longterm profitability and/or reputation
of the Group could be adversely
impacted by the failure either to identify
or implement the correct strafegy, or fo
react appropriately to changes in the
business environment.

SRS 1 R B 2 R oK B 78 Bl 3K B B LE
REXBERRREIELEERE
M A& E P ERRBRFIRE R
HBEBER TN EZ B -
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Mitigating actions
FRIENE

e Exfensive investment management experience of
the Board.
EZgNRETEZLERR-

® Regularly review on strategy and performance of
each business unit.
EHmEA R RBEL 2 RS NKRR -

® Perform comprehensive due diligence on all
pofential acquisitions.

A BEBNBERETEAERES -



Principal risks

TERE

Economic risk

z«< ﬂi }_L |§M

Credit risk

=&
IZI/\

Management Discussion and Analysis

Description
b

Economic risk is the risk of any downturn
in economic conditions could impact the
Group's performance through higher bad
debts as a result of customers’ inability to
repay loans and lower asset values.
RERBRARRXEATFENEEES
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%"’%ﬂﬁ@ ﬂﬂ&é&ﬁ@ﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ
EAREERBNERZLE TTTRR -

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its
confractual obligations.
FERRBRAMEMIAZERPHX
HFEREBITHS ?’J,\E $%.7¥<
2O EE 2z Bk

THE®RE ST

Mitigating actions
iR

Regu|or|y review forward looking indicators to
identify economic conditions.

FE HAAR AT AU IE M S5 1R AR B AR B IR R -

Fully understand customers and carry out credit
quality assessment on cusfomers before granting
loans.
RELEFRMEETHREPYHEPETE
EEEME

Regularly monitor loans receivables and assess
for their recoverability.

EHERERER R ZEAORER -
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THE®RE ST

Principal risks

TERE

Liquidity risk

MENE & AR

Price risk

B E

Exchange risk

PEE 3¢ LR

28

Description

b

liquidity risk is the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due.
RBETRBRBAEERE HE|
B2 s B E Rk -

Price risk is the risk that changes in equity
prices will affect the Group's income and
the value of ifs holdings of equities.
EREBRABTELRE .Hﬁl?\&ﬁﬁﬁ
FEREEEZREZH AR

Exchange risk is the risk that changes
in foreign exchange rates will affect the
Group's income and the value of its
holdings of assets.

ELRERSS R E $$.”&7\&EF)’T
RHEEEBEZINEEXZE 2 ER
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Mitigating actions
FRIEN

Regu|or|\/ monitor |iquidity and statement of
financial position.
EHEERBE S MIHBARREK -

Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
commifmems

RBEERBER KA

Limit liquidity risk exposure by invesfing only in
securifies listed on stock exchanges.
FRERENRZMETEFRERDE R
[z

Ensure acceptable and appropriate finance
in place, or believed to be available before
commifting investment projects.
EEREBEMERECAIBAAIERLE

Regularly monitor equity portfolio to address any
portfolio issues prompily.
FEHERREREAS U EIEERMKRE
HE MR-

Spread price risk exposure by investing a
number of equities.

REZEARZEADBEBRERR -

Closely monitor statement of financial position
and cashflow exchange risk exposures and
where considered appropriate use of financial
instruments, such as forward exchange contracts,
foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, fo hedge this exchange risk.
EYERVBERARLIBESREL AR I
EERSERNBATERSRTA (MR
HASMNE & 49 - HME BAME SR BAF K 1558 ) ¥ b
AR



Principal risks

TERBE

People risk

AEER

legal and regulatory risk

AEREERR

Management Discussion and Analysis

Description
b

People risk is the risk of loss the services
of any direcfors, senior management and
other key personnel which could have a
material adverse effect on the Group's
businesses.

AFERBREMNES SREEAR
REMEBEABKIERBAIEHARE
BERGEXNEATNTZEZ AR -

legal and regulatory risk is the risk
that a breach of laws and regulations
could lead to litigation, investigations
or disputes, resuling in additional costs
being incurred, civil and/or criminal
proceedings and reputational damage.
ERNEERRRERERIOERA
BESI BUR A - A B A4 EE A FRIMK
X RER/IMNERFREEES
Z Rk o

Capital and Financial Risk

Our capital and financial risk management are sef out in the Nofe 41

and Note 42 to the financial statements.

THE®RE ST

Mitigating actions
R

® Provide competitive reward and benefit
packages that ensure our ability to affract and
refain the employees we need.
REABF N2 RBRBANFEBAERRNE
BB RS RBEMFEZAL

® FEnsure that the staff of the Group has the right
working environment to enable them to do the
best job possible and maximise their satisfaction
at work.
HMRASEEZEIFEECIERENSE
ITRZAAEMEFIEREAREIES
IWNIEREE-

=
=

* Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory environment and ensure that sufficient
resources being made available fo implement
any required changes.
EERERACEHNERIBRABZE
RENBREARELZE-

e Seek legal or other specialist advice as
appropriate.

BERSRERNHEMELALER -

BEXR B ER

HAIHE A N B 7 L b B TR A B TS R M A
41 KM EE42 -
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In June, July and December 2019, the Company repurchased a fofal of
676,900,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an aggregate price
of approximately HK$30 million on the Stock Exchange. As at the date
of this report, the 676,900,000 repurchased shares were cancelled.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

On 8 October 2018, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Heng Tai Finance Limited (the “Subscriber”), pursuant
fo which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe, and
the Company has conditionally agreed to issue a straight bond
(the “Bond") in an aggregate principal amount of HK$120 million.
On 22 November 2018, all the conditions precedent in relation
to the right to convert the principal amount (or any parf(s) thereof)
of the Bond into the ordinary shares of the Company at HK$O.1
each before the second (2nd) anniversary of the date of issue of the
Bond (the “Conversion Rights”) had been fulfilled. Accordingly, the
Conversion Rights attached to the Bond have become unconditional
and irrevocable. The net proceeds from the issue of the Bonds of
approximately HK$119.5 million which were intfended to be used for (i)
approximately HK$104.5 million on the money lending business; and
(i) approximately HK$15.0 million as general working capital and/or
future investment opportunities. As at 31 December 2019, all proceeds
were used up as infended. Details of the issue of the Bonds were
set out in the Company's announcements dafed 8 October 2018,
15 November 2018 and 22 November 2018 and the circular of the
Company dated 30 Ocfober 2018.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

Saved from those mentioned in this report, the Group did not have
any other significant investments or acquisitions or sales of subsidiaries
during the Reporing Period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognise the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of ifs businesses and the best inferest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully committed to doing so. The Board
believes that high standards of corporate governance provide a
framework and solid foundation for the Group fo manage business
risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability
and profect stakeholders” interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of
policy which provides guidance on the application of the corporate
governance principles on the Group, with reference to the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices [the “CG Code”) as sef ouf in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities [the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

and code A.6.7 which
are explained below, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
has complied with all code provisions as set out in the CG Code
throughout the nine months ended 31 December 2019.

Save for the deviation from code A.4.1

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific ferm, subject to re-election. Although
all independent non-executive directors have not been appointed
for a specific term, they will all refire at the annual general meeting
at least once every three years and will be eligible for reelection in
accordance with the CG Code. In the opinion of the Directors, the
refirement of each non-executive director at the annual general meeting
af least once every three years shall have the same effect of appoinfing
them with a specific term of three years. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the deviation from the code provision A.4.1 of the CG
Code is appropriate in such circumstance.

Corporate Governance Report
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CODE PROVISION A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. One non-executive director was absent from the
Company's annual general meeting held on 3 September 2019 due to
other business commitments.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the nine
months ended 31 December 2019. To ensure Directors’ dealings
in the securities of the Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in
accordance with the Model Code and securities code of the Company,
a Director is required fo notify the Chairman in writing and obtain a
written acknowledgement from the Chairman prior to any dealings in
the Securities.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for providing leadership and control of
the Company and monitoring the performance of the management,
approving the financial statements and annual budgefs. It focuses
on the formulation of business strategy, policy and control. Day-
to-day operations of the Company are delegated to the Execufive
Direcfors and senior management of the Group. The Board reviews
and approves key matters affecting the Company’s strategic policies,
finances and shareholders, such as financial statements, dividend
policy and major corporate activities. Decisions of the Board are
communicated to the Management through Executive Directors who
have attended Board meetings.

The Board currently comprises six Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. There is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship)
among members of the Board. Their names and brief biographies are
sef out on pages 55 to 57 of this Annual Report.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors are high calibre executives
with diversified indusiry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Company. One of the Independent Non-executive
Director possesses recognized professional qualifications in accounting.
All Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent judgement
on issues of strategy, performance, risk and people through their
confribution at Board meetings.

The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
a written annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the listing Rules. The Board considers that the three Independent
Non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board, are
independent in character and they also meet the independence
guidelines as sef out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board meetings are scheduled at approx. quarterly intervals, and
odditional meetings will be held when required. The Directors have
access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services
of the Company Secrefary of the Company. Independent professional
advice may be taken by the Directors as required. There were fifieen
Board meetings held during the nine months ended 31 December

2019.

All Directors are subject to refirement by rofation once every three
years and are subject fo re<election in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Execufive Officer of the
Group are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence
and proper checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the
business strategy and direction of the Company and has executive
responsibilities, provides leadership for the Board and ensures
proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of its
responsibilities. The Chief Executive Officer is accountable to the Board
for the overall implementation of the Company's strategies and the co-
ordination of overall business operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the fifle of Chief Executive Officer
up to the dafe of this annual report. In the absence of the Chief
Executive Officer, the duties of the Chief Executive Officer have been/
will confinue to be undertaken by other execufive members of the
Board, namely Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion, Mr. leung Alex, Ms. Lo
Ming Wan, Mr. Tse Chi Keung and Mr. Yuan Huixia, therefore, in
the opinion of the Directors, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer have been/will continue fo be properly segregated in
the absence of an officer carrying the fitle of Chief Executive Officer.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
fo oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees have been
posted on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website

and are available to shareholders upon request.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED/HELD

EEZET

EXECRU-EZEE WEZZES HM
REGLRERZES UEEARRARITEL
EH-ARAMEEZZEEHRERRA TR
REBRTI(F-EFZBEeREREDTE
EARRAABE LB FTEE - 5 AR 25K Al
HER -

Hjlﬁ/fﬁﬁgﬁﬁ}ﬂ%(

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the BEFRBE_T_TF+_ )EJ +—HIEAE
shareholders, the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee A B E - ﬁ%A BEZLZBEC FMNEESR
and Nomination Committee during the nine months ended REZEEEHRTHIAIIWMT
31 December 2019 are set out below:
2018/19
Annual
General
Remuneration Nomination Audit Meeting
Board Committee Committee Committee ("AGM")
“B-N\§/
-hWEE
REBERE
(TRFEBE
- FMzEES REZEE ENZES x&l)
Executive Directors TES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai (Chairman) THBRRE(ZE) 15/15 1/1 1/ - 1/1
Mr. Cheung Kowk Wai KBl S 4 6/6 S S S 0/0
Elion " ice Chairman) (B1Z5E)
Mr. Leung Alex REBRE 15/15 ~ = = 1/1
Ms. Lo Ming Wan YR L L 15/15 - - - 1/1
Mr. Tse Chi Keung HEBEE 15/15 ~ = = 1/1
Mr. Yuan Huixia REBLE 12/15 - - - 0/1
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Dico Yunfeng? BB KL 1/8 - - - 0/1
Independent Non-executive BUFHITES
Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen HEREE 12/15 1/1 1/1 2/2 1/1
Mr. Lai Hok Lim REELE 12/15 1/1 1/1 2/2 1/1
Mr. Lien Wai Hung BREELE 12/15 1/1 1/1 2/2 1/1
(1) Mr. Cheung Kowk Wai Elion was appointed as the Vice Chairman and (1) RZZE—hAF+A=-+/\B RERELLEERE

an Executive Director of the Company on 28 October 2019

[2) M. Dico Yunfeng resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 28 October 2019.

34 China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

RARFWEIEENRAITES

2) RZZT—AFT+AZ+NB AZBFEFER
REEAITEE



CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

To assist Directors” continuing professional development, the Company
recommends Direcfors fo affend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. During the nine months ended
31 December 2019, the Direcfors have participated in continuous
professional development programmes, such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A
record of the training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the Company.

The Direcfors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed fo participating any suitable fraining fo
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

According fo the records provided by the Directors to the Company
pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities during the
Reporting Period under review. The individual fraining record of each
Director for the nine months ended 31 December 2019 is summarised
below:

Directors’ duties and responsibilities/
Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws, Rules and Regulations
ESCRERBE tEER
E6 RAR BB 2B

Reading
materials
RS
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman)  FHERE (£/E) v
Mr. Cheung Kowk Wai Ellon  SREU{E & & 4
Vice Chairman) (BI£/E)
Mr. leung Alex REBLAE v
Ms. Lo Ming Wan BHRBPLLE v
Mr. Tse Chi Keung HEREE v
Mr. Yuan Huixia RIBESLE v
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Dico Yunfeng ABBEE v
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EEGLLE v
Mr. Lai Hok Lim RERELE 4
M. lien Wai Hung BEELE v
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Business related/Accounting/
Financial/Management or
other professional skills

ESC Y-S b Y
EESHMEER
Attending Attending
seminars/ Reading seminars/
conferences materials conferences
HERNE HERNE
&5 R B A R Lot
v/ v v
v/ v v
v/ v v
v/ v v
v/ v v
v/ v v
v/ v v
v/ v v
v/ v v
v/ v v
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS

The Company has established a formal and fransparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the nine months ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in Note 15(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

The details of the five individual with highest emoluments are sef out in
Note 15(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the members of senior management (excluding
directors) by band are set out in Note 15(c) to the consolidated

financial statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in 2005.
The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Llai Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Tok
Chuen and Mr. lien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. lei Hong
Wai. Mr. Lai Hok Lim is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
The function of the Remuneration Commitiee is to review and make
recommendations fo the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management. The fees of
the Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors) are defermined by the Board.

Al members of the Remunerafion Committee met one time during
the nine months ended 31 December 2019 for a proposal on
remuneration packages and employment contracts for submission fo the
Board for approval.

The Company adopts a competitive remuneration package for its
employees. Promotion and salary increments are assessed based on
a performance related basis in order to atiract, retain and motivate
talented executives/employees fo strive for future developments and
expansion of the Company. To provide the Company with a flexible
means of giving incentive to rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the executives/em ployees, a share
option scheme was adopted by the Company in 2012. Defails of
the 2012 share option scheme are set out on pages 50 to 53 of this
Annual Report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Company has established a Nomination Committee in 2006. The

Nomination Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-

executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen
and Mr. Llien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr. Lei
Hong Wai is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. The function
of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience] of the
Board on a regular basis and make recommendations fo the Board
regarding any proposed changes to complement the Group's corporate
strategy.

The Company adopted a policy on board diversity on 25 June 2013.
The review of effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy was conducted
by the Board and dll findings are satisfactory.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee  will
consider various aspects sef out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and
regional experience and length of service.

On selection of candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversH\/. All appointment will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates would bring to the Board.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee conducted an annual review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence pursuant to code
provision A.5.2 of the CG Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant fo the Llisting Rules, an Audit Committee was established on
14 March 2000. The Audit Committee currenily consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Lai Hok Lim and Mr. Lien Wai Hung. Mr. Wong Tak Chuen is
the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee has appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in financial matters.

By reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted by the Board since the
date of establishment. The principal activities of the Audit Committee
include the review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting
process (including the preparation of the interim and annual resulss,
internal controls and corporate governance).

During the nine months ended 31 December 2019, the Audit
Committee held two meetings including the review of the annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the interim results for
the six months ended 30 September 2019 before their submission fo
the Board and monitored the infegrity of such consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Audit Committee also had a private meefing
with the independent auditor without the presence of management to
discuss any area of concern. The aftendance of each member of the
Audit Committee is set out in the section headed “Number of Meetings
Attended/Held" of this Report.

The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed the key audit
matters defermined by the external auditor under Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing for the nine months ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code

provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, fraining and continuous professional
development of Direcfors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the nine months ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration
paid or payable fo the independent auditor for the audit services
amounted fo approx. HK$ 1,900,000 and non-audit services amounted
to approx. HK$252,000.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Llisting Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements as set out on pages /3 to 232. The sfatement of
the external auditor about its reporting responsibiliies on the financial
statements is set out on pages 67 to /2.

The Directors confirm that, 1o the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the
design and implementation of internal controls and risk management
which covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk
management of the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the
effectiveness of such internal controls and risk management. The Board
has delegated such responsibility to the management of the Company.
The management, under the supervision of the Board, has established
an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks faced by the Group.
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The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls and risk management
that are significant o the Group on an ongoing basis. The Audit
Committee also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of sfaff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function, as well as their training programmes and budgets.

(a) the process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant

risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group's
business and operations.

Risk Assessment

° Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criferia

developed by the management; and

e Considers the impact and consequence on the business
and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response

. Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk

assessment: and

e Defermines the risk management sirategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.
Risk Monitoring and Reporting

. Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate infernal confrol processes are in

place;

®  Revises the risk management sirategies and infernal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation;
and

e Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management

and the Board regularly.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

the main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper mainfenance
of accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information used within the business or for publication; and to
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss
or fraud.

an acknowledgement by the board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to manage rather

than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group
and endeavours to identify, control impact of the identified
risks and facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating
measures. The risk management and internal control systems of
the Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
missfatement or loss.

the process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company does not have an infernal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
intfernal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group's business. It was decided that the
Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing ifs effectiveness.
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The Board has engaged APAC Compliance Consultancy and
Infernal Control Services Limited as ifs risk management and
internal control review adviser (the “"Adviser’) to conduct the
annual review of the risk management and internal confrol
systems for the nine months ended 31 December 2019 and the
year ended 31 March 2019. Such review is conducted annually
and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope of
review was previously defermined and approved by the Board.
The Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement
fo the Audit Commitlee and management. The Board/Audit
Committee are of the view that there are no material internal
control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser
are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board
therefore considered that the risk management and infernal
control systems are effective and adequate.

the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure pofential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being mainfained until consistent and timely disclosure
are made in accordance with the Llisting Rules. The policy
regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information,
which includes:

e Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments;

e Designated persons and departments to determine further

escalation and disclosure as required; and

e Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.

The Board is satisfied that the internal confrol system in place covering

all material controls including financial, operational and compliance

confrols and risk management functions for the year under review and

up fo the date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective

and adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lo Ming Wan, is the Company Secretary of the Group and has
dayfoday knowledge of the Company's affairs. She reports to the
Chairman. Ms. Lo has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the nine months ended

31 December 2019.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 31 December 2018, the Company has approved and adopted a
new dividend policy. The Company considers the new dividend policy
creates flexibility on the Board in declaring the payments of dividends.

Under the new dividend policy, the Company does not have any
pre-determined dividend payout rafio. The declaration, payment, and
amount of dividends are subject to the Board's discrefion having regard
to the following factors:

[a)  the earnings, financial conditions, capital requirements and future
plans of the Group;

(b)  the shareholders’ inferests of the Company;
(c)  the economic outlook:

(d)  the confractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company fo ifs shareholders;

[e) the statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment of

dividends by the Company; and

() any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant fo the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange dfter each general meefing.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person
for election as a Director of the Company are available on the
Company's website (www.healthwisehk.com).

Corporate Governance Report
LETARE

RNAME

BRBLLIAAREEZARWE AAEBARAF
ZHBREH - RAETFEER - SXTHREDR
BE_ZT-NF+RA=+—HIEIERERXT
DR+ RN 2 HRERE -

IR B BUR

RZB-—NF+ZA=+—HB ARAFEHAEL
RN — IR A B BR - AR R R RF B BERA
RTEFEET BB 2EEME-

REBEFRBBE AR A I E A FREEE 2K
BHE-FEZER EKNEBEIHREFTEH
BRELZBATREE:

(o) AKEZEF FHAR  ERERKEREK

BE K
b) ARBRR 2R
(c) REEBIR:

(d) ARBREBREMEEZEHRR:
le] ARBRMBEZEEREERR: &

l EFeUERREHITMNEMREER

iR SRR

RRERRN G REN BRERAE LR E
NEAFR(BREERBRHESR)R2BIRE
R-RBLETHRA AERRRAS LIEZRR
AEBFENEBEEREDARR - RILBER
ENARANBERENERRRERTIERAR
A MR TR E

ARAAREREBATLEARARREENREFZEH
AR B4 B (www.healthwisehk.com) e

TREEREERARAE —TNAFH 43



Corporate Governance Report
LEETLRE

Procedures for shareholders to convene extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposal at general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies law [the “law”). However, shareholders are requested
to follow Article 72 of the Articles of Association (the “Arficles”) of
the Company. Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisiion of any
two or more members of the Company, or on the written requisition
of any one member which is a recognised clearing house, deposited
at the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than onetenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of vofing af
general meefings of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within
two months affer the deposit of such requisition. If the Board does not
within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly
fo convene the meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene the general meefing in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meefings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held affer the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
fo the Company:

Address: Unit 1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretfary)

Fax: (852) 2548 5575

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, nofice or sfatement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company highly values its relationship with its shareholders
and other stakeholders. It has put in place an effective corporate
communication system which provides transparent, regular and timely
public disclosures to ifs shareholders and other stakeholders. The main
features of the system are as follows:

e The Company maintains a corporate website (www.healthwisehk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Group, including
core business, financial reports, public announcements, circulars
and news of the Group, is disclosed. Shareholders can obtain
corporate communication electronically via the Company's
websife.

e The Company establishes and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders and other stakeholders through
annual reports, inferim reports and other publication.

e AGM provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The respective chairmen of the Board
and Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees (or in the
absence of the chairmen of such Committees, another member
of each Committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate)
will endeavor o be available to answer questions raised by
shareholders.
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e  Separafe resolutions are proposed at general meetings for each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

®  Defails of the proposed resolutions to be put forward at a general

meefing are, where necessary or appropriate, included in a
circular to the shareholders dispatched prior to the date of the
relevant general meeting.

e Al resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting are taken
by poll. The poll results are published on the Stock Exchange's
website at www.hkexnews.hk and on the Company's website in
accordance with Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

In addition, the Company has established the Investor Relations
Department with designated senior management for mainfaining regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast
of the Company's developments. Enquiries from shareholders and other
stakeholders are dealt with in an informative and fimely manner.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may write directly to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any enquiries.
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The Direcfors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the nine months ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding
and investment in financial instruments. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are sales of toys and Chinese health products, money
lending and investment in financial instruments.

An ono|\/sis of the Group's turnover and segment information is set out
in Note 7 fo the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the nine months ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 73 to 75.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the nine months ended
31 December 2019 is set out in Review of Operations and
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 15 to 30.

The Company has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company. The Company will
seek professional legal advice from legal advisers, where necessary, to
ensure fransactions and business to be performed by the Company are
in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the nine
months ended 31 December 2019 ([year ended 31 March 2019:
Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in page 78 and Note 35 fo the
financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
nine months ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 31 fo the

financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in Property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 16 to the financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are based on the salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions and  responsibilifies,
and individual performance of the Directors, senior management
and general stoff and are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committlee and are decided by the Board, having regard fo the
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The Company has adopted a share opfion scheme fo provide a
flexible and effective means of incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating fo eligible participants who contribute the success
of the Group. Details of the schemes are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” below and Note 32 to the financial
statements.

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the nine months

ended 31 December 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
11 June 2020 to Tuesday, 16 June 2020 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to defermine the enfiflement to aftend and vote at the 2020 AGM
of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 16 June 2020, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus
Limited, at Llevel 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 10 June 2020.

INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20 to the financial
statements.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial periods.
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TREAAEENBER AN BBEASHEZ

Period
from 1 April
2019 to Year ended 31 March
31 December BHEZA=+—HLEFE
2019 2019 2018 2017 2016
R-E-h#F
MA—HZ
—E-hEF
T=A
=+—BHH —E-NF ZE-)N\F ZE—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET TET FET FET
Revenue WA 309,969 451,615 561,190 319,221 352,799
loss before REFELEEK 2
income fax from RETSERIER
confinuing operations (126,327) 71,712 (113,415) (263,838) (94,044)
Income tax credit/expense) FTg&i#%,/ (FxX) (547) 1,067 (987) 1,220 106
Loss for the year FARBRHELEEH
from continuing operations 2 & 18 (126,874) (69,745) (114,402 (262,618) (93,938)
Loss for the year FARBEREEB
from discontinued < 1A
operations = (34,667) (83,535) - -
loss for the year FANERE (126,874) (104,412 (197,937) (262,618) (93,938)
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company ~ AR B ZHE A (124,345) (©5,316) (186,103) (241,937) (81,324)
Non-controlling inferests R (2,529 (@,0906) (17,834 (20,681) (12,614)
(126,874) (104,412 (197,937) (262,618) (93,938)
Total assets BEE 598,427 697,792 620,172 532,394 741,064
Total liabilities BEesE 271,754 304,352 346,022 241,753 179,054
Total equity AT 326,673 393,440 274,150 290,641 561,110
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES AR DIk

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 December 2019, in the opinion of the RZE—NF=A=+—AEK=ZZFT—NF+=A
directors, the Company has no disfributable reserves. =T —H EEREAQAWEAH D IREE-

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED BE -HEXEBE LHhES
SECURITIES

For the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019, the RZZE—-—AFHNA—HEZEZZFE—-—hLF+=H
Company repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange =-+—BEIf RAGIRERABERE S 5 LB

as follows: REVIE AT
Price per share
BRERK
No. of
ordinary Aggregate
share of consideration
HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest paid
Month of Month of BREE B
repurchase BEAHR cancellation dZHAR LERYA =4 BiE MXA2BRE
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
TR BT BT FAT
June 2019 —T-NEFERA July 2019 ZE-NFtEA 77,750 0.039 0.038 3,030
July 2019 “Z-NEFLA July - August 2019 ZZ—-NELENA 578,100 0.050 0.039 25,890
December 2019 ZE-NETZA January 2020 —T-TH—A 21,050 0.036 0.031 710
676,900 29,630
SHARE OPTION SCHEME BT E
On 14 September 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved = AR RN ZZE——F L A+ 0B HL/ERKE
the adoption of a share opfion scheme (“the Scheme”). Rt & ([5T81]) -
Details of the Scheme are as follows: B (A= RO
(1) Purpose (1) B®
To provide a flexible and effective means of incentivising, EENBEERERAANAREERZKY
rewarding, remunerating, compensating, to eligible participants EHERZ S ERSBERMTSE 2R
who confribute the success of the Group. RN Ko (5

50 China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



(2)

(3)

(4)

(%)

Eligible persons

Any person who is an employee (whether full time or part
time) holding salaried office or employment under a contract
of employment or service contract or terms of employment
[“Contract’) with the Group or is a Director (including executive
and non-executive directors) of the Group or any adviser,
consultant, agent, contractor, customer and supplier of any
member of the Group or any subsidiaries of the Company.

Maximum number of shares

The scheme mandate limit of the Scheme was refreshed by a
shareholders’ resolution passed in the annual general meetfing of
the Company held on 4 September 2018, details of which have
been sef out in the circular dafed 30 July 2018. Accordingly, the
maximum number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
is 852,130,836, representing 10% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at the date of the annual general
meefing.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and all outstanding options granted and vyet to be
exercised under any other Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from fime to time. No options may be granfed
under the Scheme and no options may be granted under any
other Schemes if this will result in the limit being exceeded.
Subject to specific approval of the shareholders of the Company,
the 10% limit may be refreshed with reference to the date of such
specific approval of the shareholders of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

Unless approved by shareholders, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each eligible person in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised during the periods to be defermined
and nofified by the Directors to the grantees at the time of making
offers fo grant share options to them provided that such periods
shall not exceed the period of ten years from the date of offer.

(2)

(3)

(4)

(%)
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(6) Acceptance of offers

Offers for the grant of share options must be accepted within 21
days after the offer date. Offers for grant of share options have fo
be accepted together with remittance in favour of the Company

of HK$1.00.

(7) Basis of determining the option exercise price

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Directors at its discretion, provided that it
shall not be less than the whichever is the highesf of (i) the c|osing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (i) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (i) the nominal value of the shares. Details
of the scheme are set out in the circular of the Company dated
29 August 2012.

(8) The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain in force unfil 14 September 2022,
being the date which falls ten years after the date of adoption of
the Scheme.

Details of the share options movement and outstanding as af
31 December 2019 have been disclosed in Note 32 1o the financial
statements.

The Company operates the Scheme for 10 years from 14 September
2012 to 14 September 2022 and for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who confribute to the
success of the Group's operation. Further details of the Scheme are set
out in the circular of the Company date 29 August 2012.

During the Reporting Period, share options of 340,000,000 were
lapsed and no outstanding share option as at 31 December 2019.
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The following table lists the details of movement in the options granted
and outstanding under the Scheme during the nine months ended
31 December 2019:
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TRIFHRBE-E—NF+-A=+—ALA
88 PR st B T ELSR 1H J  R 1T (E B AR 2 2
DETCE

Number of share options BREHE
Number of share options
BREZE
Weighted
average
Oufstanding Closing price  closing price
Oufstanding Granfed Exercised ~ Cancelled/ as of immediately ~ immediately
Category of as af during during  lopsed during 31 December Exercise before the before
participants 1 April 2019 the period the period the period 2019 price  dote of gront exercise  Date of grant Exercise period
R=B-1%
RZB-0E t=h RETE
mA-H EHER AHER THER =t-8 SERHAH AZNETH
SREEH WA B 7 HEHE/RN HATE TRE  AZUHE YHE  REEH T8
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
Directors
g3
M. Lei Hong Wai 85,000,000 = - (85,000,000 S 0.121 0.117 - 24 Apil 2018 24 Aprl 2018 -
TRERE 23 Apil 2019
ZFNE “2-\fBA-tEAZ
mA=+mA “R-NERAZT=A
M. Leung Alex 85,000,000 = - (85,000,000) = 0.121 0.117 - 24 Apil 2018 24 Aprl 2018 -
RRBRE 23 Apiil 2019
“E-)\F “E-\¥RATRAE
MmA=THmA 21y
Ms. lo Ming Wan 85,000,000 - - (85,000,000) - 0121 0.117 - 24 Apil 2018 24 Apiil 2018 -
per 23 Apil 2019
“FNF ZF-\FRAZTEAZ
MmAZ+mA “E-NERAZt=R
M. Tse Chi Keung 85,000,000 = - (85,000,000 = 0.121 0.117 - 24 Apil 2018 24 Apil 2018 -
HERLE 23 Apil 2019
ZFNE “2-\fBAZtEAZ
mA=+mA “R-NERAZT=A
Totol 340,000,000 = - (340,000,000| =
@t
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the nine months ended 31 December 2019 and
up fo the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton (Vice Chairman)
[Appointed on 28 October 2019)

Mr. Lleung Alex

Ms. Lo Ming Wan

Mr. Tse Chi Keung

Mr. Yuan Huixia

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Diao Yunfeng (Resigned on 28 October 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lai Hok Lim

M. Lien Wai Hung

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles, the Directors
refiring by rofation at the forecoming AGM are Mr. lei Hong Wai,
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Ellon and Mr. Wong Tak Chuen. They will
refire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Direcfors af
the Annual General Meeting.
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Biographical details of Directors and senior management are sef out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. lei Hong Wai, aged 51, has over 15 years of exfensive
experience in corporate management, investment and business
development. He is the chairman of the Nomination Commitiee of the
Board and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board. He
also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. lei
is also a director of Eternity Finance Group Llimited, the substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Lei is currently the chairman of
the board of directors and an executive director of Eternity Investment
Limited (“Etemity”), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange”) under stock
code: 764. During the period from 10 April 2014 to 2 September
2015, M. lei was the chairman of the board of directors and an
executive director of Huanxi Media Group Llimited (“Huanxi Media”), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock
code: 1003. Mr. lei was also the chairman of the board of directors
and an executive direcfor of Man Sang Infernational Limited ["Man
Sang”), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
under stock code: 938, during the period from 31 March 2016 to
3 April 2018 and 26 June 2015 to 3 April 2018, respectively. In
2002, Mr. lei was a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Llisted
Companies Limited, which promotes interaction amongst its members
which are listed companies in Hong Kong and the People's Republic of

China.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion, aged 54, has over 29 years of
experience in the area of corporate finance and securities industries.
He holds a Masfer Degree in Accounfing and Finance from the
University of lancaster in the United Kingdom. Mr. Cheung is also a
director of Eternity Finance Group Limited, the substantial shareholders
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is currently the chairman of the board
of directors and an executive director of Global Mastermind Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8063), a company listed on GEM operated by
the Stock Exchange and an executive director of Etemity. Mr. Cheung
was an execufive director of the Company during the period from
11 Ocfober 2016 to 16 December 2016. Mr. Cheung was also an
executive director of Man Sang during the period from 26 June 2015
to 3 April 2018.
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Report of the Directors
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Mr. leung Alex, aged 41, obtained his Bachelor of Commerce
degree from the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000.
Mr. leung had worked in two international accounting firms from
December 2000 to February 2012. He is a fellow member of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounfants and the CPA
Australia. He has more than 18 vyears of experience in audifing,
accounting and corporate management as well as in the field of
corporate finance, mergers and acquisition matters, financial and
accounting management, corporate governance and compliance
affairs. He also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. leung is currently an executive director of Affluent
Pariners Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange under sfock code: 1466 and formerly known as Man
Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited). Mr. leung was also an executive
director of Man Sang during the period from 16 October 2014 to
5 November 2018.

Ms. lo Ming Wan, aged 34, obtained her Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secrefaries. She has over
10 years of experience in auditing, accounting, company secretarial

matters and financial management.

Mr. Tse Chi Keung, aged 38, obtained his Bachelor Degree of
Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has more than 12 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management gained from certain senior positions in an
infernational accounting firm in Hong Kong and a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yuan Huixia, aged 39, has been admitted as a practicing solicitor
in the People’s Republic of China and has over 16 years of extensive
experience in corporafe management, investment, legal affairs and
business development. He holds a Docforate Degree in Law, a Master
Degree in law and a Bachelor Degree in law from the Southwest
University of Political Science and law in the People’'s Republic of
China. During the period from 1 August 2016 to 5 November 2018,
Mr. Yuan was an executive director of Man Sang.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 55, is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, respectively. He has
over 30 vyears of experience in auditing, financial management,
mergers and acquisitions gained from cerfain senior finance related
positions in an infernational accounting firm in Hong Kong, companies
lisled in Hong Kong and a company listed in the United States of
America. He is currently a Practising Certified Public Accountant in
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director
of Huanxi Media and Eternity. Mr. Wong was also an independent
non-executive director of Man Sang during the period from 12 July
2016 to 5 November 2018.

Mr. Lai Hok Lim, aged 61, has been a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1989. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Arts Degree and holds a Bachelor of Arts (Law)
Degree from the University of Sussex in the United Kingdom and a
Bachelor of Law Degree from Beijing University in the PRC. Mr. Lai was
also an independent non-executive director of Man Sang during the

period from 1 December 2016 to 5 November 2018.

Mr. lien Wai Hung, aged 56, has been a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1997. M. lien was also the chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange under sfock code:
8130, during the period from 15 September 2010 to 31 July 2018
and 27 April 2010 to 31 July 2018, respectively.
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Company Secretary
Ms. lo Ming Wan, aged 34, obtained her Bachelor of Business

Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Insfitute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secrefaries. She has over
10 years of experience in auditing, accounting, company secretarial
matters and financial management.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

All Executive Directors have entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of three year commencing from the date
of their first appointment and also subject to the general requirement of
refirement by rofation and re<election at each annual general meeting of
the Company under the Articles of Association. The service agreement
shall continue unless terminated by either party by giving a written
nofice. Under the agreement, the Executive Directors will receive an
annual fee.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors has a service contract with

the Company which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant fo the Arficles, every Director shall be enfifled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all actions, cosfs,
charges, damages, expenses, losses and liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in the execution of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against Directors of the Group.

DIRECTOR’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S
BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and confracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which Director of the Company and
the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time
during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman and
executive director of the Company) and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion
[Vice Chairman and executive director of the Company) have interest in
approximately 25.99% and 15.29%, respectively, of the issued share
capifal of Efemity Investment Llimited (stock code: 764), a company
lised on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange engaging in sale
of financial assets, property invesiment, money lending, and design
and sale of jewelry products, through themselves and their beneficial
interests in Twin Success Infernational Limited. In addition, M. Lei Hong
Wai is the chairman of the board of directors and an executive director
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion is an executive director of Eternity
Investment Limited. Therefore, Eternity Investment Llimited competes
with the Group’s money lending business and investment in financial

instruments business.
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Report of the Directors
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As at 31 December 2019, save as mentioned above, the Directors
were not aware of any business or interest of each Director,
management shareholder and their respective associate, that competes
or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict
of interest which any such person have or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2019, the interests of the directors and the chief
executive and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and ifs associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise
nofified 1o the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company

Name of director Capacity

ESHSR 5%

Beneficial owner

BamlA A

M. Llei Hong Wai
FHERE

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive
nor their associates had any inferests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations at 31 December 2019
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Report of the Directors
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

At 31 December 2019, the register of substantial shareholders RZZT—NF+—A=+—H ZARRREZES
maintained by the Company pursuant fo Section 336 of the Securifies  REABIEPIZEI3OKEFE 2 EERFELMET
and Futures Ordinance shows that the following shareholders had ~ TNHIRRERMEBE AR R D HITRA 2 AR
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of ~ F& A F]

the Company.

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of (o) XARBREMEC.IOCELEERZHR
the Company

Percentage of

Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
BFEzE #8117 HARARBRIT
BREHE g4 LTEREE BAESL
Eternity Finance Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,483,728,240 18.86%
KB B EEER AR EmEAA
Riche (BVI) Limited Inferest in a controlled corporation 1,483,728,240 18.86%
SR EE R
Eternity Investment Limited Inferest in a controlled corporation 1,483,728,240 18.86%
KXIEREIEEBR AR S AERE S
Notes: Bist:
These Shares were registered in the name of Etemity Finance Group ZERMDUKEMBEBERARNZEEER
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Riche (BVI) Limited, which in turn H ARiche (BVI) Limitedz 2 &K1 B A7) iMRiche
is wholly-owned by Eternity Investments Limited, the shares of which are (BVI) Limited B KBRS EB R AR EHAE -
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 764. KIERBREARRAR 2RO REERZAER E
(B R5E:764) -
(b) Convertible bonds (b) AHRERES
Number of
convertible Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity bonds held  underlying shares
BEzURR
BREE g1 BEFEA HERAGEE
Heng Tai Finance Limited Beneficial owner 1,160,000,000 1,160,000,000
EmEE A
Heng Tai Consumables Group Limited  Inferest in a controlled corporation 1,160,000,000 1,160,000,000
SRBEEREBEAERAT TR S
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Notes:

These convertible bonds were registered in the name of Heng Tai Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Heng Tai Consumables Group Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under
stock code: 197.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors
are not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or
short position in shares and underlying shares of the Company or ifs
associated corporation(s) which would require to be recorded in the
register required fo be kept by the Company pursuant fo secfion 336
of Part XV of the SFO.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

The following changes were made to the information of the Directors
during the nine months ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date
of this report:

In September 2019, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen resigned as the chief
financial officer of a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

On 28 October 2019, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elfon was appoinfed

as the Vice Chairman and an executive director of the Company.

On 28 October 2019, Mr. Dico Yunfeng resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

In the event that the Company issues, otherwise than pursuant fo the
Old Scheme and the Scheme, for cash consideration of any new
shares or securities (including options and warrants) in the Company
convertible info ordinary shares [the “New lssue Securities”), the holders
of the Company's preference shares (the “Preference Shares”) are
entitled to subscribe, or procure subscribers fo subscribe, for all or part
of the New lssue Securities. Any New lIssue Securities not subscribed
for by the holders of Preference Shares may be subscribed for by the
holders of ordinary shares in the Company upon terms and conditions
no more favourable than those offered to the holder of Preference
Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the confracts of service with the Direcfors or any persons
engaged in the fulime employment of the Group, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were enfered into or
existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentoge of sales and purchases affributable to the Group's
largest customers and suppliers are as follows:

— the largest customer —BREP

— five largest customers combined —hAREFAER

— the largest supp|ier —RXHER

— five largest suppliers combined —RERHEEAET

No Direcfors or their associates [as defined in the Listing Rules] and
no shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an inferest in the maijor
suppliers or customers noted above.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed (together with the management and
external audifor) the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the nine

months ended 31 December 2019

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

At an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) held on 26 May
2017, an ordinary resolution was passed by the independent
shareholders which approved the master purchase agreement dated
3 April 2017 entered into between LC Global Holdings Corporation
["LC Clobal"), a subsidiary of the Company, and lung Cheong (BVI)
Holdings Limited (“lung Cheong (BVI]") which is owned as to 30% by
Mr. Lleung Chung Ming and 70% by Mr. Lleung, Kenneth Yuk Wai who
is a son of one of the Company’s substantial shareholder at the date
of the EGM, Mr. leung lun, M.H.,
in relation to, among other matters, the supply of consumer electronic

[the “Master Purchase Agreement”)

products, radio control/wireless products, electronic and plastic toys
for a ferm up to 31 March 2020. On 25 November 2019, a new
masfer purchase agreement (“New Master Purchase Agreement’) has
been entered into between LC Global and Llung Cheong (BVI) to revise
the annual cap for the year ending 31 March 2020 under the Master
Purchase Agreement and renew the Master Purchase Agreement for @
period commencing from 25 November 2019 to 6 May 2020.

The annual caps in relation to the fransactions under the Master
Purchase Agreement (as renewed by the New Master Purchase
Agreement) for the year ending 31 March 2020 and the period from

1 April 2020 to 6 May 2020 would not exceed HK$ 120 million and
HK$40 million respectively.

For the nine months ended 31 December 2019, purchases under the
Master Purchase Agreement amounted to approx. HK$74 million.
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On 31 January 2019, Mr. leung Lun, M.H. ceased fo be a substantial
shareholder of the Company but remained as directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. On 7 May 2019, Mr. leung lun, M.H.
ceased fo be a director of any subsidiary of the Company. lung

Cheong (BVI) will no longer be a connected person of the Company

under the Listing Rules from 7 May 2020.

In accordance with Rule 14A.37 of the listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing
connected fransactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the
fransactions were entered into:

(i) Inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

li)  Either on normal commercial terms or on ferms no less favorable
to the Company than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

i) In accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the listing Rules, the Company’s auditor,
BDO Llimited, was engaged to report on the Company's confinuing
connected fransactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
fo Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The audifor has issued an unqualified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in the paragraph above in accordance with
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company fo the Stock Exchange.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Company is committed to maintaining, and has maintained good
relationships with, its employees, customers and suppliers with a view
fo fostering better mutual understanding and/or a sense of belonging
towards the Company. This is conducive o implementing the Group's
strategies and business objectives, as well as the Group's business
development and sustainability in the long term.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporation, the Company is committed fo profecting
the environment in the areas where we operate. To ensure our business
development and sustainability, the Company endeavors to comply with
the laws and regulations regarding environmental profection and fo
adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors as at the lafest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report, the public float of the shares of the
Company is sufficient to meet the minimum level as prescribed in the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Llimited who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the appointment of BDO Llimited as auditor of the
Company will be proposed af the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practice are sef
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 46 of this
Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board
China Healthwise Holdings Limited

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman and executive Director

20 March 2020
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+852 2218 8288

Tel :
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

Independent Auditor’s Report
BIENRE

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
R
EEE : +852 2218 8288 EHTEEP1115E
{85 : +852 2815 2239 KR 2548

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA HEALTHWISE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
lincorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (the “Company’] and its subsidiaries
(fogether the “Group”) set out on pages 73 fo 232, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the period from
1 April 2019 1o 31 December 2019, and notes fo the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as af
31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
1 Apiil 2019

to 31 December 2019 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

and ifs consolidated cash flows for the period from

Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ["HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” secfion of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

Refer to “Impairment loss on financial assets” in summary of significant
accounting policies in Note 5(h)fii], critical accounting estimates
and judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note
6lal(vi), disclosure of loans receivable in Notes 24 and 42(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group had significant amounts of loans receivable, before loss
allowance, of HK$274,533,000 as at 31 December 2019, which

were classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantifative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis. Based
on the assessment, the balance of impairment loss was approximately

HK$10,702,000 as at 31 December 2019

The impairment assessment of loans receivable involves significant
management judgements and estimates in the assessment of credit
risk, the uses of models and the choices of inputs in the calculation of
expected credit losses at the reporting date.

We have identified the assessment of credit risk for loans receivable
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the assessments involved significant
management judgements and estimation with respect fo the expected
credit losses.
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Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management's impairment assessment
included, but not limited to, the following procedures:

*  evaluated the methodology used by the Group in performing

impairment assessment;

e challenged the reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the
valuation: and

®  engaged auditor's expert to review the valuation work done by
management's expert and checked the parameters to exfernal
data sources where available, including default rates provided
by management.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other informcﬁion, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing fo report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either infend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but fo do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagements, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exisfs. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise EIREERBEZLER#E ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]ﬂﬁ‘? EEHE

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout ~ FAEZEHIE - RIFEHEEREE - TF
the audit. We also:

idenfify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intenfional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal confrol.

obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the audit
in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability fo confinue as a going concemn. If we conclude that @
material uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw attention in
our audifor’s report fo the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group fo
cease to continue as a going concern.
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®  evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying fransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

®  obfain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. VWe are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. Ve remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. VWe describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in exiremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected o outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Tsz Hung
Practising Certificate No. PO6693

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FARERAMZEKE R

For the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 RZZE—hFHA—BE=ZT—-AF+-A=+—HHH

Period from
1 April
2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZZE-hF
BA—HZ% BHZE
—E-NEF —E-NF
+=g=+-B =A=t+-~
A FFE
Nofes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & THERT FHET
Continuing operations FEREXK
Revenue A 7 309,969 451,615
Cost of sales $HE R A (222,401) (286,886)
Gross profit EF 87,568 164,729
Other income, gains and losses, net HaA s REE F8 8 (82,24¢) (46,524)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEIH (58,762) (86,697
General and administrative expenses —MRITHER (42,346) (81,736)
Finance costs BAE R 10 (19,055) (8,839)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment #1% « & Kk & R E &2 16 - (10,145)
Impairment loss on rightof-use assets EREEEREEE 17 (5,778) -
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE 18 (614) (2,500
Impairment loss on infangible assets BVEERERR 19 (5,094) =
Loss before income fax from REFELERB 2
continuing operations BRETISTHRIE A Qla) (126,327) (71,712)
Income tax (expense)/credit FriEf (Ax) % 11 (547) 1,967
Loss for the period/year from BN/ ERRERFE
confinuing operations REXEBZER (126,874) (69,745
Discontinued operations BRIEGEER
Loss for the period/year from RN/ FNREERIE
discontinued operations REXBZBA Qlb) = (34,667
loss for the period/year BN/ FRER (126,874) (104,412)
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FERREMZEKR R

For the period from 1 Apri\ 2019 to 31 December 2019

R-ZE-NFOA-—BE-_E-NAF+ZA=+—HBHMA

Period from
1 April
2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=Z—-1%F
MA—HZ B=E
—E-NE —E-hF
+t=A=+t-R =A=+—H
A FFE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FERT THET
Other comprehensive income, net of tax MBRBERE M2 E K S
liems that may be reclassified subsequently to  BE IR B EF 7ME
profit or loss: BmaEE -
Exchange differences arising from BEBINEBEEY
translation of foreign operations N = (1,876) 1,668
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or N =l iU
loss upon de-registration of a subsidiary BRSO RERHEZ
N ER - 19
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or jiStel={io) =N
loss upon disposal of subsidiaries BERSBEREZ
N ZR 34 35,091 35,705
Other comprehensive income for the B, FRMBRBIEE
period/year, nef of tax Hfb2mlas 33,215 37,392
Total comprehensive income for the HR/ FRE2EWEEE
period/year (93,659) (67,020)
Loss for the period/year attributable fo: AT ATEEEAN,FREE
Owners of the Company RRAERA
Loss for the period,/year from the continuing AN/ FRAREEE
operations MR 2 BB (124,345) (60,649
Loss for the period/year from discontinued A/ FAREERILE
operations KE IR 2 18 - (34,667)
Loss for the period,/year attributable BN ERARRARER A
to owners of the Company FE(R &8 (124,345) (95,316)
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FARERAMZEKE R

For the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 RZZE—AFMNA—-—BEZE_T—-hF+_A=+—HBHH

Period from
1 April
2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=ZB-NI%F
B—HZE Bz
—E-NF —T-NF
t=A=t-A =A=1+—H
A FFE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B FHET FET
Non-controlling inferests FEIE MR MR
Loss for the period,/year from the continuing BA/ FARERE
operations BT 2 BB (2,529) (9,0906)
loss for the period,/year from discontinued BN/ FRREERIE
operations REXRBZEE = -
Loss for the period/year attributable to R, F NI R s
non-confrolling inferests FE(h 18 (2,529) (9,090
(126,874) (104,412
Total comprehensive income for the period/year AT ALEEHIR,FR
atfributable to: PHKEERE:
Owners of the Company RAREB A (99,853) (58,028
Non-controlling interests g 6,194 (8,992)
(93,659) (67,020]
loss per share aftributable fo owners of REFBEREERZ
the Company from continuing operations ZA/NCIE 2SN
FEAE B R E 1R
Sl —EA 13 (1.53) 0.72]
centsiB 1l centsS {1l
_ Diluted — B (1.53) 0.72]
13 centsiE1ll centsS {1l
loss per share aftributable fo owners of KECKIREEK 2
the Company from discontinued operations RRmGER ARG
BREE
— Basic —ER 13 (0.41)
= centsS {1l
— Diluted —#8 (0.41)
13 - cents7 S {1l
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As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hAF+-_A=+—H

At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZZE—-hF RZZT—NF
+=BA=+-—H =A=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B MERE 16 4,903 2,943
Rightofuse assets EREEE 17 12,074 =
Goodwill EES 18 - 614
Infangible assefs BIVEE 19 - 5,094
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss EREE 21 18,306 38,905
Deferred tax assefs RIETIBEE 30 3,569 1,870
Loans receivable FEWE R 24 15,000 60,000
53,852 109,426
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 22 68,939 71,740
Trade and other receivables, JEWE SRR N HAL
deposits and prepayments FEN TR IE - 'RE K
T 08 23 51,259 61,901
Loans receivable EWE R 24 248,831 200,616
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE 2] 120,275 189,117
Amount due from a related company fed —FE A RE R RIRIA 25 - 10,027
Tax recoverable Y E R IR 9 25
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITER 26 8,190 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReENREEEY 26 47,072 54,940
544,575 588,366
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade and other payables and PR 5 Bk S E A
accrued charges e IE K 5T & B 27 117,663 92,068
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 17 12,034 -
Borrowings =t 28 18,685 13,412
Amounts due fo related companies B EBERTFIA 25(b) = 89,737
Tax payable e A 5,158 3,637
Convertible loan notes REERER 39 110,038 -
263,578 198,854
Net current assets RBEETFE 280,997 389,512
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAER 334,849 498,938
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FamBRRE
As at 31 December 2019 RHR-_ZE—hE+-_A=+—H

At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
R=-ZE—hF RZE—NF
+=HA=+—H =A=+—H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHET
Non-current liabilities *kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 6,256 -
Convertible loan notes AR EREE 39 = 100,891
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 30 1,920 4,607
8,176 105,498
Net assets BEFE 326,673 393,440
EQUITY R
Share capital & A 31 786,546 852,131
Reserves ] (459,873) (396,685)
Equity affributable to owners of RARER AEGER
the Company 326,673 455,446
Non-controlling inferests FERES 33 - (62,0006)
Total equity MR 326,673 393,440
On behalf of the directors RERES
Lei Hong Wai Tse Chi Keung
FiEE Bk
Director Director
EZE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FERRERER

For the period from 1 Apri| 2019 to 31 December 2019

R-ZE-NFOA-RE_T-NF+-_A=1+—HHH

land and
Converfible loan Exchange buldings Aributable fo
Share Share  nofes - equity  fuctuation  revaluation Other ~ Accumuloted  owners of the  Non<ontrolling
capital  Share premium  opfion reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Company inferess Totol
BELS
g328- EXR®  tihRET LT
B& ROEE  BRERE BERE B EfffiR ik 2iEE  BEARL  FERER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén T Tén Tén T Tign TiEn T T T
[Note 31) [Note 32)
(H3x31) (W32)
At 31 March 2018 RZF-NEZR=1-H 710,131 328,433 S S 50,538) 53,161 [261) [713,339) 327,587 53,437) 274150
Exchonge diflerences arsing on franslofion hEBNEBELEL
of foreign operaions EfZE = = = = 1,564 = S = 1,564 104 1,668
Exchonge differences reclossfied fo profit RUERBAR
of loss upon disposal of subsidiaries ExiprE
EXER = = S S 35,705 = = = 35,705 & 35,705
Exchange differences reclassfed fo proft orloss ~ MiTE—MBARIRER
upon deregsfiafion of o subsidiry AEEREZENZE = = = = 19 = = = 19 = 19
Loss for the year ERNER = = = = = = = 95,316) 95,316) 9,09 (104,412)
Totol comprehensive income for he year EREANEEE - S S - 37288 - - 95,316) 58,028) 8,992 67,020)
Issue of convertble loan notes BAURRERE - - - 19,835 - - - - 19,835 - 19,835
Issue of new shores, RITRG
net of transaction cost Bl x 142,000 8,733 - - 2 = = = 150,733 - 50733
Recognifon of equitysefled shorebased poyment B EREE MR A
ERMAR = = 15,742 = = = = S 15,742 S 15,742
Devegistafion of o subsidiory HE-RNELAR = = = S S S S 423 423 423 -
Transfer of reserves pon disposal of subsidiories WL ENBA AR ERE(E S S S S S 53,161] 21 52900 - - -
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE=A=1-H 852,131 337,166 15,742 19,835 [13,250) S S 756,178 455,446 62,000) 393,440
Exchonge differences arsing on franslafion BEENERELL
of oreign operatons 3:53 - - - - 10,599) - - - 10,599) 8,723 1.876)
Exchange differences reclossfied fo profit RUENEARR
of loss upon disposal of subsidiaries ENAREREL
EXZE S S S S 35,001 = = = 35,091 S 35091
loss for he perio HRER - = S S S S S (124,345) 124,345) (2.529) (126,874)
Totol comprehensive income for the period BRrENGEE o S - - 24492 - - 124 345) 99,853) 6,194 93,659)
Release on lapse of equitysetled
shorebased payment - - 15,742 - - - - 15,742 - - -
Repurchase of shores KioE [65,585) - - - - - - 36,665 28,920) - 28,920)
Disposal of subsidiores HEHBAF = = = S S S S S S 55,812 55,812
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AFTZA
=t-R 786,546 337,166 S 19,835 11,242 S S 828,116] 326,673 S 326,673

Nature and purpose of reserves are disclosed in Note 35.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeaBaRER

For the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 RZZE—hFHA—BE=ZT—-AF+-A=+—HHH

Period from
1 April 2019 to
31 December Year ended
2019 31 March 2019
R=ZB—-1%F
A—HZE BE
—E-NE —E-hNF
t=A=t-B =A=t+—H
WA FFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E T FET
Operating activities REXK
loss before income tax KERFBEREEBD
from confinuing operations B TS 8 Al ES 18 (126,327) (71,712)
Loss before income tax KEDRIERERBTL
from discontinued operations BATSBAIER = (34,667)
(126,327) 106,379)
Adjustments for: MIATIEE HE:
Inferest income MEWA 8 (167) (553)
Inferest expenses B 10 19,055 11,559
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - HE kR EITE 16 1,287 4,153
Depreciation of rightofuse assets EREEENE 17 9,700 =
Impairment loss on property, ME BERREBERERBR
plant and equipment 16 - 10,145
Impairment loss on rightof-use assets ERAEEERERR 17 5778 =
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEE 18 614 2,500
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EERERE 19 5,094 -
Impairment loss on inventories FEREERE Q - 8,008
Impairment loss on frade and other receivables B 5 & H fth UK IB
REEE 8 2,603 3,505
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net JEWE FOR BB 18R 58 8 5,593 5,109
loss on de-registration of a subsidiary iR QR &S 8 - 19
loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries, net HE—BEHBAR &R,/
(W) #58 34 13,991 (11,620]
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE WE LR EE
plant and equipment 8 247 126
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEEERR/RAZER
at fair value through profit or loss RFEFABR SR
recognised as revenue EEMR = (?,840)
Fair value loss on financial assets BAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss, net SREEZATEBEEE 8 58,094 42,509
Gain on deemed disposal of bonds BIEHERERFZ WS 8 = (2,410)
Equity-sefled share-based payment NERERE ARG RERD
expenses MREX Q - 15,742
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEeEBeRER

For the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 MZZE—-—AFMNA—-—BHEZ_T—-hF+_A=+—HHH
Period from
1 April 2019 to
31 December Year ended
2019 31 March 2019
R-FE-N&F
A—RBRZ HE
—E-hEF —ZE-NF
+=HA=+—-H =A=+—H
HE IEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FET FHET
Operating cash flows LEEREETA 2
before working capital changes RERERE (4,438) (27,427)
Decrease/|increase) in inventories TFERAL 7 (Em) 2,500 (2,801)
Decrease in trade and other receivables, FEUE 5 8R 51 & H Ath FB IR
deposits and prepayments R BE RIENFIERD 7,014 6,233
Increase in loans receivable JFE L B R hn (8,808) (230,725)
Decrease/increase) in amount FEU— B BE N F A
due from a related company A ($8h0) 10,027 (10,027)
Increase in trade and JETE SR E B FIE
other payables and accrued charges K et & g 71,192 63,268
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to e BREE R R FUA
related companies CRi4) /4 hn (60,573) 1,447
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEERAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss eREE (710) (196,304)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assefs PERAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss EREENMSIR 32,057 168,335
Cash generated from/(used in] operations REEBE/ (R Z2Re 48,261 (228,001)
Interest received B FE 167 553
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEHHRE (A2
operating activities REFHE 48,428 (227,448)
Investing activities REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BELXR 16 (3,271) (7,112)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank EHRITER (M),
deposifs b (8,190) 494
Net cash oufflow arising on disposal HEMBRAREEZ
of subsidiaries RERHLFE 34 (1,368) (2,860)
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFMAZESFE (12,829) (9,478)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeaBaRER

1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 RZZE—AFHUA—BE=ZE—IF+-A=+—HHH

For the period from

Period from
1 April 2019 to
31 December Year ended
2019 31 March 2019
R-FE-N&F
A—RZE BHZE
—ZE-hF —E-hnF
+=B=+-—H =A=+—H
HE ItFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Financing activities MEE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares, BT BRAEHIEA
net of transaction costs in connection (FANBR B REITIR D
with issue of shares THKA) 31 = 150,733
Proceeds from issue of BITARBRERER
convertible loan notes FriS sk I8 39 - 120,000
Inferest paid B FE 40 (9,908) (3,799)
New borrowings R 40 18,685 5612
Repayment of borrowings EREX 40 (11,787) (41,281)
Repurchase of shares WA (el i 31 (28,920) -
Repayment of principal portion of ERESRENEIEHS
lease liabilities 40 (9,262) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FrA) Bz
financing activities HEFRE (41,192 231,265
Net decrease in cash and ReRESEENRLFE
cash equivalents (5,593) (5,661)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HEEXSB XS (2,275) 2,744
Cash and cash equivalents B ENzBEER
at beginning of period/year REe%EY 54,940 57,857
Cash and cash equivalents at end of BR/ FRZRAER
period/year RELEY 47,072 54,940
Represented by: E:
Cash and cash equivalents RehREFEDY 26 47,072 54,940
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 December 2019

82

—E-AFT=A=t-8

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

China Healthwise Holdings limited A BI%S e RIZR A R A
A (the "Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands,
and the principal place of business of the Company is at Unit
1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and principally
engaged in investment in financial instruments. Its subsidiaries
(fogether with the Company referred to as the “Group”] are
principally engaged in sale of toys and Chinese health products,
money lending business and investment in financial instruments.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 20
to the financial statements.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

On 2 December 2019, the Company announced fo change its
financial year end date from 31 March to 31 December in order
fo have a coterminous year end date with that of its substantial
shareholder, which is a Hong Kong listed company domiciled in
Bermuda, for comparable presentation of financial performance
and position. As a result of this, the final results covered a period

of nine months from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019.

Accordingly, the comparative figures presented for the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes, which
were prepared for the year ended 31 March 2019, are not
comparable with those of the current period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective

on 1 April 2019
HKFRS 16

HK(IFRICHNt 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 3,

HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and

HKAS 23

HKFRS 16 — leases

leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features and Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Setilement

long-ferm Inferests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

20152017 Cycle

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 leases has been

summarised below. The other new or amended HKFRSs

that are effective from 1 Apri| 2019 did not have any

significant impact on the Group's accounting policies.

31 December 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME
31 December 2019 —E—hAFE+_-_A=+—H

3.

84

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

HKFRS 16 — leases — Continved
(il Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting
freatment for lease accounting, primarily for
accounting for lessees. It replaces HKAS 17 leases
("HKAS 177), HK(IFRIC}Hnt 4 Detfermining whether
an Arrangement contains a lease ("HK(IFRIC)-Int
4"), HK(SICHnt 15 Operating leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the legal Form of a lease.
From a lessee's perspective, almost all leases are
recognised in the statement of financial position
as rightofuse assets and lease liabilities, with the
narrow exception fo this principle for leases for which
the underlying assets are of low-value or which are
determined as shortterm leases. From a lessor's
perspective, the accounting treatment is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. For details of HKFRS 16
regarding ifs new definition of a lease, its impact on
the Group's accounting policies and the fransition
method adopted by the Group as allowed under
HKFRS 16, please refer to section (i) to (iv] of this
note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR
31 December 2019 —Z—HALE+-_H=+—H

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. HMEBHERE é Bl ([&#

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved BF SR 2Rl ]) 2
(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — first effective (o) HRAFITRNREITEBUBRE
on 1 April 2019 - Continved EA-R-Z—-NFHWMAE—AH
REN &
HKFRS 16 — leases — Continved BEREMBHRELEUE IR -—HE—F
(il Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 — Continved i) HAEE! 57 BEHREERIE 65
ZE—
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the AEEERARAZELER
cumulative effect approach and recognised, if any BEMBREEFIOR LK
all the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS ERERBEEMBREENSE
16 as an adjusiment to the opening balance of 16T E R E (A ) i
accumulated losses at the date of initial application RRENERXERAH (A _-F
li.,e. T April 2019). The comparative information has —NFMNA—HB)RFEENE
not been restated and continues to be reported under BBz BB - LREHTET
HKAS 17 and related inferpretations as allowed by NENNWEBRBEEEGE
the fransition provision in HKFRS 16. AIENV7 R R B BT B REER
16 BIE G ERFNHEE R
#i?ﬁ&
The following table summarised the impact of TERBRBEEEETBRE
fransition to HKFRS 16 on Group's consolidated ERAFIOKREHEE_ZT—N
statement of financial position as of 31 March F=A=+t—HEZZ—I#%F
2019 to that of 1 April 2019 as follows (increase/ MA—HBHHAEELGE P BEN
(decrease)): MEMEEMT (#MN OR
)
HK$'000
TAET
Statement of financial position R-Z2-NFNA—-BW
as at 1 April 2019 BRI R R
Rightof-use assets EREEE 15,290
Lease liabilities (current) HEBE (RE) 9,102
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEEE (GERD) 6,188
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME
31 December 2019 —E—hAFE+_-_A=+—H

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. %%é%ﬂtﬁiﬁ ZA([EB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Confinved BAFESREAER||) —

7N

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective (a)
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

HKFRS 16 - leases — Continuved

RAHTREETETRBUBRSE
BEA-R-F-NFWA-BH
REN—&

BEMBRELRNE 1658 —THE—F

(il Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 — Continved il HRAE B FEREERE 65
R E—E
The following reconciliation explains how the NTHERBIR -_T—-NF=
operating lease commitments disclosed applying A=+—BREREBGE
HKAS 17 at the end of 31 March 2019 could be IS 7R AT R & E
reconciled fo the lease liabilities at the date of initial BRER_Z-NAFHA—-—AH
application recognised in the Group's consolidated RNEB LA MM R FrER
statement of financial position as at 1 April 2019 WRERERBESMNEEAR
ZEERBEMR
HK$'000
FET
Reconciliation of operating lease ReEHEREHESE
commitments to lease liabilities BEZHEK
Operating lease commitments as of BE_ZT-NF=HA=+—H
1 March 2019 AR E T R E 17,924
less: shortterm leases for which B AR BIXFEF B BRRE T
lease terms end within 12 months of 128 B A fEim <z EEEE
the date of initial application (1,873)
less: future inferest expenses A AR RF BRI X (761)
Total lease liabilities as of 1 April 2019 BHE_Z-NAFHOA—-RZ
HERBERRE 15,290

The weighted average incremental borrowing rafe
applied fo lease liabilities recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as at
1 April 2019 is 6.54%.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

HKFRS 16 - leases — Continuved

(i)

The new definition of lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use
an asset (the underlying assef] for a period of fime
in exchange for consideration. A confract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time when the customer, throughout
the period of use, has both: (a] the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the identified asset and (b) the right to direct the use
of the identified asset.

For a confract that confains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, unless the lessee apply
the practical expedient which allows the lessee to
elect, by class of underlying asset, not to separate
non-lease components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Group has not applied the practical expedient
but accounts for non-lease components applying
other applicable HKFRSs.

A3 40 R PR

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

3. KMBEBUBHREER ([FE
PR ERED )

() AT RNEBTEBUBEHRS
BEA-R-FT-NEWNA-BEH
REN—#&

BEMBRELRNE 1658 —THE—F
(i) HERFEE

RIEBEFBVBREENFE 1655
HEETEAUREBERSGEE (B
REE)N —BREREANERRE
M—HENABHNN—FD &
EPREBEEAMERE : (oF
REDRFERDBREES KN
B AEE D M g Ko (b) B KR
TEBAEENRZRE AN
TRMNAR-BRERAES D
R EER R -

=
—&

RERHERD AR —EHS
HENEESGFHER DN E
HWmE ABEAESENRED
REXEEKD EEREEK
DHRE B ER RIEHEMNX
DEVRE LB BRIFATEAR
AERBEIAEARANR
HEEERMEEIHEEK
DHESIFEEKD MRS
MERD REMEEIEREK
DARIIEE—HRER D -

AEBYEEAEREEN XL
BECEBEMERETEM TR
SERBEIERER D AR
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

HKFRS 16 -

(iii)

leases — Continved
Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease
as an operating lease or a finance lease based
on the extent to which risks and rewards incidental
fo ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor or
the lessee. If o lease is determined as an operating
lease, the lessee would recognise the lease payments
under the operating lease as an expense over the
lease term. The assef under the lease would not be
recognised in the statement of financial position of
the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irespective of they are
operating leases or finance leases) are required to
be capifalised in the statement of financial position
as rightof-use assets and lease liabilities.

The rightofuse assets should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of th lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability);
[ii) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessees and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the leassee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the ferms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred fo produce inventories. The Group measures
the rightof-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the rightof-use
assefs at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

HKFRS 16 — leases — Continved
fiiil ~ Accounting as a lessee — Continved

For rightof-use assets that meets the definition of an
investment property, they are carried af fair value.

lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are nof
paid at the date of commencement of the lease. The
lease payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
defermined. If that rate cannot be readily defermined,
the Group shall use the Group's incremental
borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2019

3.

90

—E-AFT=A=t-8

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

HKFRS 16 - leases — Continuved

(i)

Accounting as a lessee — Continved
lease liability — Continued

The following payments for the rightto-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid af the commencement date of the lease
are considered fo be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (i)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (i) amounts expected
fo be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv] the exercise price of a purchase
opfion if the lessee is reasonably cerfain to exercise
that opfion and (v) payments of peno\fies for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent fo the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount fo reflect inferest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and [iii) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the
in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment fo purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

HKFRS 16 -

(iv)

leases — Continved
Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied HKFRS
16 using the cumulative effect approach and
recognised, if any all the cumulative effect of initially
applying HKFRS 16 as an adjustment fo the opening
balance of accumulated losses at the date of inifial
application. The comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related inferpretations as allowed by
the fransition provision in HKFRS 16

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at the
date of 1
as operating leases applying HKAS 17 and

April 2019 for leases previously classified

measured those lease liabilities at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 April

2019.

The Group has elected fo recognise all the rightof-use
assets at 1 April 2019 for leases previously classified
as operafing leases under HKAS 17 as if HKFRS 16
have been recognised at an amount equal fo the
amount recognised for the remaining lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised in
the statement of financial position immediately before
the date of initial application. For all these rightof-use
assets, the Group has applied HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets at 1 April 2019 o assess if there was any
impairment as on that date.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

HKFRS 16 - leases — Continuved

(iv)

Transition — Continved

The Group has also applied the following practical
expedients: (i) applied the exemption of not to
recognise rightofuse assets and lease liabilities for
leases with terms that will end within 12 months of
the date of inifial application and accounted for those
leases as shortterm leases; (i) exclude the initial
direct costs from the measurement of the rightof-use
assefs at 1 April 2019 and (i) used hindsight in
defermining the lease terms if the contracts contain
opfions to extend or terminafe the leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the practical
expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16 is applied
to all of the Group's lease contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)Hnt 4 and (ii] not to apply HKFRS 16
fo confracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRICHnt
4.

HK(IFRICHnt 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12,

Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect

the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

HK(IFRICHNt 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments —
Continved

Under the interpretation, the entity shall determine whether
to consider each uncertain tax freatment separately or
together based on which approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume
the tax authority will examine amounts that it has a right to
examine and have full knowledge of all related information
when making those examinations. If the entity defermines it
is probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax freatment, then the entity should measure current
and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity
defermines it is not probable, then the uncertainty in the
determination of fax is reflected using either the “most likely
amount” or the “expected value” approach, whichever
better predicfs the resolution of the uncertainty

Amendments to HKAS 19

or Settlement

— Plan Amendments, Curtailment

The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment
or setlement of a defined benefit plan, a company should
use updated actuarial assumptions to defermine its current
service cost and net inferest for the period. Additionally, the
effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating
the gain or loss on any setlement of the plan and is dealr
with separately in other comprehensive income.

Amendments to HKFRS @ — Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised
cost or af fair value through other comprehensive income if
specified conditions are met instead of at fair value through
profit or loss.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

Amendments to HKAS 28 — long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9@ applies to longterm
inferests (“LTI") in associates or joinf ventures which form
part of the net investment in the associates or joint venfures
and sfipulates that HKFRS @ is applied fo these LTI before
the impairment losses guidance within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKFRS 3 which clarifies that when a joint operator of
a business obtains confrol over a joint operation, this is a
business combination achieved in stages and the previously
held equity interest should therefore be remeasured fo its
acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKFRS 11 which clarify that when a party that
participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint
operation which is a business and subsequently obtains
joint confrol of the joint operation, the previously held
equity inferest should not be remeasured to its acquisition
date fair value.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

3.

%Eﬂﬁfﬁ%%ﬁ-,\u (&2

m=

() FRAFITREBITEBUBERS
BEA-R-F-NFWA-BH
REN—&

B ERFE28R 2 BRI AN B
RERBEECRFRER

RIERIABF BV BERELERIES
REARBERTRAELENRN
am ([RER])  MaxFRER
BRBERRRGELEFREN—
Mo WREEGERF285RAE
ERESIAATAE BB RELERE
ORERAR X F RIS -

ﬂ

ERMBREEA-F—AFE_F
— - FBE Y ER A - BB
ERBIBIRT B TA - HIEA B

REEBEBRERBEMNZFEITR
¥ 30 B 30 T B HE Y % IR E AR L DR AR
Rz 88 %EEHERHE
BB HEEEIRNETA HE
BEEBNARKEEESHARRL
ENEFIRESOBRERNESRS
B B SRR AR EEENTE
ZSHWEBEHOHQTE.

BREMBRELEN _FT-—AFE_F
—tFBHR FEBE-F BV R
SRERNFEIRZERTA L LH

IR E BUE B P M R L FERT A
35 B 3 T BA e Y % TR E IR AR
RAZtl 2B ZERYPBHEEE
B HmEERENRABET AR HE
BR2E (B IR RS %)
REEBOBERLEH —TTRERE
BHEKE 2 HE G LATH
ENBRBENSEFTEEEREREN
B AF{E



Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - first effective
on 1 April 2019 - Continved

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes fo standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKAS 12 which clarify that all income tax consequences
of dividends are recognised consistently with the
fransactions that generated the distributable profits, either

in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKAS 23 which clarifies that a borrowing made
specifically to obtain a qualifying asset which remains
outstanding dfter the related qualifying asset is ready for
its infended use or sale would become part of the funds
an enfity borrows generally and therefore included in the

general pool.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to Definition of a Business'
HKFRS 3
Amendments to Definition of Material’
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform!
HKFRS @,
HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January
2020
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January
2021

The amendments were originally infended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective
dafe has now been deferred/removed. Early application of
the amendments confinues fo be permitted.

96 China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

17

7

(b)

P

I ¥

BHE

B

&

BHELEA([FRE
A1)

BEME N RERZHT KB
A ERMEHREEA

AEEILEERRA T A e AL
B SRR B ERMEREKRER
ZHEE NG B A M SRS 2R -
AEEBAABRNEFLENAMER

oy arag 2=
REEE-

=
—&

o

BRMBREER FHIER
FIW AT

BREGENFIRR BAIEE
BRI EN SR
pA_HIES

BREMBREER MEEEYE
RO ARG A

FIOF R BAHE
REERF/H L
EHES
BEYMBREER RER G 42
E17%:
BRMBREER REEREBE LT

FIORREBAGR RRBEERZ
ERF2BFBIR  BEHEIHE

‘ R-TE_ZTF—A—B=2%FAR
2 EEHM AR

2 R-ZT-——F—A—A=skz2EmHA
2 FEHIM A

& ZEBTARENR-_ZE—N\E—A
— Bk ®BFAZ B ER £
BERC R BUE - AR EFTIR
BREBAZSEI A



Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective — Continved

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as o
minimum, an input and a subsfantive process that together
significantly confribute o the ability to create outputs,
together with providing extensive guidance on what is
meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inpufs or processes and confinuing fo produce
outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of “outputs” and
o “business” 1o focus on returns from selling goods and
services o customers, rather than on cost reductions.

An opfional concenfration test has also been added that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of

Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation

of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into the

definition.

Amendments to HKFRS @, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of
the uncertainties caused by inferest rate benchmark
reform. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - Continved

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective — Confinved

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single
principle-based standard for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance confracts in the
financial statements of the issuers of those contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

The omendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or confributes assefs to its
associafe or joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the fransaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only fo the extent
of the unrelated invesfors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is not vet in a position fo state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes to
the Group's accounting policies and financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the hisforical cost basis except for financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL), which are
measured at fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and ifs subsidiaries.
Infercompany fransactions and balances between group
companies fogether with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the period are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
dates of acquisition or up to the dafes of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies info line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity inferests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assefs acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity inferest in the acquiree is re-
measured af acquisitiondate fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a Tronsocﬂon-by—fronsocﬁon basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests ["NCI") that represents a present
ownership interest in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related cosfs incurred are expensed.
All other NCI are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred
in issuing equity instrumenfs in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

31 December 2019

R 55 SR R I oE
—E-AFT=A=1-R

5. FTESTHHEE

(a)

EBEHREEEE

REMBBRREBBEARARENNBA
AZHBBRR-AABZRGREER
X B fE) A4 BRI (R R 8 3R ) 10 A LR
EMBHmARERYH KRERERE
TNTHHE EEBEXHHRAERE
ERENEERRIN EHBERLT AR
BIEERaPRER-

HABAXEHZHBLR  HEE
mKERESXEEHE R L (10
BRFAGEBREMEME2E KSR
R-WMEFTE AENBRAZHB
WRIFLFHRE EERANGFHER
HASEEMKE AR ZEFHRE—
o

WEMB AR REFRBEE LR -
WEZRADIRAEEEE MEL
BEMAEE (ERBET)ERITZ
BAEENWIBE B2 A FEAE
E-FTMEMA BRI EERAAER
BAEEZRUBEENAFEFE
REE SRR R 7T 2 A a1
NEEE AR FEEHNAE A
EEZWamERAIRBR T ER-
AEEAREERHEEEEURT
BRREREEL ZABFEEL
LHFFERERNMEARERNEAE
A IFIE A ([FFIERR ) ©
FREEZ WEEMRAK ATIER S - T
BHMIFEBRER DA FEAE
HEBMBREENRENEME
EAERBR SN FTE £ 2 WHE HE BE R AR
JMER HEBRITRATAMELDN
PR B a5 FIBR

TREEREERARAE —TNAFH 99



Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 December 2019

5.

100

—E-AFT=A=t-8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation -
Continved

Any contingent consideration to be fransferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only fo the exfent that they arise from
new information obfained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date] about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments fo confingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained inferest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assefs (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling inferest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relafion to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
inferests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such NCl's share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such NCI even if this results in those NCI having a
deficit balance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an investee
it all three of the following elements are present: (i) power
over the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, fo variable returns
from the investee; and (iii) the ability fo use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any NCI in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equily interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured af cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment festing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated o each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit ("CGU")
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU fo
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (Note 5(p)), and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(c)

(d)

Goodwill — Continved

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset's carrying amount to below
its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its
value in use (if deferminable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings are stated
at valuation less accumulated depreciation. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values af the end
of the reporting period. Increases in value arising on
revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of land
and buildings revaluation reserve. Decreases in value
arising on revaluation are first offset against increases
on earlier valuations in respect of the same property and
thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Any subsequent
increases are recognised in profit or loss up to the amount
previously charged and thereafter to the land and buildings
revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the land and buildings revaluation reserve o
accumulated losses.

Other property, plant and equipment are sfated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(d)

Property, plant and equipment — Confinved

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes ifs
purchase price and the costs directly affributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate assef, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
mainfenance are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as fo
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straightline
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:
Buildings 20 vears
leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms and 5-20 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 vyears

Furniture, fixtures and 2-5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

Moulds 2-5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and ifs carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

()

Leases (accounting policies applied from 1 April
2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operafing leases or
finance leases| are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as rightofuse assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for
an entity fo choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are shortterm leases and/or (i) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-~alue. The Group has elected
nof fo recognise rightof-use assets and lease liabiliies for
low-value assets and leases for which at the commencement
dote have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on sfraightline basis over the lease term.

Rightof-use asset

The rightofuse asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy
to account for lease liability]; (iij any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; [iii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs fo be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
assef to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. The Group measures the rightof-use assefs
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the rightto-use af cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. Rightof-use assefs are
depreciated on a straightline basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assefs as
follows:

Buildings 1-5 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

()

Leases (accounting policies applied from 1 April
2019) — Continved

Right-ofuse asset — Continued

The Group has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises ifs
judgement and defermines that they are separate classes of
assets apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
are held for own use. As a result, the rightofuse assets
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid af the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rafe implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group's incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid af the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as af commencement date; (i) amounts expected fo be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
[iv] the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

31 December 2019

R 55 SR R I oE
—E-AFT=A=1-R

5. TESTHE-#

()

PEEEREERARARN —TNFH

HE(BE-2-hSFHA-HBE
ERANETBE) &

EREEE—#&

AEECREHERBHBES TYWE

BASEATHE HRE/RFKESR
RoEE L METF NS — R0
BE-FAK HEWSRBETOREL
R R REERITENATIR -

HEAE

MR ERI A E % B R
ZREE MR RERR - E R
RTS8 2 B0 R S R 3R (1437
EABSEE) - WRFEREES
B ARERAARENHEEER
e

THAIEREERBBRNNEE
H B 2 PR AR RE B E AR A S MY RIA
AR A E R ()& N FORAT ]
RKRHEES: (iEFARERZEH
A R YREFE0FEHEE M (B
RN XK)  (ii)pFEAREBEF
PREE RIS B RIE : (iv)fis
EHARERETEREEEZ®E X
EREENTEE: RMHEAEHRR
AEEAITEEERERILEE KIEHE
ERET R

105



Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 December 2019

5.

106

—E-AFT=A=t-8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

()

(f)

Leases (accounting policies applied from 1 April
2019) - Confinved

lease liability — Continved

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect inferest on the lease liability; (i) reducing
the carrying amount fo reflect the lease payments made;
and [jii) remeasuring the carrying amount fo reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in
future lease payments arising from change in an index
or rafe, a change in the lease term, a change in the in
substance fixed lease payments or a change in assessment

fo purchase the underlying asset.

Leases (accounting policies applied until 31 March
2019)

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership fo lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assefs at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. lease payments are
analysed between capital and inferest. The inferest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed fo the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the
lease ferm. lease incentives received are recognised as an
infegrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially af cost. Affer initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
for infangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straightline method over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The amortisation expense is recognised
in profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.
Infangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent impairment accumulated losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of
an infangible assef, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

(i) Internally generated intangible assets (research and
development costs)

An intangible asset arising from development
expenditure on an individual project is recognised
provided they meet the following recognition
requirements:

e it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold:

e adequafe resources are available to complete
the development;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) — Continved

(i)

(i)

Infernally generated intangible assets (research and
development costs) — Continved

e  there is an infention to complete and sell the
product;

o the Group is able to sell the product; and

e sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and expenditure on the
project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development cosfs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in cost of
sales.

Development expenditure not safisfying the above
criferia and expenditure on the research phase of
infernal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assefs with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an assef
may be impaired. Infangible assefs with indefinite
useful lives and infangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, irespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assefs are fested for impairment
by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is freated as revaluation decrease fo the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(h)  Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset [unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
fransaction costs that are directly attributable fo ifs
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is inifially measured
at the fransaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assefs are recognised on the frade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits fo purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when defermining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assef.
There are three measurement categories into which
the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of confractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and inferest
are measured af amortised cost. Financial assefs
at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)  Financial instruments — Confinved

(i)

Financial assets — Continved
Debt instruments — Continued

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured af
FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair valve. Inferest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified fo profit

or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
it they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assefs with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments o be classified at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or

significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(h)  Financial instruments — Continved

(i)

(i)

Financial assets — Continved
Equity instruments

On inifial recognifion of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irevocably elect
fo present subsequent changes in the investment's
fair value in other comprehensive income. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment
basis. Equity investments at FVOCI are measured af
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the invesments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are not reclassified to
profit or loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as at FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value and
dividends are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on trade receivables, financial
assefs measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at FVOCI. The ECls are
measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECls that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifefime ECls: these are ECls
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum confractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

ECls are o probabilityweighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects fo receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)  Financial instruments — Confinved

(i)

112

Impairment loss on financial assets — Continved

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables using HKFRS @ simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECls. The Group has esfablished a provision
matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debfors and the economic
environment.

Other financial assefs measured at amortised cost are
subject fo impairment under the general approach
and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for frade receivables
which apply the simplified approach as detfailed
below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which
credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance
is measured af an amount equal fo

12-month ECLs

Stage 2 -  Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not creditimpaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance
is measured af an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that
credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased
or originated creditimpaired) and
for which the loss allowance is
measured af an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - are
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(h)  Financial instruments — Continved

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets — Confinved

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
creditimpaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security [if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than Q0 days past due.

Inferest income on creditimpaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non creditimpaired financial assefs interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)

Financial instruments — Continved

(i)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured af
fair value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
affributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as af FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for frading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
frading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a confract confains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability af FVTPL, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of
the embedded derivative is prohibited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(h)  Financial instruments — Continved

(i)

Financial liabilities — Continved

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met:

[)  the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent freatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis;

li)  the liabilities are partf of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

i) the financial liability contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent fo inifial recognition, financial liabilities
af FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group's own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any
inferest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, cerfain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured af
amortised cost, using the effective inferest method.
The related inferest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)

Financial instruments — Continved

(i)

(iv)

Financial liabilities — Continved

Financial liabilities at amortised cost — Continved

Cains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notfes issued by the Group that
contain the host liability component, conversion
opfion component and other embedded derivatives
components (such as early redemption option) which
are not closely related tfo the host liability component
are classified separately into their respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
seffled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company's own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument. Derivatives embedded in host
confracts are accounted for as separate derivatives
it their economic characteristics and risks are nof
closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host confract are not held for trading or designated
as at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible loan nofes and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the loan notes into
equity is included in equity (convertible loan notes
equity reserve).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(h)  Financial instruments — Continved

(iv)

(v)

Convertible loan notes — Continved

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible loan nofes is carried af amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the opfion to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Compony, will remain in convertible loan notes
equity reserve until the embedded option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in convertible
loan notes equity reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance
stated in convertible loan notes equity reserve will be
released to the accumulated losses. No gain or loss
is recognised upon conversion or expiration of the
optfion.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan notes are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion fo the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged direcily to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible loan notes using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating inferest income
or inferest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rafe is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h)

Financial instruments — Continved

vi)

(vii)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
cosfs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
confractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been fransferred and the fransfer meets the
criferia for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS

9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues ifs own equity instruments
fo a creditor to sefile a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured af their fair value on the dafe the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(i)

(i

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories fo their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the
firstin first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
cosfs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred fo the customers
ot an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is affer deduction of any trade discountfs.

Depending on the terms of the confract and the laws that
apply fo the confract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Confrol of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
confrols as the Group performs; or

e does not creafe an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the confract by
reference to the progress fowards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in fime when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(i

120

Revenue recognition — Confinved

When the confract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
fransfer of goods or services fo the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing fransaction
between the Group and the cusfomer af contract inception.
Where the confract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that confract includes the inferest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For confracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Incremental cosfs of obfaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obfain a confract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. The Group recognises such cosfs (e.g. sales
commissions) as an asset if it expects fo recover these
cosfs. The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the assets relate. The Group applies the practical expedient
of expensing all incremental cosfs to obtain a confract if
these cosfs would otherwise have been fully amortised to
profit or loss within one year.

a.  Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at the
point in fime when control of the assef is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

b.  Inferest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding af the applicable interest rate.

c.  Revenue from investment in financial instruments
includes realised fair value gains or losses on frading
investment on a trade date basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(k)

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current fax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using fax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted af the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for fax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assefs are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or seffled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled enfities, except where the Group is
able fo control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relafe to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(h

Foreign currency

Transactions enfered into by group enfities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate [the “functional
currency”’] are recorded at the rates ruling when the
fransactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetfary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
af the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
defermined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are nof refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the sefflement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the refranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the refranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

5. TESTHE-#

()

HheE

SEERNHEEMAEIZLERE
ZRBEBANZEE ([HEER])
ETZRB IR HERAZERARR -
MONE DB 2 BB EERARERR
THRZERBE - AINEFTERR
FEINERZIFEERE HIREEAF
BERZEREHBRE - LIMNERE
ERAGFEZIERKHBETEEN SR
o

NEEE%RE RRESHAERMmME
EZEREERELHMERD T E
R-FABHBUEARNFEIRZIHEE
KREMEEZEXZBETAEHE
g2 EEHEEBREMEEKEAN
BRZIFEBHABSHREMELZ
EBEN-RZBAT EXLEZEN
RE A 2 [ Y ek R o



Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(h

Foreign currency — Continved

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are franslated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority inferests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit or
loss of group entities” separate financial statements on the
translation of longterm monetary items forming part of the
Group's net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of disposal
are reclassified fo profit or loss as part of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjusiments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are freated as assefs and
liabilities of that foreign operation and franslated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(m) Employee benefits

(n)

(] Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be setfled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the period when
the employees render the related service.

(i)  Defined contribution refirement plan

Confributions to defined contribution refirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

i)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution
refirement benefit schemes. A defined confribution plan is
a refirement benefit scheme under which the Group pays
contributions, on a mandatory, contfractual or voluntary
basis, info a separate entity. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or
state/trustee-administered funds. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
It has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
confributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current period and prior year.

The confributions are recognised as employment cosfs when
they are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior fo vesfing
fully in the contributions.
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5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(<)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the dafe of grant. Such fair value
is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
within equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken
info account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected fo vest at the end of each reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over
the vesfing period is based on the number of options that
eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored info
the fair value of the options granted. As long as all non-
market vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made
imespective of whether the market vesting conditions are
satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure
fo achieve a market vesting condifion.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phanfom share optfion scheme
which is defermined to be a cashsettled share-based
payment fransaction with employees. An opfion pricing
model is used to measure the Group's liability at grant
date and subsequently at the end of each reporting period,
taking info account the terms and conditions on which the
bonus is awarded and the extent to which employees have
rendered service. Movements in the liability (other than
cash payments) are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

(p)

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indicafion that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previous|y
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

a.  properly, plant and equipment; and
b.  rightof-use assets

If the recoverable amount [i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use] of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is freated as a revaluation decrease under

that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assef is increased fo the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been defermined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant assef is carried at @
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected fo be derived from the assets or CGU, discounted
fo their present value using a pretax discount rafe that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Confinved

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an oufflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be esfimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

[i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

[i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved

() Related parties — Confinved

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity [or an associate or joint venture
of o member of a group of which the other
entity is @ member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other enfity is an associate of the third

entity;

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)li) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the enfity (or of a
parent of the entity);

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company's parent.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continved 5. T EEHHBE 2

() Related parties — Confinved

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected fo influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

i)  dependents of that person or that person's spouse or
domestic pariner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, esfimafes and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on hisforical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

130

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(i)

(i)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and rightof-use assefs

The Group's management (the “Management”)
determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment and rightofuse assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and rightof-use assefs of similar nature
and functions. The Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously esfimated lives, it will writeoff or wrie-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assefs that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives; actual
residual values may differ from esfimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and residual values and therefore
depreciation expense in the future periods.

Useful lives of infangible assets

The Management estimates the trademarks have
indefinite useful lives as they believe that there is no
foreseeable limit on the period of time over which
these intangibles are expected to provide cash
flows and these intellectual property rights can be
renewable in a period of fime at minimal cost and
the products are continuing in the market.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

() Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
— Continved

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of nonfinancial assets (including goodwill)

In defermining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset value
has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset or a CGU can be supported by
the recoverable amount of the CGU, which is the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use of the CGU. The value in use calculation is
based on the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the confinued use
of the asset or CGU, or derecognition; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions fo be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by the Management to defermine the level
of impairment, including the discount rafes or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially offect the net present value used in
the impairment fest.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of invenfories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and variable selling
expenses. These esfimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer faste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. The Management reassesses
the estimations at the end of each reporting period.
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6.

132

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
— Continved

(v)  Provision for ECLs on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is inifially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected fo deferiorate over the next year which
can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
sectors in which the Group operates, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among hisforical
observed default rates and ECls is a significant
estimate. The amount of ECls is sensitive to changes
in circumstances. The Group's historical credit
loss experience may also not be representative of
cusfomer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECls on the Group's frade receivables is

disclosed in Note 42(a).
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

() Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
— Continved

(vi)

Provision for ECL on loans receivable and other
receivables

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the probability of default on a loans receivable or
other receivable has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the loans receivable or other receivables as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the receivables as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable
information including historical and forwardHooking
information which is available without undue cost or
effort.

The Group calculates ECL allowance for loans
receivable and other receivables based on the
estimated probability of default of counterparties with
similar credit rafings, with adjustment to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate.

The assessment of impairment for loans receivable
and other receivables involves significant
management judgements and estimates in the
assessment of credit risk, the uses of models and
the choices of inputs in the calculation of ECL af the
reporting date. The information about the ECL on the
Group's loans receivable and other receivables is

disclosed in Note 42(al).
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

134

(a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
— Continved

(vii)

(viii)

Power to exercise significant influence

Where the Group holds over 20% of voting rights
(but not over 50%) and the Group does not exercise
significant influence, the investment is freated as
financial assets at FVTPL. Details are given in Note

20.

lease term of contracts with renewal options — Group
as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the
noncancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an opfion to extend the lease
if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option fo ferminate the lease
if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The
Group has an option, under certain of its leases, to
lease the assets for additional terms of five years. The
Group applies judgement in evaluating whether if is
reasonably cerfain fo exercise the option to renew.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incenfive for it to exercise the renewal
option. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is beyond its control
and affects its ability fo exercise (or not fo exercise)
the optfion fo renew (e.g. a change in business
strategy).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these

financial statement, other key sources of estimation

uncerfainty that have a significant risk of resuling a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within next financial year are as follows:

(i

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets
are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rafe in
order fo calculate the present value.

Incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest
rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay fo borrow over a similar ferm,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary tfo
obtain an asset of a similar value to the rightof-use
asset in o similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do
not enfer info financing fransactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted fo reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rafing).
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - Confinved

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continved

(i)

136

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group's financial statements require measurement at,
and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial
and nondinancial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in defermining fair value measurements
are cafegorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy” ) :

e level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

e level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

e level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

The classification of an itfem into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has
a significant effect on the fair value measurement
of the item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair value:
o Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 21)
For more detailed information in relation to the fair

value measurement of the items above, please refer
fo the applicable notes.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 7. WARDEHRE
An analysis of the Group's revenue from its principal activities for BN,/ FRAREEEEFEEREEZR
the period/year is as follows: ADITIR
Period from
1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZE—h&F
BA—HZ H=E
—E-hHF —E-NEF
+=—HA=+—A8 =A=+—H
iR IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T F#ET
Continuing operations BEEEER
Revenue from contracts with customers REBVBEREERNE155K
within the scope of HKFRS 15: BEEAZEFEHBA:
Trading of =&
— OBM toys —BEmEREIA 202,062 183,848
— Consumer electronic products —HEHEETE®R = 41,811
— Chinese health products — R R 88,827 154,660
— Others —Hfb - 5,153
290,889 385,472
Revenue from other sources: HRIFEBA :
— Money lending business —EE 21,470 23,258
— Investment in financial instruments —-KRESBMIA (2,390) 42,885
19,080 66,143
309,969 451,615
Discontinued operations DRIEREER
Revenue from contracts with customers within JA& 7 B 75 38R & 2 I
the scope of HKFRS 15: FISREERZ
BEEEHWA:
— OEM toys —REREREITA - 79,061
309,969 530,676
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Confinved

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

7. WARDEHRE —#
=y L ON: L

Period from 1 April 2019 to

31 December 2019
R-ZFB-NFHMA—H

E-E-NEF+ZA=1+-BHHH

Continuing operations

BEREXEY
Chinese
health
OBM toys products Total
BEmE
Segments i BlEmA RERGEM Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHR FHR FHR
Types of goods EmEa
Trading of 25
— Toys — A 202,062 - 202,062
— Chinese health products —HEREM = 88,827 88,827
Total et 202,062 88,827 290,889
Year ended 31 March 2019
HE-E-NE=A=1t-HLEE
Disconfinued
Continuing operations operations
B&LE
BREERR Rexn
Consumer Chinese
electronic health
OBM foys producs products Others Totd  OEM foys Tofal
Segments ik BEmME HEE R&%E
HEGR  BYERm  TERRER Hit @i HERR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FiER TEL TEL TR TEL TR
Types of goods EmEE
Trading of g5
= Toys & 183,848 = = = 183,848 79,061 262,909
- Consumer electronic producs - HEBETER - 41,811 - - 41811 - 41811
- Chinese health products -HRERER - - 154,660 - 154,660 - 154,660
- Others —Hfth = = = 5,153 5,153 S 5,153
Total ey 183,848 41811 154,660 5,153 385,472 79,061 464,533
138 China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Financial Statements
MERRME
31 December 2019 —Z—HALE+-_H=+—H

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved 7. W AR D EPRE 2

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers EEASHWABRE &
— Continved

Period from 1 April 2019
to 31 December 2019
R=F-h&HWA—H
E-E-hAF+-RA=+t-—HHM

Continuing operations

FREREER
Chinese health
OBM toys products Total
Segments Pl BEmE
BEmMA FREREm st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FERT
Geographical market % T 5
— United States of America and Canada —XBERMEX 194,675 = 194,675
— Europe (Note] — BN (FF5E) 3,538 - 3,538
— Australia — M 222 - 222
— Hong Kong — B 2,910 88,827 91,737
- Korea —EEH 82 - 82
— Others —Hitb 635 = 635
Total st 202,062 88,827 290,889
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7.

140

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
— Confinved

7. WARDEHRE &
EESHRARE &

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-Z-NE=B=t-HLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
B&L
BRLEER Bexy
Consumer Chinese
electronic hedlth
OBM foys products products Others Totdl  OEM foys Total
Segments k| BEmME HEE R&E
REGE  BEYER  TERER At ax  HEmA At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TART TATL TAT TAT TATL TART
Geographical market ETS
~ United States of America and =L YIEIN
Canada 172,998 S S - 172,998 13,440 186,438
~ Europe (Note] —BX (BizE) 6,083 = = = 6,083 29,252 35,335
- China —HE = 41,811 = 5,153 46,964 3,163 50,127
- Ausfralia M 625 = = = 625 1,581 2,206
- Japan -AR = = = = = 18,975 18,975
- Hong Kong &k 2,987 = 154,660 = 157,647 12 157,659
- Korea -8 = = = = = 3,162 3,162
- Indonesia i - - - - - 1,768 1,768
- Others —Eth 1,155 = = = 1,155 7,708 8,863
Total e 183,848 41811 154,660 5,153 385,472 79,061 464,533
Note:The products are first exported to one of the European fier: EmEENEEZ-—BNBER([RKEEO

countries (the “Shipping Port Countries”) and then disfributed
to different European countries by the customers. The
information as fo where the products are finally shipped
is unavailable and the cost of obfaining such information
would be excessive. The directors are of the opinion that
disclosing the identities of the Shipping Port Countries is

undesirable as such disclosure might be misleading.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

BRI BEREEPDHEITRBNE
K- EmRREMNEZAMNMLNER
BEEGEESEHER ZKEASE-
EXZRR RERXREBEOBRREHET
EE RACABABREANREEELRE-



Notes to the Financial Statements
MERRME
31 December 2019 —Z—HALE+-_H=+—H

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved 7. W AR D EBIRE 42

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers EFARNBWARE &
— Continved

Period from 1 April 2019
to 31 December 2019
R=F-h&HWA—H
E-E-hAF+-RA=+t-—HHM

Continuing operations

Chinese
health
OBM toys products Total
Segments 7 &b BEmE
REHA PERRM et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#5 FaR FRR
Timing of revenue recognition N
— At a point in fime —RE—KER 202,062 88,827 290,889
Year ended 31 March 2019
HE-Z-NE=A=+-HLFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
B&L
BERERY BExH
Consumer Chinese
electronic health
OBM toys products products Others Totdl  OEM foys Total
Segments k| BERRE HEE R&f
HEGR  BTER  TERRER Hif @i HERA @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK§000  HK§000  HK$'000
TAL TR TATL TAL TR TEL TR
Timing of revenue recognition EE N
~ At a point in fime ~RE-RRE 183,848 41,811 154,660 5153 385,472 79,061 464,533
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Confinved

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

7. WARDEHRE —#
=y N L ON:

— Continved
Period from 1 April 2019
to 31 December 2019
R-ZB-AFWMA—H
E-E-NF+ZA=+-HHH
Continuing operations
FEREER
Chinese
health
OBM toys products Total
Segments 7 &b BEmE
SUETA AR #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Sales channels/market or HERE/MHK
type of customers Ey Sk pil
— Retail /individual customers —ZRE AARF = 61,412 61,412
— Wholesale/corporate customers —#E® ERF 202,062 27,415 229,477
Total 4BET 202,062 88,827 290,889
Year ended 31 March 2019
B2-Z-NE=A=+-HLEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
BELSEER REE
Consumer Chinese
electronic health
OBM toys producs products Others Totdl  OEM foys Tofal
Segments kS BEmE HEE R&%E
REFE  BFER  TERER Hit @i HERA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tisn T TR T T
Sales channels/ HERE/MHEIEFER
marke or fype of cusiomers
- Retail /individual customers -2E/AARF - - 107,729 - 107,729 - 107,729
- Wholesale/corporate customers W%/ PERF 183,848 41,811 46,931 5,153 277,743 79,061 356,804
Total @it 183,848 41811 154,660 5153 385472 79,061 464,533
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (the
"CODM") that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has five reportable and operating segments in its
continuing operations. The segments are managed separafely
as each business offers different products and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group's reportable segmentfs:

e OBM foys: sale of own-brand toys

e Consumer electronic products: sale of consumer electronic
products

e Chinese health products: sale of Chinese health products
®  Money lending business: granting loans

4 Investment in financial instruments: investing in financial
instruments

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no infersegment sales in current period
and prior year. Corporate income and expenses are not
allocated to the operating segments as they are not included in
the measure of the segments’ profit or loss that is used by the
CODM for assessment of segment performance.

The Group disposed of the consumer electronic products segment
during the current period fo maich its business strategy and
improve its financial position. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the disposal of consumer electronic products segment
during the current period does not consfitute a discontinued
operation as it does not represent a separate major line of
business of the Group during the current period and prior year.

The Group disposed of the OEM toys segment during the prior
year. The CODM considered the necessity of reporting the
OEM toys segment separately under discontinued operations
in accordance with HKFRS 5 as the OEM toys segment was a
separate major line of business of the Group.
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved 7. W AR D EPIReE &

(a) Segment revenue and results (a) ZEBAKZEE
For the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 R=F-NFHA-BE=-F-h#F

t=ZA=+—BHME

Chinese ~ Consumer ~ Money Investment  Reportable

health elecironic ~lending in financial ~ segment
OBMtoys  products  products  business ~ instruments fofal Others Tofal
BERGE  TER  HER RESR RS

BEmA R ETER REXE IR 284F At &3t
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn TEz TEx TEn FEx TEn TER @ TA=n

(Note)
(M)
Revenue to external customers MBEERA 202,062 88,827 - 21,470 (2,390) 309,969 - 309,969
Segment (loss)/ profit before BREERA S
income fax (B&)/ &7 (7,376)  (18,421)  (22,199) 2,015 (60,791) (106,772) 3,713 (103,059)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE-_T-NEF=-A=+—HILFE
Disconfinued
Continuing operations operations
BRI
REEZEHE maz
Consumer Chinese Money  Invesiment  Reporiable
electronic health lending  in financial segment
OBM foys products products business  insiumels fotol Others Toiol  OEMfoys Total
BERE HER ER RESR BE R
RETR  ETER R REXE IE  7WEE £ it mEnA &t

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKH0O0  HK$000
T TR TR TR TR Tian TAL T TR TR

[Note)
(H3t)
Revenue fo external customers IBEEMA 183,848 41811 154,660 23,258 42885 446,462 5158 451615 79,061 530,676
Segment {loss}/ profit before RHERAS S
income fox (BR)/ &% (249200 (15789 1733 7971 (1855 (32,862 (3,375 [36,237)  (34,667) (70,904
Note: B sE -
Others reported above represents revenue and results generated EXFERMNEMEREETREEERELAZ
by the sale of commercial kitchen products. WA R ELE -
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M| R EE

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Coniinved 7. W AR D EIReE &

DEBBRAREE#

(a) Segment revenue and results — Continved (a)

Period from

1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZE—I%F
A—HZE H=E
—E-hEF ZE-NF
+=A=+-8B =A=1-§
HA [ LEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations RHBREER
— Reportable segment loss — Al FRE H E AR (106,772) (32,862)
— Other profit/(loss) —HfER, (&) 3,713 (3,375)
Discontinued operations ERIEEEER
— Segment loss — DI E1E = (34,667)
(103,059 (70,904)
Unallocated interest income RO BEF B WA 3 121
Gain on deemed disposal of bonds BIELEESF K= - 2,410
Unallocated finance costs 5 Bt jh & B AR (16,639) (7,760
Unallocated corporate (expenses)/ AOBAR () WA
income
— Staff costs —B I (8,039) (23,145)
— legal and professional fee —EREREXER (479) (5,220)
— Others —HA 1,886 (1,881)
Consolidated loss before income tax BRETISRRIAR G 18 (126,327) (106,379
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7.

146

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved

—E-AFT=A=t-8

7. WARDEHRE =

Segment assets and liabilities b) IMBEEHEEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assefs and ATREAEERARED B SNHE
liabilities by reportable segment: ERBEZIN:
At At
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZE—h#F RZE—NF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Segment assets DEEE
OBM foys 5B SR ETA 68,346 73,392
Consumer electronic products HEBEETE® = 6,928
Chinese health products R SR fiE o 103,107 Q0,479
Money lending business WEE 281,299 284,379
Investment in financial instruments HESMmTHE 138,811 231,990
Segment assets DEEE 591,563 687,168
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEABEE
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReRREEEY 6,346 9,821
— Other receivables, deposits and —Huib WA & &
prepayments TR RIE 518 485
— Others —E At - 318
Consolidated total assets e EERE 598,427 697,792
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR
31 December 2019 —Z—HALE+-_H=+—H

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Coniinved 7. W AR D EIReE &

(b) Segment assets and liabilities — Continved b) PHEEHEAERE &
At At
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=-ZE—hfF RZE—NIF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Segment liabilities DEBEE

OBM toys BEEmERETA 112,217 110,608
Consumer electronic products HERETEM = 55,520
Chinese health products AR 37,266 7,139
Money lending business WEEB 5,494 1,158
Others HAith - 22,329
Segment liabilities nEEE 154,977 196,754

Unallocated corporate liabilities AP RARIAEG
— Convertible loan notes — AR EREE 110,038 100,891
— Others —Hfh 6,739 6,707
Consolidated total liabilities LEBERTE 271,754 304,352
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MR ERME
31 December 2019 —E—hAFE+_-_A=+—H

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved 7. W AR D EPIReE &

(c) Other segment information included in segment () PHEERNIBEEZHMSD &
results or segment assets &8
For the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 R-B-hFHRA-BEZF-IHF

+=ZB=+—HHH

Continuing operations
(4

BRLEER
Consumer Chinese Money  Investment
electronic health lending  in financial
OBMtoys  products  products  business  insfruments Others  Unallocated Total
aaEE REE  ER h :
REmE  BTER m HEXB SRIE Ht KB At

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AR TARL TAR TAL TAR ThAL TAR ThART

Bank inferest income RATFIBHA = = = (164] - - ) (167)
Inferest expenses FSE% 1,393 = 834 189 = = 16,639 19,055
Depreciation of property, nE BERRXENE

plant and equipment 797 - 490 - - - - 1,287
Depreciation of rightoFuse EREEENE

assefs 375 - 7,859 1,466 - - - 9,700
Impairment loss on rightofuse ~ EAEAERIERE

assefs - = 5778 = = - = 5,778
Impaiment loss on loans EUETREERFE

receivable, net = = = 5,593 = - = 5,593
Impairment loss on frade BB BRI REM

and other receivables [EWFOR 2 REER 2,603 - = - - - = 2,603
Loss on disposal of HENBARRZ

subsidiaries, net BEFE - - - - = - 13,991 13,991
Fair value loss on financial BRATEGABRZ

assets at FVTPL, net REEZATE

BiEFE - - - - 58,094 - - 58,094

Impairment loss on EWAERERRE

infangiole assets = = 5,004 - = = - 5,094
Impaiment loss on goodwil ~ EEREFE - - 614 - - - - 614
Employee costs (including EERA (AHEES

directors remuneration) #¢) 6,017 - 15,926 8,416 - - 8,039 38,398
Additions fo property, RENZ HERRE

plant and equipment 2,897 - 374 - - - - 3,271
Other segment information HEBEAREEH

regu\oﬁy provided R A3

fo CODM: EH:
Income tax (credi]/expense ~ FIBH (B&)/B% (718) - (840) 1,177 - - 928 547
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR
31 December 2019 —Z—HALE+-_H=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved 7. W AR D EIRE 2

(c) Other segment information included in segment ) PBEERNIHEEZHMD I
results or segment assets — Continved ER-#&
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE_Z-NF=A=+—HBLFE
Disconfinued
Confinuing operafions operafions
B&L
Lexh
Consumer Chinese Mongy — Invesiment
lectionic healh lending  in financial
OBM toys producs products business  instumens Oters Unallocated Tol  OEMioys Tolal
EpLt HER hER R& Rk
PEnE 37ER BR  HEXE  2RIA ifs AR gt REnd it

HKF000  HKBOOO  HKS000  HK§000  HK§000  HKY000  HK$000  HKFO00  HKFOOO  HK§O0O
TEr TEn TEn TEn Thn TR A AR Thn FEn

Bank inferest income FFERA - - 13 1427) - - n21) 551 2 553
Inerest expenses FERT 700 352 21 - - 6 7760 8,839 2720 11,559
Deprecicfon of propert, % RERRENE

plont and equipment 2967 = 1157 = = = = 4,144 9 4153
Impairment loss on propert, n% BERRAEREEE

plont and equipment 10,145 S S S S o o 10,145 S 10,145
Impaiment loss on inventories FERERE - 8,008 - - - - - 8,008 - 8,008
Impaiment loss on loans receivable R EFHEEE & - - 5,109 - - - 5109 - 5109
Impairment loss on frade and EURAESREDEY

other receivables FEZAEEE 3,505 - - - - - - 3,505 - 3,505
Gain on disposal of subsiciories ~ HEMBAT 24z = - - - - - - (11,620 (11,620
Fair value loss on finonciol ossets AT (ERF AR

af FVTPL, net SRHEEINTE

BEEE - - - - 42,509 - - 42,509 S 42 509

Impairment loss on goodsll BERERS 2,500 = = = = = = - 2,500
Employee costs incuding dieclors BB A (B EEEMS)

remuneration| 8,863 4102 22,769 21,590 - - 23,145 80,469 - 80,469
Additons fo property TENE BRRSE

plont and equipment 6,360 = 2147 = = = = 6,607 505 7,112
Other segment information requloiory & & &A% E E BiR

provided to CODM EABER:
Income (credi g (#2) (192) S [918) - - - 857) [1.967) - 1.967)
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MR ERME
31 December 2019 —E—hAFE+_-_A=+—H

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved 7. W AR D EPIReE &

(d) Geographical information (d) #EEHR
Information about the Group's revenue for the period from ERAEERBERMEMELRE
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 and non-current EffftizttEsBR - NFWN
assets at 31 December 2019 by geographical region, A—BE_Z-AF+-A=+—H
according fo the location which the product is shipped and HEZBAERRZZTE-AF+H
the location of assets, is as follows: —t+—BRERBEEERTNT

Non-current

Revenue assets

KA RBEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

(Note (i)

(B E(i)

United States of America and Canada EB M INEKXR 194,675 679

Europe (Note {ii)) BOM B =Eii)) 3,538 -

Australia SEM 222 =

Hong Kong (Note (iii)) a7 (MIE(i) 111,534 16,298

309,969 16,977

150 China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



7.

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR
31 December 2019 —Z—HALE+-_H=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Continved 7. W AR D EIRE 2

(d)

Geographical information — Confinved

d) HEER -

Year ended
31 March At 31 March
2019 2019

HZE
—E-NF »n
=RA=+—H —E-NF

EE =ZA=+—8H

Non-current

Revenue assefs
WA EmBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Note (i)
CHEEEN)
Continuing operations KFECEXRK

United States of America and Canada EE R INEXR 172,998 2,037
Europe (Note |ii)) BOM (B R (i) ) 6,083 -
China s 46,964 -
Australia SELM 625 -
Hong Kong (Note {iii)) B (MIE(ii) 223,790 6,614
Indonesia e 1,155 -
451,615 8,651

Discontinued operations ERIEREER
United States of America and Canada EEEIMER 13,440 -
Europe (Note |ii)) BOM (B R (i) ) 29,252 -
China s 3,163 -
Awustralia SEM 1,581 -
Japan H 7 18,975 -
Hong Kong E 12 =
Korea BE [ 3,162 -
Indonesia E= 1,768 -
Others Hit 7,708 -
79,061 -
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MR ERME
31 December 2019 —E—hAFE+_-_A=+—H

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING - Confinved

(d) Geographical information — Continved

Notes:
(i) Excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments.

[i) ~ The products are first exported to one of the Shipping
Port Countries and then distributed to different European
countries by the customers. The information as fo where
the products are finally shipped is unavailable and the cost
of obtaining such information would be excessive. The
directors are of the opinion that disclosing the identities of
the Shipping Port Counfries is undesirable as such disclosure
might be misleading.

(i) Revenue from interest income, dividend income and sale of
financial instruments are disclosed by location of operations.

(e) Information on major customers:

Revenue from major customers who have individually
confributed to 10% or more of the fofal revenue of the
Group are disclosed as follows:

Customer A! BEA
Customer B! =FB

1

Included in the OBM tfoys segment.

None of the external customers contributed 10% or more
of the Group's revenue during the year ended 31 March
2019.
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7. WARDEEBRE-—#
d HBEHN-&
Bt o -
(i) TEREERBEEERESRI A

) EmEisMNEE-—RKEEOEXR
ErmEPOHITRBMERK -
EmBREMRMEZ B NN ER
BAESARGAREN ZNAS
E-EERA RERKEEOEKRE
HBETAE RESEMBET
SELREG-

i) FBWA BREBEALRBEEZRT
B2 WA TR & S B 05

) TEEFZEH:

KB fE B & RRA 5 F A U A 10%3k A
FHFERER ZRARENT

Period from

1 April 2019 to
31 December
2019
R=ZB-NF
mMA—BAZE
—E-hEF
+=A=+—8
B
HK$'000
FAT

53,846
32,213

‘ FRABAmERETAD AL
RBE-_T-NF=A=1t—HLF

B AW EIBEFPEBMASBEAKRA
10%3K LA o



Notes to the Financial Statements
MERRME
31 December 2019 —Z—HALE+-_H=+—H

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 8. HtA WEREER B

Period from
1 April 2019 to

31 December Year ended
2019 31 March 2019
R=-ZE—h&F
A—HZE H=E
—E-hEF —E-NEF
+=A=+-B =A=+-"
HA [ LEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations BEREXEYR
Bank interest income RITHBUA 167 551
Fair value loss on financial assets BERAFEFABRZEREEL
at FVTPL, net N EEEFRE (58,094) (42,509)
loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEMBARZER F5HE (13,991) -
loss on de-egistration of a subsidiary 3185 — R & A R &8 = (19)
Gain on deemed disposal of bonds BIEH EESF W = 2,410
loss on disposal of property, HEWME BERREEE
plant and equipment (247) (126)
Impairment loss on trade and FEUE 5 BR X e H M E W RIE 2
other receivables REEE (2,603) (3,505)
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net FEWE 3K 2 i B &8 /F 5 (5,593) (5,109
Exchange losses, net M W 1E - JF R = (100)
Others H A, (1,885) 1,883
(82,246) (46,524)
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
Bank interest income BITHREHA - 2
Exchange losses, net P W B8 - )RR = (1,313)
Others Hih - Q4
- (1.217)
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9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BREFBHATEE
BRSEES

R T 2 R RS BT A5 R
TS B S HE A

(a) Continuing operations (a)

Loss before income tax from continuing operations is arrived
at after charging:

154

Period from
1 April 2019 to
31 December Year ended
2019 31 March 2019
R=F—-"%F
B—H=E B=
—E-hF —T-NF
+t=A=+—-8H =A=+—H
HE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THETT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEERAE 222,401 278,878
Impairment loss on inventfories FEREEE = 8,008
Costs of inventories recognised WRARMZ ZFEKRAR
ds expenses 222,401 286,886
Auditor's remuneration ZERD B & 2,152 2,354
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREETE
equipment 1,287 4,144
Depreciation of rightof-use assets EREEENE 9,700 =
Employee costs [excluding directors’ BB A (T BIEEEHE)
emoluments) (Note 14) (FIzE14) 27,868 54,778
Directors” emoluments (Note 15) EE=Me (MIFE15) 10,530 25,691
Equity-setfled share-based payment AR AR RER A
expenses, included MRFEX (FAEEHE)
in directors” emoluments = 15,742
Research and development costs HERAR (AR K
(included in general and THER)
administrafive expenses) 2,250 10,209
Shorterm leases expenses EHHEERY 4,619 -
Total minimum lease payments HERBBEEEGTAER
for leases in respect of BI7ROBERKETHE
properties previously classified as MENHEZRERE
operating leases under HKAS 17 R 4B R - 20,421
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Q. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX - Confinved

(b)

Discontinued operations

On 14 December 2018

and purchase agreements to dispose of the entire equity

, the Group enfered info sale

interests in its subsidiaries (namely lung Cheong Asia
Holdings Limited, Kid Galaxy Global Limited and lung
Cheong Overseas Corporation, collectively the “Disposal
Companies”). The disposal was completed on 30 January

2019

Companies and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”),

, the date on which the control of the Disposal

which engaged in manufacturing and sale of OEM toys
passed to the acquirer. The sales, results and net assets of
the Disposal Group were as follows:

A3 40 R PR

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

9. BRATEHAIEBE -~
b) B @

RZF-N\F+ZA+THA A&HE
RIEE W UHEEMBAR A
Lung Cheong Asia Holdings Limited * Kid
Calaxy Clobal limited % lung Cheong
Overseas Corporation (##8 [ 1 & A
A2k AER - FRLER-F
—hF—-—A=+HB(AMEERAF R
MBAR(THEEE] RERRKE
%Lfﬂﬂgﬁ_&fﬁﬁ)m? R

REANEB)TTHK - HEEERH
% FENMNEEFENT:

Period from
1 April
2018 to
30 January
2019
R-ZF-NF
A—H=Z
—E-NF
—A=+H
S
HK$’000
FET
Revenue A 79,061
Expenses Fx (125,348)
Loss before gain on disposal of operations B & 4% & ¥ #5 Wz K AT S B AT &S 18
and income fax (46,287)
Gain on disposal of operations HELERBRE 11,620
Loss before income tax from discontinued BRIRE B R ILEEEBPENAIER
operations (34,667)
Income tax PR -
Loss for the period from HARBE R IEREXBNER
discontinued operations (34,667)
Operating cash flows RERERE 19,814
Investing cash flows KERBME (505)
Financing cash flows BMERSME (13,244)
Total cash flows MIEERE (6,065)
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9.

10.

156

—E-AFT=A=t-8

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX - Continved

(b) Discontinued operations — Continved

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
Disposal Group at the dafe of complefion of the disposal

are disclosed in Note 34(b).

Reclassification of exchange differences to profit or loss of
HK$35,705,000 were recognised upon the disposal of
the Disposal Group, being the proceeds of disposal less
the carrying amount of the Disposal Group's net liabilities.
As a result, a gain of HK$11,620,000 was recognised.

No tax charge or credit arose from the disposal.

FINANCE COSTS

9. BRETGHAIEIE -~
b) B#&IQEEIE—

REEFRTKEHZHEEENE
B N BB REE R E34(b) B -

REEHEEBERERKBELEZR
EFOEEEaZ=—THABEL TS
R TR (B &8 sER & &
BEEFRIEmME) Hit K
—T-ART_BETCDE®R-F
AL ELBEAREERNE R -

10. B

Period from
1 April
2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZE—h&F
A—B=% HE
—E-hE —E-NF
+=—HA=+—H =A=+—H
iR IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T
Total interest expenses for financial WIR A FEFABRZ
liabilities that are not at FVTPL: TREBEMNSMZERE:
Continuing operations FREREXER
Inferests on borrowings BER B 1,341 1,079
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 1,078 -
Interest on convertible loan notes AR ERERF A 16,636 7,760
19,055 8,839
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
Interests on borrowings BB L = 2,720
- 11,559
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Notes to the Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax for a Company’s subsidiary
in Hong Kong for the current period is calculated at 8.25%
on the estimated assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000 and
16.5% on any part of the estimated assessable profits over
HK$2,000,000. No Hong Kong profits tax was provided for the
Compoany's other subsidiaries in Hong Kong for the current period
and prior year as they either did not derive any assessable profits
or had esftimated tax losses brought forward to offset against the
estimated assessable profits.

No enterprise income fax has been provided as the Company’s
other subsidiaries in the PRC did not derive any assessable profits
for the current period and prior year arising from the PRC.

The amount of income tax expense/|credit) in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents:

A3 40 R PR

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

1. rEBiMx, (E2)

RAHE  ARAREEN—BHBARZ
BENESHBER VAT ERBEN RS
—HERETHANSZ N \H A RMGEER
HEMBE—aRATNEIMHEoNE D
ZHABAGE ARAHERBEFER
RARNBBNHEMBEMNBRARALRESE
TAAIERRB G A - IR G AR R IR R
HHGERTEN Rt AR ZF QA
EREABNEHER-

AR B H) E At P B P 8 2 7] AN ] Je
BEFEI RN BEELEEAERB G -
R RBZF R RHER R RAE TR -

G218 R H b2 E KK P12 TS B
%/ (E%)SEH:

Period from
1 April
2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=F-I%F
B—H=ZE BE
—E-hF —E-NEF
+=A=+—-8 =“A=+—H
A IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THTT
Continuing operations FEREXE
Current tax BN ERFR 18
— Tox for the period/year -8R/ FARIE 1,101 -
— Under-provision —BEFERBTE
in respect of prior years 3,832 =
Deferred tax RIERIA (4,386) (1,967)
Income tax expense/[credit) FrisBims (%) 547 (1,967
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
Deferred tax PR FE TR A
— current period/year — R REE = -
Income tax FAS%0 — —
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MR ERME
31 December 2019 —E—hAFE+_-_A=+—H

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) - Continved 11. FIBHEX (E&e) —#
The income tax expense/(credit) for the period/year can A, F A TS %RE*EJS'Z/ (E&)EHRira
be reconciled to the loss before income tax from continuing BakEM2EHKGERFHRERFE 2‘«
operations in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and B ZBRASHAEBEERNT
other comprehensive income as follows:
Period from
1 April
2019 to Year ended
31 December 1 March
2019 2019
R=F—h%
B—H=ZE BE
—B-AEF —ZE-NF
+t=A=+—H =A=+—H
A IFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Continuing operations FEREER
loss before income tax B P15 %54 Bl B 18 (126,327) (/1,712
Tax calculated at the applicable tax RERATE (A2 tREER)
rate of 16.5% AHEZBIA (20,844) (11,833
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries H fih &% # % &8 2 M B A
operating in other jurisdictions TRRE 2 ZE (24) (2,254)
Tax effect of income not taxable BANBWANTBZE
for tax purposes (87) (7,674)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AEHBA O RE T E
for tax purposes 16,723 16,550
Under-provision in respect of prior years i81F F EEE T2 3,832 =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~— RIERFIEBEH TG E 3,139 6,641
Utilisation of tax losses previously not PHRBERERTIARBRE
recognised (244) (391)
Others H A, (1,948) (3,006)
Income tax expense/(credit) eSS (K&) 547 (1,967)
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
loss before income tax B P15 %54 Bl B 18 = (34,667
Tax calculated at the applicable tax RERBE (ADZ
rate of 16.5% TRER)FEZHE = (5,720
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries H fth F]% # @ & & 2 f{ B A 7
operating in other jurisdictions TRMEK & - (1,758)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible NAIHB X B E
for tax purposes - 1,554
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ RIERTIABENT G E = 5,924

Income tax expense PS5 3 =
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12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

Notes to the Financial Statements

The direcfors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the
period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 [year ended

31 March 2019: Nil).

A3 40 R PR

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

12. BB
EEMEBRNR -_T-AFEHA—-HBEZ
T-NFTZA=1+—RHEBRZEHIRE (&
EE-NF=ZA=+—HILFE: &)

LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREE
Period from
1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=F-"%F
BA—H=E BH=E
—E-hF —E-NEF
+=—A=+—8H =A=+—H
S IEFE
HK cents HK cents
A AL
Continuing operations BERKEXR
Basic loss per share BREXRERE (1.53) (0.72)
Diluted loss per share (Note) FREEEE (W) (1.53) (0.72)
Discontinued operations ERIEREXER
Basic loss per share GREAXERE = (0.41)
Diluted loss per share (Note) SREEEE (W) - (0.41)

TREEREERARAE —TNAFH 159



Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME
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13. LOSS PER SHARE - Continved

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to

13. BREE =

ARBFEAANERIEERERRBEEBRT

160

owners of the Company is based on the following data: RIBLAT BB E
Period from
1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-B-IF
B—HB=ZE =
ZE-hEF —T-hF
+=—HA=+—H =—A=+—H
M IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Loss for the period/year atiributable o~ AT EFRER R EEE 2
owners of the Company from RARHEBANEBIERFERLE
confinuing operations, used EBzHR/FRES
in the basic and diluted loss
per share calculations (124,345) (60,649)
loss for the period/year atiributable o AT EGRERREEEIE 2
owners of the Company from RABHEBAEIEERLE
discontinued operations, used R AN FREE
in the basic and diluted loss
per share calculations = (34,667)
At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
R=-Z—N#F RZZE—-NF
+=A=+-8 =A=+-*~
Number of shares R4 BB
Weighted average number of ordinary  RMAFFEEBRERNREEEE 2
shares for the purposes of basic and B nETFHEE
diluted loss per share 8,107,954,545 8,451,280,603

Note: No adjustment is made in arriving at diluted loss per share for

the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 as the

effect of all potential ordinary shares from convertible loan notes

outstanding is antidiluive, No adjustment is made in arriving af
diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2019 as the

effect of all potential ordinary shares from share opfions granted

and convertible loan notes issued during the year was antidilutive.
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14. EMPLOYEE COSTS 14. EE A
Employee costs (excluding directors” emoluments) comprise: BEKK (THREEEME)BE:
Period from
1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-B-IF
A—HZ HE
—E-hEF —E-hNF
+=HA=+—H =—A=+—E
iR HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries and discrefionary bonus  E AN Fr & & BYIEIEAL 25,948 49131
Shortterm non-monetary benefits % HSEE R A 972 4,287
Contributions to defined contribution TERHEFRIKRESE 8 2 7
refirement plans 948 1,360
27,868 54,778
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15. DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

15. EEREREEAEZHE

(a) Directors’ emoluments () EEME
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable EfRRENRARER e EEN
to the directors of the Company are as follows: N
Period from
1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-B-IHF
A—BZ% HE
—E-hEF —E-hF
+=—A=+—H =A=+—H
Hi S EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Directors’ fee EEHE 5,621 4,101
Other emoluments: HEie :
Basic salaries, discrefionary bonus, EAXEH e BBIEA -
housing and other allowances and FERHEAMER R
benefits in kind EYWHz= 4,867 5,810
Provident fund scheme contributions NIESEFTE 27 42 38
Equity-sefled share-based payment LARE 25 45 H DARR (0 i 2 1
expenses (Nofe (al) R 3R 2 (B () - 15,742
10,530 25,691
[a)  These amounts represent the estimated value of share o) ZEFBEHRBEARQGBERETS

options granted to the directors under the Company's
share option scheme. The value of these share opfions is
measured according to the accounting policies for share-
based payments as set out in Note 5(o). Further details of
the options granted are set out in Note 32.

[b)  No emoluments have been paid by the Group fo the
directors as an inducement fo join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the
period/year. No directors waived their emoluments in
respect of the current period and prior year.
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 15 BEEREHREEBEAEYME #

EMOLUMENTS - Continved

(a) Directors’ emoluments — Continved

The emolument of each director for the period from 1 April
2019 to 31 December 2019 is sef out below:

o) EEBME &

R-B-NFMA-RE-T-NE
+ZA=t+-AMH SEE2M

I
Housing
Basic salaries and other Equity-seftled
and  allowances Provident  sharebased
discretionary  and benefits  fund scheme payment
Name of director E=pR Fees bonus inkind  confributions expenses Total
EERHM NEREE
EXFe BER DSREH#Z UROHAER
e RBBEA LIk #®  HAREX @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TERT TR TR
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai FRELLE 3,060 - - - - 3,060
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion REREE
[appointed on 28 Ocober 2019) (R=B-hF
TAZ+NR
BZA) 21 - - - - 21
Mr. leung Alex PARELE 90 2,633 - 14 - 2,737
Ms. lo Ming Wan BBt 90 712 - 14 - 816
Mr. Tse Chi Keung EIEE:§ia 90 1,522 - 14 - 1,626
Mr. Yuan Hui Xia REELE 1,931 - - - - 1,931
Non-execufive director FYITES
M. Digo Yunfeng NEEfE
[resigned on 28 Oclober 2019) (RZE-h%
TAZT\BEH) 69 - - - - 69
Independent non-executive BukHTES
directors
Mr. Lai Hok Lim REREE 90 - - - - 90
Mr. Lien Wai Hung EEEEE 90 - - - - 90
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BEALE 90 - - - - 90
5,621 4,867 - 42 - 10,530
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 15 BERESHREBAEYMES ~#
EMOLUMENTS - Confinved

(a) Directors’ emoluments — Continved () EEMe-#
The emolument of each director for the year ended HE_ZT-NF=A=1+—HILLFE"
31 March 2019 is set out below: EEZZMEHIIMT
Housing

Basic salaries and other Equity-sefiled

and  allowances Provident  sharebased

discrefionary  and benefits  fund scheme payment
Name of director BE=pg Fees bonus inkind  contribufions expenses Tofal

(£ R E Py et

ELEE RER DESHEz UARHAER
we  RBBREa EDNE 5 BNFAX @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Executive directors HiTES
M. Lei Hong Wai FiEEE 2,210 - - - 3,035 6,145
Mr. Leung Alex REBLHE 120 1,844 - 8 3,936 5,008
Ms. Lo Ming Wan BHRHTT 120 736 - 12 3,936 4,804
Mr. Tse Chi Keung MEREE 120 2,856 - 18 3,085 6,929
Mr. Yuan Hui Xia REERA
[appointed on & November 2018) (RZB-N\F
+—-A~BEZE) 979 374 = = = 1,353
Mr. lee Chan Wah FhRERE
[resigned on 6 November 2018) (RZB-N\F
+-AXBEE) 72 - - - - 72
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Dico Yunfeng NEBfE 120 S S S S 120
Independent non-executive BIFETES
directors
Mr. Lai Hok Lim REREE 120 = = = = 120
M. Lien Wai Hung BREEE 120 S S S S 120
Mr. Wong Tok Chuen BEALHE 120 = = = = 120

4,101 5,810 = 38 15,742 25,691
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EMOLUMENTS - Continved

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Five (for the year ended 31 March 2019: four) directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in the analysis presented
above were among the five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group during the period from
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019. The emoluments
payable to the remaining one highest paid individual
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

(b)

15. EEREREEAEZHE »

hAfVERSHFMAL

R-E-NFOA-HE_Z—AN#F
tT-A=+—HBHME A% (BHEZ
E-NFZA=t—HLFE:HH)
EECMEN EX2NAEE ALK
BEFMALTZOMFPRE-BE_F
—NEFE=ZA=+—RHILFE EBHT
BT RSHFMALTZMESIT

Period from
1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-B-I%F
A—HB=%
—E-hE BEZZT-ILF
+=—A=+—AH =A=+—H
HA HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries, discrefionary bonus, EX#FHe WAL
housing and other allowances and EFE M EMZRL K&
benefits in kind EWH = = 1,900
Provident fund scheme contributions NESEE ZHX - -
- 1,900
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 15 BERSHREBAEMES #
EMOLUMENTS - Confinved

(b) Five highest paid individuals - Continved b) EUERSHFMAL-Z
The emoluments paid or payable to the above individual ERSERM E AT ZFHBMAFIAT
were within the following band: HEA:
Period from
1 April 2019 Year ended
to 31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=F—h&
A—BZ
—E-h&E HE-T-NF
+t=A=+—-8H =A=+—H
A FFE
No. of No. of
Individuals Individuals
A" AB
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 —BLATEZ—BIE
—HEBT - 1
(c) Senior management’s emolument c) EREEBAEZHE
The emoluments paid or payable to the senior management ENRENSREBAE (TREE
[excluding directors) were within the following band: BIZHENFUATHER :
Period from
1 April 2019 Year ended
to 31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=F—-h&
B—BZ S
—E-hE —FNF
+t=A=t+—-8 =A=+—H
B LFE
No. of No. of
Individuals Individuals
A" N
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 E+8Z—#TE
—BHEBTT - 1
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% -BERRE
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold Plantand ~ fixtures and Motor
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Moulds Total
K- RXEBR
TiRET HENERE HERESR B AE HA @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEx TEL Tign TEx TEL TEL

At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=1+—-H
Cost A 80,074 2,241 54,797 23,124 1,273 15,548 177,057
Accumulated impairment ZETRE - (183) [20,190) (6,705) 477) - [27.555)
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (4,761) 1,393) (34,607 [14,905) (796 6,946) 163,408)
Net book value BEFE 75,313 665 S 1,514 S 8,602 86,004
Net book amount af 1 Apiil 2018 RZE-\ENA-AZEEFE 75,313 665 S 1,514 S 8,602 86,004
Disposed through disposal BALENBEARMLEE
of subsidiaries [73,378) S (991) = S S [74,369)
Additions RE S 65 419 551 S 6,077 7112
Provision for impairment FERE - - - - - (10,145) 110,145
Disposals HeE - - - [126) - - [126)
Depreciation charge EIH S [499) S 1667) S (2,987 (4,153
Exchange differences EHEE (1,935) [104) 572 (252) - 249 (1,470)
Nef book value ot 31 March 2019 RZZ—-n&=A=+—-H2
BEFE S 127 S 1,020 S 1,796 2943
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=+-H
Cost A - 2,242 - 6,247 288 21,677 30,454
Accumulated impairment ZiRE = [171) S [401) [205) (10,145) [10,922)
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE - [1,944) - (4,826 83) 9,736) [16,589)
Net book value EEFE S 127 S 1,020 - 1,796 2,943
Net book amount af T April 2019 RIE-NENA—BzEEFE - 127 - 1,020 - 1,796 2,943
Additions RE = 288 = 266 S 2717 3,271
Disposals L& - = = 128 S [375) (247)
Depreciation charge EZH - [242) - 1502) - (543) (1,287)
Exchange differences EXER S 104 S = = 119 223
Net book value at RZE-NF+ZRA=+—-H
31 December 2019 ZEEFE S 277 S 912 S 3,714 4,903
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+=A=+—H
Cost A - 881 - 5497 - 24,394 30,772
Accumulated impairment ZERE - - - - - (10,145 110,145
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE - [604) - (4,585) - (10,535 115,724
Net book value EEFE - 277 - 912 - 3714 4,903
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Confinved

168

Notes:

(al

(b)

(c)

As at 31 December 2019, fixiure and equipment with carrying
amount of HK$379,000 (31 March 2019: HK$449,000) were
pledged to secure designated banking facility and borrowing
(Note 28).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, as the Group continued
to record losses for OBM toys segment, the Management
considered there was indication for impairment for the noninancial
assets in this segment, representing property, plant and equipment

of HK$12,182,000.

The recoverable amount of CGU was based on the value in
use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the Management
covering a fiveyear period, and pretax discount rate of 19%.
Other key assumption for the value in use calculation relates to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance
and the Management's expectations for the market development.
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond
the five-year period is 2%, which do not exceed the longterm
growth rate for the indusiry in the corresponding country. The
Management believes that any reasonable and possible change
in any of this assumption would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount fo exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Accordingly,
impairment loss in the aggregate of HK$10,145,000 was
recognised in profit or loss.

No impairment loss is recognised for the Group's property, plant

and equipment for the current period upon the complefion of
impairment assessment as set out in Nofe 18.
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17. LEASES

HKFRS 16 was adopted af 1 April 2019 without restatement
of comparative figures. For an explanation of the fransitional
requirements that were applied as at 1 April 2019, see Note
3(a). The accounting policies applied subsequent to the date of
initial application, 1 April 2019, are disclosed in Note 5(e).

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of shops and office properties in
the jurisdictions from which it operates. Cerfain leases of shops
comprise variable lease payments that depends on the original
monthly sales of those shops if the amounts are higher than the
original monthly rental. The rest of leases comprise only fixed
payments over the lease ferms.

The Group has an option, under certain of ifs leases, to lease the
properties for additional terms of five years. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating that it is reasonably certain not to
exercise the option fo renew.

Buildings leased for own use, carried
at depreciated cost

e mmBRENET
(3247 8 P A F R )

A3 40 R PR

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

17. &

EEVBRELENFIOHEN T —HEN
A—RERK WA2IEHFT-FER
—E-AEFENA-—BERMNBERTZH
@RS BEEXAERBH (=
T—hEMA—B)ERNSTBENHE
5le)#E 55 o

HEZRBNME (UEBASH)

AEERELSEMENRERERAEET
AL AYE - ETEREERRTEM
ENR ZENFEBRRZEEHIIG AE
HER(MZeBESRNBEAEES) - &
THEEREREARNEEMK-

RIEEETHE AEEAREE/YEM
HEMNERAF - AEERFEISERT
TAITEEB R RS IR A 1

31 December

2019 1 April 2019
—E-hF —E-NF
+=A=+—H WA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET

12,074 15,290
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17. LEASES - Continved 17. A€ -#

HEEBNME (UEBASH) &

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) -

Continved
The analysis of expense items in relation fo leases recognised in HEERTREANEEEENRXIER H
profit or loss is as follows: M :

Period from
1 April 2019 to
31 December

2019

R-B-IF

R—B=Z

—F-NF+=A

S bl

HK$'000

FHET

Variable lease payments not included in AT AHEB B ENFIBHHEENNK

the measurement of lease liabilities 16

Shortterm lease expense % HATE B F < 4,619

low-value lease expense KEEHEERX -
The total cash outflow for leases for the period from 1 April RZZE—-NFMOA— ElE_Zi nFE+=
2019 to 31 December 2019 was HK$14,975,000. A= + BHEMEERSTLEES

—FTOBEA+LE&ERETERT-

Potential future rental payments relating to leases not yet BEAEER _T-NAF+_A=1+—8BK

ANERFIEHERRNEERRBEEN:

commenced fo which the Group is committed as at 31 December

2019:
Potential future lease payments
(undiscounted)
BEEAREEAR
(RHR)

Later than

Future cash one year and

outflow Not later than not later than
(discounted) one year two years Total

AREERL BB-F

Property L/ (H8) TRE-F BORME @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TET TET
Shop Bk 1,493 816 816 1,632
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17. LEASES - Continved 17. HE-#
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
The carrying amount of the Group's rightofuse assets and the AEERR_ZE-NFUNA—HEZZ—AN
movements during the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December FT_A=+—RHRNERREEZR
2019 are as follows: EENEEBMT:
Buildings
BF
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 April 2019 RZE—-—HFMA—H 15,290
Additions NE 12,262
Depreciation e (2,700)
Impairment (Note 18(a)) B (FI3E18(a)) (5,778
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hhF+=-_A=+—H 12,074
Lease liabilities HESE
The carrying amount of the Group's lease liabilities and the REBR-_ZE—NLEWMA—HE-_Z—A
movements during the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December FH+-A=+—-—BHHANEEEEZRE
2019 are as follows: BEREZSHOT:
Buildings
£
HK$'000
FHETT
At 1 April 2019 R=-Z-NFMA—H 15,290
Additions WE 12,262
Inferest expense FERZ 1,078
lease payments HERHK (10,340)
At 31 December 2019 R_ZE-NF+_A=+—H 18,290
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17. LEASES - Continved

Lease liabilities — Continved

Future lease payments are due as follows:

—nE+=A=+—8

17. &

=
—#

HEaE—~#

Minimum lease

AREENKEHBERAT :

payments Interest Present value
at 31 December at 31 December at 31December
2019 2019 2019
S S S
—ZE-NEF —B-NF —B-NF
+=A +=A t=A
=+—B =+-§ =+-&
REEAETR H RS HIRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THT THETT
Not lafer than one year @R —F 12,855 (821) 12,034
later than one year and B —FEIRME
not later than two years 5,183 (219) 4,964
Later than two years and HBBMFEEIRAFE
not later than five years 1,317 (25) 1,292
19,355 (1,065) 18,290
Minimum lease
payments Interest Present value
at 1 April at 1 April at 1 April
2019 Mol 2019 Notel 2019 Note)
R=ZF—N%F
MA—H R-B-h&F RIE-HF
WREHE mA—H MAE—H
{:J'%’X(Bﬁfﬁ) B’g*u’%‘(ﬁﬁﬁ) E’g}iﬁ(l‘ﬁﬁ)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THT TET
Not later than one year BB —F 9,913 (811) 9,102
Later than one year and BBE-—FEHIREF
not later than five years 6,391 (203) 6,188
16,304 (1,014) 5,290
Note: k=3
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect REEEHRBRAZEEIERERABEEMBER
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 April 2019 fo HELEAFIGRAABR T NFHA—HH
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously WG AR EENBRBETEGAERE
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Comparative information FORAKEHENEEFHENHEEEE - N
as at 31 March 2019 has not been restated. See Note 3(a) for further g*j‘b@ A=+— El H’thfﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁu =]
details about transition. BiBEZE—TFE  FLHEMFES -
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17. HE-#

Lease liabilities — Continved

The present value of future lease payments are analysed as:

HESE-&
ARRBEMNKZREIHMOT

At 31 December At 1 April

2019 2019

R=-ZE—hfF RZE—hF

+=HA=+—H MH—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Current liabilities MEEE 12,034 9,102
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 6,256 6,188
18,290 15,200

The total future minimum lease payments are due as follows:

BB —
il —F

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than
five years

©

2

m A

ARFERENFERINBABERNT :

At 31 March
2019
R-ZZE—NF
=A=+—-H
HK$'000
FET

12,238

AR E

5,686

17,924

The Group leases a number of shops and office premises under
operating lease arrangements. The lease terms are ranging from
one to three years as at 31 March 2019.

Cerfain leasing arrangements have been subject to confingent
rent b\/ reference fo momh|y revenue throughout the leasing
periods. The minimum guaranteed renfal has been used fo
caleulate the above commitments.

AEBERBEEEHERHBEZERHE L
MAPE-R_FT-NF=ZA=T—84F
BEANF—==%F-

ETHEZSR2EHEHABRALER

WHE 2 RARS - FRFEERARER
EHSHE -
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18. GOODWILL 18. B&
Period from
1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=Z2-N%F
A—HZ
ZE2E-NEFE BHE-_T-NF
+=—HA=+—H —A=+—H
HA IFFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHAT
Cost D%
At the beginning of the period,/year RERY, 4] 95,990 105,293
Exchange differences fE X =% = (9,303)
At the end of the period/year REIR FR 95,990 95,990
Accumulated impairment 2 RE
At the beginning of the period/year RERF F 4] 95,376 102,179
Impairment loss recognised HA,/ FRERBERE
in the period/year 614 2,500
Exchange differences fEHZE%E = (9,303)
At the end of the period/year REIRFR 95,990 95,376
At the end of the period/year REIRFR
Cost XA 95,990 95,990
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (95,990) (95,376
Net carrying amount BREFE - 614

BREGAABRBZAERKBRE KR
BEHAREGEHESR R EELE M-
SORERAME  BEXAAREBERA
EREHNELEEIEECHAIZRSE
EEBMMT:

Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that
business combination. For the purpose of impairment testing, cost
of goodwill and infangible assefs with indefinite useful lives were
allocated to CGU identified as follows:

At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZE—HIEF RZZE—NF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FAT

Chinese health products (Note (a)) FERER (i)
Cost P AR 614 614
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (614) -
Net carrying amount BRI FE = 614
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18. GOODW/ILL - Continved

Notes: — Continved

(a)

Chinese health products

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU
of Chinese health products has been determined from value in use
calculations by an independent third party valuer, APAC Appraisal
and Consulting Limited ["APAC"), based on cash flow projection
from formally approved budget covering a five-year period. Cash
flows beyond the fiveyear period are exfrapolated using an
estimated weighted average growth rate of 3% (31 March 2019:
2%), which does not exceed the longterm growth rate for the
industry in the corresponding country.

Discount rate I8 &
Growth rate within the fiveyear period T F A5 & &

31 December 2019

R 55 SR R I oE
—E-AFT=A=1-R

18. & -4#

WisE: —4&

(a)

hERER
RZB-NAF+T-A=1+—8 PERE
mZ R EE B A WO &5 H B
E=FEEMTAGERERER AR
(TEARDBERAEERENRERSF
HRMBEENReRSRAREREENE
FEEE-BHAFHRNRSREES
HENEFHEREFHIZ=(ZF—A
FZAZ+—HB - BOZIEE ZER
RN HBEERRTEANRIERE-

At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
R-E—hIF RZZE—NF
+=HA=1+—H =A=+—H
16% 14%

5% 5%

The discount rate used is pretax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant CGU.

The growth rate within the five-year period have been based on
past experience.

The Management reassessed the recoverable amount of the
CGU of Chinese health products as at 31 December 2019 by
reference to the discounted cash flow calculations with the above
estimations. As at 31 Decebmber 2019, the recoverable amount
of the CGU of Chinese health products is HK$39,000,000 which
is lower than the carrying amount of HK$50,486,000.

Accordingly, the Management was of the opinion that a full
impairment loss for goodwill of HK$614,000 should be
recognised. The remaining shortfall of HK$10,872,000 was
recognised as impairment loss under rightofuse assets amounting
to HK$5,778,000 as disclosed in Note 17, and intangible assets
amounting to HK$5,094,000 as disclosed in Note 19.

FRRITRE SRR X - I R AARI IR
TELEMABNSERR -

REHREREIBBEBELRAE -

R-ZZE—h&E+-_A=+—H EEEZ
EZRALAGASEZTBERERES
HHRERBRZESEAEMHAI KD
THE-R_E—NF+_A=+—8 F
HEREQZASCESEMNAKRESE
A=ZThaB8% v EREEAERTE
M+ N\EXTFTHET-

At EERERS EE2BERHERE
BREA+-—BUNTET -RpzE—T
ENTLEE_TERDREREEE
FARE+EBNTET (WHEI7ARE)
REFEELATAEMDTET (MME
1OFTIRER ) IE TR RBEERE -
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—E-AFT=A=t-8

18. GOODW/ILL - Continved

Notes:

(b)

176

OBM toys

The recoverable amount of the CGU of OBM toys as at 31 March
2019 has been determined from value in use calculations by
APAC based on cash flow projection from formally approved
budget covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are exirapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 2%, which does not exceed the longterm
growth rate for the industry in the corresponding country.

The key assumptions used for the value in use calculations at

31 March 2019 were as follows:

19%
10%

Discount rate
Growth rate within the five-year period

The discount rate used is pre-fax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant CGU.

The growth rate within the five-year period were based on past
experience.

The Management reassessed the recoverable amount of the
CGU of OBM toys as at 31 March 2019 by reference fo the
discounted cash flow calculations with the above estimations. As
at 31 March 2019, the value in use of the CGU of OBM foys is
HK$11,000,000 which is significantly lower than the carrying
amount of HK$23,645,000.

Accordingly, the Management was of the opinion that a full
impairment loss for goodwill of HK$2,500,000 should be
recognised. The remaining shortfall of HK$10,145,000 was
recognised as impairment loss under property, plant and
equipment.
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18. & #

B &E :

(b)

BEmERETA

BEMBHRETAR_-_FT-hhF=H
=T —BZREeELBEUHAROI SRS
T KR 5 2R B 2 IE R BL M HR & L A
MEENReRERAREREEAES
EEE - BEAFHNRSRENEMAMG
EANEFIERERAS 2 HE ZER
ETBBHAERERITEANRMERE

RZEBE-NF=ZR=+—B ELHE
ERERAZZZ2EBRMOT:

kS
REHREER

BaZth
BOZT

FrRHITIR RS AT AR X - I (R BR AR RE IR
TELBENEENEERR-

TEHRRERXTDIREBELRAE -

RZE-NAF=ZA=+—RH BREZZ
RRLAfEASHzcRBESREER
BEmEHENAZRESELEMNTA
Ko e@E- R FT-NF=ZA=+—H8"
BEmERETAZRESELENER
BEA-— T BAEBEL EENEEE
“T=AARTEEATET-

At - EBER R BREREERBERE
BERE_ARA+BEL -FI#EE—TZ
—TOEATETIRYE BERRE
ATERBRABERE-
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BEEE
Trademarks
[k
(Note)
(PH3E)
HK$'000
TET
Cost: PR
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and RZE-NFHA—B - ZF-NAF=A=+—H
31 December 2019 kZTE-NE+=ZA=+—H 5,094
Amortisation and impairment: 8K JORUE |
At T April 2018, 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZZE—N\FWMA—HB ZZT—-hF=A=+—H
RZF-NFMHA—H -
Provision for impairment BERE (5,094)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-—hF+=-A=+—H 15,094)
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NFE+ZA=+—H =
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=A=+—H 5,094
Note: B 5E -
The useful lives of trademarks, which were acquired through HEmENEARNEBEE -2 —N\F=A
the acquisition of the Group’s Chinese health products business =S+-BEFERBAREEPERERE
during the year ended 31 March 2018, are estimated by the TEmES EEEMHEFHATHAE
Management to be indefinite as the trademarks are renewable B-EAAREEAREESREAEH M
at insignificant cost at the option of the Group. Defails of the HEEREM - RMENEZFBHNME
impairment assessment are set out in Note 18(a). 18[a) °
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20. SUBSIDIARIES 20. KB A T

178

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December RZE-—NEF+_A=+—HEZ=ZZE—NAN
2019 and 31 March 2019 are as follows: F=A=+—B KRB ZMEAGFEN
T
Form of Particulars of
Place of incorporation  business issued share capital/
Name of company and operations structure registered capital Effective percentage holding Nature of business
EBBR BRIRE,/
DAER AMRIRERBE X EmERFE ERBEREIL EBHE
At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
ZE-NE “E-NF
+TZA=t+-H =A=+-H
Shares held directly:
BEERFEZRY:
LC Global Holdings Corporation  British Virgin Islands Corporate Ordinary US$50,001 100 100 Investment holdings
LC Global Holdings Corporation  EB# R RS NG ERR50,001% T RERK
Future Empire Limited British Virgin Islands Corporate Ordinary US$50,000 100 100 Investment holdings and
["Future Empire”) invesfing in financial
instruments
Future Empire Limited EBERARES NG E@AR50,000% T REZBRRBELRIA
(TFuture Empire 1)
Ace Season Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Corporate Ordinary US$1,000 100 100 Investment holdings
Ace Season Holdings Limited REABRES N BER1,000% T REAER
New Mind (Hong Kong] limited ~ Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holdings
el (F8)BERATF Bk NG EERIET REER
Shares/investments held indirectly:
BMEsEzRYG/RE:
Kid Galaxy Corporation British Virgin lslands Corporate Ordinary US$11 100 100 Investment holdings
Kid Galaxy Corporation REARRES NG EERIIER REZR
Kid Galoxy Inc. United States of America Corporate  Ordinary US$100,010 100 100 Trading of toys
Kid Galaxy Inc. ENBERE N BRER100,010% T nEES
Kid Galoxy Limited Hong Kong Corporate  Ordinary HK$10,010,000 100 100 Trading of foys
Kid Galaxy Limited A% NS L®A10,010,000% T mEBS
Haier Hedlthwise Company Limited  Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holdings
EREEREARRR Bk AT BRERIET REER
Ulira Classic Investments Limited Brifish Virgin Island Corporate Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holdings
Ulira Clossic Investments Limited REARARES AF ERRIET REER
Good Cheer Global Limited Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Money lending business
["Good Cheer')
Good Cheer Global Limited Bk G ERRIET BEEH
([Good Cheer ])
Keytime Global Limited Brifish Virgin Islands Corporate Ordinary US$1 - 100 Invesiment holdings
Keytime Global Limited REERREE A EBRIET REER
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Name of company

DAEH

Shares/investments held indirectly:

BEREZRGRE:

Future Empire Limited*
Future Empire Limited*

Notton Limited*
Notton Limited*

Era Creation Technology Limited*

BIERRBRAR"

Qingdoo Qasis Intelligent Health
Technology Company Limited*

BERBMNEEHNRERAR

Qindao Ruidi Gas Appliances
Manufacturing Limited

["Qingdao Ruidi'|*

ERMEMAARERRAS
([E8Hm®@]) *

Qingdao Haier Ruidi Kitchen
Appliances & Engineering
Company Limited ("Haier Ruidi"

J*

BFEEARAFRTIRARAA
(Me@ma)) *

Sichuan Yi Fang Kitchen Equipment
Company Limited
("Sichuan Yi Fang')*

M7 EEREERR
(TN %70) *

FNENEEBRERAR
|"Shenzhen Qasis'|*

RGN ERRBRAR
(TRYIEEM]) *

20. SUBSIDIARIES - Confinved

Place of incorporation
and operations

AR IR R

Hong Kong
2

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong

5

PRC
h

PRC

FE

PRC

HE

PRC

P

PRC
i

Notes to the Financial Statements

31

December 2019

20. BT -—#

Form of Particulars of
business issued share capital/
structure registered capitl
EHER BRTRE/
i EmEREE
Corporate Ordinary US$1
R LRRIET
Corporate Ordinary US$1
R EERIET
Corporate Ordinary HK$1
NG EERIET

Corporate - Ordinary US$10,000,000
NG

ERR10,000,000%7T

Corporate  Ordinary RMB30,000,000

LRRARE
30,000,0007c

o
=

Corporate  Ordinary RMB30,000,000

LARARE
30,000,0007c

5
=]

Corporate  Ordinary RMB16,000,000

R ERRARY
16,000,0007t

Corporate  Ordinary RMB5,000,000
NG ERRARY
5,000,0007T

Effective percentage holding

EREREAL

At 31 December
2019
“E-NE
+=A=+-8

- 59,976

TEREEEREZERARIR

A3 40 R PR

—E-nf+=A=+-8

Nature of business

£S5 3:3°1

At 31 March
2019
“Z-NE
=B=1+—-H

Invesiment holdings

REER

Investment holdings

RERR

Investment holdings

RERR

Trading of consumer
electronic and childcare
products

HERBTRREERY
i

Research, development,
manufaciuring & sales of
commercial & domestic
gas cooking appliances

W HERHEERRAR
Eiil =t gt

Research and development,
production, sales
and installation of
commercial kitchen
related equipment and
accessories

& tE HERZE
ARBRERRER
B

Research and development,
production, sales
and insfallation of
commercial kitchen
related equipment and
accessories

e EE HERZE
AREEERRER
Beft

51 Trading of consumer
electronic products

HERETERED

—E-NER 179
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20. SUBSIDIARIES - Continved

180

Name of company

DAER

Shares/investments held indirectly:

BEREZRE, BE:
RARTZERARERAT

["Shenzhen Brillante"|*

A EILBERRBERAT
(TRYIRYZ]) *

BN RE RN RERATF
("Oasis Shanghai")*

LERNEREENRERAT
([N L&) *

RIEME M ERER AR
RIMNE R B R AR

NPH Holdings Limited
NPH Holdings Limited

Poo Yuk Loong Limited
REEBRLA

N P H Sino-Meditech Limited
BT ERBRAR

Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs
Company Limited
["Nam Pei Hong')
HIT2EBNARAT
(T@3te3))

Geumsamwon [Korea] Company
Limited

RET(BE)BERAT

Poo Yuk loong Food (Shenzhen)
Company Limited

REERD (R ERRF

*

Place of incorporation
and operations

AR R R

PRC

PRC
Gk

PRC

hE

BVI
RBAARES

Hong Kong
&g

Hong Kong
&g

Hong Kong
&g
Hong Kong
BB
PRC
0

Disposed during the period (Note 34(a)).

—z-nEt+-A=+-8

Form of
business
structure
ERER
%

Corporate

>
oy

Corporate

N

Corporate
NG
Corporate
N

Corporate
A

Corporate
27

Corporate

=

/A

Corporate
N
Corporate

2

20. B AT -4

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
ERTRE/
EmEREE

Ordinary RMB2,000,000

EERARK2,000,0007T

Ordinary RMB5,000,000

ERRARY
5,000,0007

Ordinary RMB5,000,000

ERRARY
5,000,0007

Ordinary US$50,000
L/ 50,000% T

Ordinary HKD350,000
E1RAR350,000/8 T

Ordinary HKD2
EERVET

Ordinary HKD1,200,000
ERR1,200,000% T
Ordinary HKD1
EERIET

Ordinary RMB350,000

LRRARK350,0007
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Effective percentage holding

EREREALL
At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
“Z-hE “E-NF
t=fg=t-F =A=t-H
- 51
- 51
- 51
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Nature of business

EBNE

Research and development,
markefing and
distribution of childcare
products

e EEROHYRE
BEm

Trading of consumer
electronic producs

HERETERED

Trading of consumer
electronic products

HERETERED

Investment holdings

REEK

Investment holdings

REER

Investment holdings

RERRK

Trading of Chinese health
products

PERERES

Trading of Chinese health
products

PERERE

Trading of Chinese health
products

PERERES

* ERHABE (MFES34()) -
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21.

PROFIT OR LOSS

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — R &EE LT HIRAFE H —

at fair value BAFE
— Non-current portion (Note (al) —3ERBE D (FizE(a))

— Current portion (Note (b)) —RBE D (MIFEb))

R 55 SR R I oE
—E-AFT=A=1-R

BAFEHF ARG ZEHMEE

At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
—E-h#F —NF
+=HA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

18,306 38,905
120,275 189,117

Listed equity securities are stated at fair value. Fair value of listed
equity securities is determined based on quoted bid prices in the
Stock Exchange.

Notes:

[a) At 31 December 2019 and 31 March 2019, the non-current
portion of the Group's financial assets at FVTPL represented 28%
interest in Global Mastermind Capital Llimited ("GMC") at the
closing price as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the respective
reporting date.

The Group's inferest in this company is not classified as a
subsidiary or an associate as the Group does not have the power
to control or significantly influence to participate in the operating
and financing policy decision of GMC, as evidenced by lack of
any direct or indirect involvement of the Group at board level of

GMC.

(b)  The equity securities are classified as financial assets at FVTPL as
they have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in near term, or are part of a porifolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of shorterm profittaking.
Changes in their fair values are recognised in profit or loss (Note

8).

TEREEREERAERAT T

EABRARESFRAFEINR - EHRAES

2 DRTETYRIRE X R E R o
i :
o RZF-NE+-A=+-BR-T-h

FZRA=+—R - AEEZRAFEFA
BaR s CREEFRDBY BRENBE
EERAB(IRERABREDZBESZ
T \BHE - TYIREE R PR R s B AT
W B H -

/\

MARNEEAEEREER LB ERNEE
FEESERRABERE B EEES
o $ 2 IR IR OB Y 28 K I BR F e
EATE HASERZA TE’JT& £ 36

BREAMB AT HEZERF

bl BREEAFFDEIZR/EHARNLEMBA
FERARAXZEENAAN SR TASR
A —#o BAEERBEROHARRE
ﬁ?%')?ﬁﬁ’]%ﬁ”ﬁf LR W b1 G/ ?TEE%
BZEREE - ZFERABFNA
TE“EJUEATE SPRERR (FIFE8) -
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22.

23.

182

—E-AFT=A=t-8

INVENTORIES 22. 78

At 31 December At 31 March

2019 2019

—E-hF —_T-h#F

+=—A=+—8H =RA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THETT

Finished goods SR an 68,939 71,740
During the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019, no R-E-NFHA-BE_ZE-AF+=
impairment loss [year ended 31 March 2019: HK$8,008,000) A=+—BHfE TEREER (22
against the carrying value of finished goods was made. —hE=ZA=+—HLtFE:\NBENTHE

7T) BB a2 BREE 5184 o
Finished goods with carrying amounts of HK$14,123,000 RZB-NAF+_RA=+—HB #HEmz
(31 March 2019: HK$19,643,000) were p\edged to secure FEE-—THE —+TZB8=FT81T (=%
designated banking facility and borrowing (Note 28) as at —NFE=ZA=+—HB:—FhAhBATHES
31 December 2019 =FAT)EEMRUERERITRERES
(MH3E28) 2 R~
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND  23. FEUW & 5 BR 5k & H 1 F& W K18

PREPAYMENTS RERBENARIE
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, deposits FEHQ%%BE XN H A R WK IR~ iR TR
and prepayments are as follows: FIRZEEENT
At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
—E-hHF —E-hF
+=HA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables BUE ZERK 39,494 40,941
Other receivables H e W SR I8
— Deposits and other receivables ke MEAMEWFRIE 7,332 10,860
- Prepayments —JEFIE 4,433 10,100
51,259 61,901
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R 55 SR R I oE
—E-AFT=A=1-R

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 23. FEIWE S BR= & H b fE W =k 1E -
PREPAYMENTS - Continved

(al

(b)

(c)

The ageing analysis of the frade receivables, net of
allowance for impairment, based on invoice date as of the
end of reporting period, is as follows:

BERBANRE-#

(a)

AT L (B S 1 R B 3R 2 B R A
FEAHTBNESER T ER AN
mF

At 31 December At 31 March

2019 2019

—E-hEF —E-hF

+=A=+—H =A=+—8H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-90 days ZEN+H 37,412 38,184
91-180 days ht+—BZ—8BH/N\+H 1,089 Q34
181-365 days —BN\t+—HEZ=Z/G/,THH 695 167
Over 365 days B=EANTHH 298 1,656
39,494 40,941

The Group's sales are on lefter of credit or open account
terms. Credit terms are reviewed on a regular basis. The
normal frade terms include lefter of credit, deposits before
shipments and credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days
(31 March 2019: 30 to Q0 days) but business partners
with strong financial backgrounds may be offered longer
credit terms.

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of
HK$27,689,000 (31 March 2019: HK$29,450,000)
and other receivables, deposits and prepayments of
HK$9,110,000 (31 March 2019: Nil) respectively
were pledged fo secure designated banking facility and
borrowing (Note 28).

The information about the ECls on the Group's trade
receivables and other receivables are disclosed in Note

42(a).

(b

(c)

FESEREERERAT T NER

R ER B 2 35 & 19 DAE P A K RS B 15 R
BT EERREESRT  —RE
ZHERERERNK FENREIAR
NF=+tHEEA+BE(ZFE-AF=
A=+—H:=+tHEATRH)ANEKE
RE EEMOMEZEBEHEA A
TEREZRES-

RZFB-—hhF+A=1+—B"F
WESERXR-_FTEtARTNAENLT
AT(ZE-—hF=ZA=+—H8:
“ThEmO+TESET) AREME
WHE e RBENKEALE -+ —
BEET(ZE-—NF=A=1+—8:
E)ED R EMAERERITRER
tEEHER (FHFE28) -

B B 7R 5 B B M BR R e L A B IR TR
ZABEEER BRI E42(a)

5% o
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24.

184

LOANS RECEIVABLE

The carrying amount of loans receivable from money lending
business of the Group was as follows:

24.

FE W & 3K

BEASBENEEREEA CEKERERE
NS

At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
ZE-NF —ZE-hF
+=—HA=+—H —RA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
loans receivable arising from money BERERBELEZ BRKER
lending business 274,533 265,725
less: impairment R E (10,702) (5,109)
263,831 260,616
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 March 2019, the loans RZE-NEF+A=+—HEZZE—N
receivable are unsecured, interestbearing at fixed rates ranging FZA=T—H BUERAEER ZE
from 8%15% per annum. EFNENFEIZNEZEBDZ THAE
The maturity profile of the loans receivable, net of impairment loss REREHIR - B E R (F05 2 R E &
recognised, if any, af the end of the reporting period, analysed B (1 ﬁ) JIRERETREIE R 2 FIeRHIR
by the remaining period to its contracted maturity, is as follows: D WEIHB AN REEHRNOT
At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
—E-hEF —E-hF
+=-A=+—H —RA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within 1 year —FNR 248,831 200,616
Over 1 year B —F 15,000 60,000
263,831 260,616

The information about the ECLs on the Group's loans receivable

is disclosed in Note 42(al.
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES

26.

A3 40 R PR

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

25. Bl N EBELRRIE

(@)  Amount due from a related company (o) EHR-—BEEBREXRNRE
Maximum balances
outstanding during
the period/year ended
BEUTRMLEY 58
AEBBRSER
As at As at
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2019 2019 2019 2019
RZB-RE RZZ-NF ZE-NE “E-NF
+=A=+-H =R=t—-HB +=A=t+-H =A=+—"H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT TER FAT
Company controlled by a close RN RSl NG
family member of a director of —RESHEREHNN
a subsidiary of the Company T
L C Technology lid BENBEAERARA - 10,027 10,027 10,027
(b)  Amounts due from/to related companies were unsecured, (b) MU FENARER RFIE AR -

interestree and repayable on demand.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERBHBERER-

26 CERBITERRBRAESRRES
B

At 31 December At 31 March

2019 2019

—ZE-NEF —E-NF

+=HB=+—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FET

Cash and bank balances Re MIB1THH 55,262 54,940
less: pledged bank deposits o B ERERITER (8,190) —
Cash and cash equivalents BehBSEEY 47,072 54,940

Cash and cash equivalents represent the bank balances and

cash which eam interest on floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair value.

BeMREFEWERES B RITERA
RPF PN A B ZRTERERE B8
RRTEAERELRASFEMIREE
HEENFERE -

RESEREERERAT —TNFR 185
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MR ERME
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 27 ENEBESEZREMENZER

CHARGES FEST B
At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
—E-hF —T-hEF
+=-A=+—H =RA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Trade payables e E 5 BRK 97,699 39,305
Other payables and accrued charges BT 5/ K fEET & A 19,964 52,763
117,663 92,068
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts ARREERE RZZE—NLF+=A
of trade payables, other payables and accrued charges =+ BERZZTE-NF=ZA=1+—H" ' EH
approximate their fair value as at 31 December 2019 and BHRI - KN REREFERZRE
31 March 2019. BEEEATERE-
Included in frade payables are trade creditors with the following BEREHR FTARNE ZERRNEMNIE
ageing analysis, based on invoice dates, as of the end of FIREERQHFANRRSTOT
reporting period:
At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
ZE-NF —T-NF
+=A=+-8 =A=1—§H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
0-90 days ZEENTA 37,888 10,597
91-180 days N+—HBEZ—FNT+H 3,409 11,661
181-365 days —BNt+—HE=BATHH 4,931 1,777
Over 365 days BM=—A/NTHH 51,471 15,270
97,699 39,305
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R 55 SR R I oE
—E-AFT=A=1-R

28. BORROWINGS 28. & &

At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
R=-Z—hfF RZE—hF
+=A=+-B =A=+-~8
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bank loans — secured (Note (b)) RITER—BEME (M3E(b)) 18,685 11,700
Other loans — unsecured (Note [e]) H Bk — & (MisE(e)) - 1,712
Total current borrowings RN B 18,685 13,412

(@) Asat 31 December 2019, the borrowings were interestbearing af (a)

prime lending rate of banks in United States plus 3.5% per annum. As
at 31 March 2019, except the borrowings of HK$ 1,712,000 were

interestbearing at fixed rate of 5.6% per annum, other borrowings

were inferestbearing at prime lending rate of banks in United Stafes

plus 1% per annum.

(b)  As at 31 December 2019, the Group's borrowings and banking (b)

faciliies are secured by the following:

(i) Pledge of a subsidiaries’ fixtures and equipment,

invenfories, trade receivables, other receivables, deposits

and prepayments, cash and cash equivalents with
carrying values of HK$379,000, HK$14,123,000,
HK$27,689,000, HK$2,110,000 and HK$8,190,000

respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, certain of the Group's borrowings and

banking facilities were secured by the following:

(i) Pledge of a subsidiaries’ fixtures and equipment,

invenfories and trade receivables with carrying values of

HK$449,000, HK$19,643,000 and HK$29,450,000

respectively.

RZE-NAF+ZRAR=+—H BER
BRITREFNEMENERT Y Z =8
BB -RZE-AF=R=+—0"K
—Btt—E-_TEINEERETEFH
KRN ZAENAEN HiEEREXR
RITREENENENEBAD 2 —F R

RZB-AF+ZA=+—B FEEE
ERBITRERIATEIER:

) HBEREBARZEEHED IR
=ttEBATET —THE—+=
E=FET —FTta~+tN\E
NTFET - NBE-—+T—8B8EIR
NE-—TASETNEE R&E-
FE EWE SRR HMEYER
B RERENFE RERREE

RZZE-NF=A=+—RB HrEEET
B8 MIRITRE LA TR -

i) EAMBLAZEEE?D AR
W+mgATFELT —FThBEARTE
BE-TEXTA-_TAAE+REE
THRER&E FENERES
BRK -
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28. BORROWINGS - Continved

¢/ As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total banking
facilities of approximately HK$54,600,000 (31 March 2019:
HK$34,500,000] of which HK$35,915,000 (31 March 2019:
HK$22,800,000) had not been utilised.

(d)  As at 31 December 2019, all borrowings of HK$18,685,000
(31 March 2019: HK$13,412,000) are scheduled to be repaid

within one year or on demand and classified as current liabilities.

le)]  As at 31 March 2019, the other loans were unsecured and
repayable on demand.

29. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENT

28. (B E-#

(c)

(d)

(e]

R-ZE—hhE+-_A=+—8 KA&£E%
BRITREBREHNRATNE A TESBT (=
E-AE=A=t—-B:=THEE+S
BL) ERF=FREA+T-—BRETAET
—E-AFE=ZA=Z=+—H:ZF=ZBNT+
BT mAREA -

KB AF+=A=+—8 HHHEE
—FABA+ABEFBRL(ZF—h#F
ZA=+-R: —FZEMI-8=F%
TR~ RERREREE  LHRAR
DELE

RZE-NAF=ZA=+—B HMERE
BRI AR EREE -

20 REIRBZ=BE

At 31 December At 31 March

2019 2019

R-ZE—h&E RZE—hF

+=HA=+—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At beginning of period/year ),/ F ) - 5,576
Elimination on disposal £ 5 B ¥ 8 = (5,453
Exchange differences ME W 258 - (123)
At end of period/year HRFER = -

The amounts represented the provision for long service payment
for the Group's employees in Hong Kong and Indonesia. It
is regulated by the labour law in Hong Kong and Indonesia
respectively.
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30. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assefs and liabilities during the
period/year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, if any, were as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

Notes to the Financial Statements
M| R EE

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

30. IEERLIE
B, EREEHEEERE RS (T3
REA—BEAREREHES (INF))
m
FIERIEEE

Impairment loss

on financial Cumulative
assets tax losses Totall
SRMEE
BEEE ZRIABEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHT
At 1 April 2018 RZE—NFMHA—H = 550 550
Credit to profit or loss sHAEZR - 1,110 1,110
Exchange differences I ZR = 210 210
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NF
=A=+—H = 1,870 1,870
Credit/(charge] to profit or loss FPAE =
(BE=ME) 2,036 (337) 1,699
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=—A=+—H 2,036 1,533 3,569
Deferred tax liabilities: REMFIRAE:
Revaluation
of land and  Convertible
buildings loan notes  Trademarks Total
TR CIE:T:
BFER BEXRE [k et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL FHL FET
At 1 April 2018 RZE-N\FEA—H 14,436 = 840 15,276
Elimination through disposal of i 18 1 & It B 22 5] 1 8 (14,436) - - (14,4306)
subsidiaries (Note 34 (BF7E34)
Charge to other equity P E A4 P Rk - 4,624 - 4,624
Credit to profit or loss sFABE - (857) - (857)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA=1+—H = 3,767 840 4,607
Credit to profit or loss FTAER - (1,847) (840) (2,687)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=-A=+—H - 1,920 - 1,920
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30. DEFERRED TAX - Continved

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for the
presentation of financial reporting purposes:

30. IEERIE 4

AT R BREZ25M S NREHREAS
FROAT -

At 31 December At 31 March

2019 2019

R-ZE—hfF RZE—NF

+=-—HA=+—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Deferred tax assets EIEFIAE B 3,569 1,870
Deferred tax liabilities REFIRAE (1,920) (4,607)
1,649 (2,737)

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the following:

WESRA TS REDECHBEE

At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZE—h&F RZFE—NF
+=-—HA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Deductible temporary differences A R R P 2=
— Accelerated tax depreciation — 2 HIBITE 50,433 46,260
Unused tax losses KA IEEE 120,978 242,240
171,411 288,500

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for estimated tax losses carry
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits
through future taxable profits are probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred tax assefs in respect of estimated losses
amounting to approximately HK$120,978,000 (31 March
2019: HK$242,240,000) that can be carried forward
against future taxable income. As at 31 December 2019, all
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely except for the
amounts of approximately HK$22,467,000 (31 March 2019:
HK$42,120,000) which will be expired from 2025 to 2039
(31 March 2019: 2024 to 2038) and Nil (31 March 2019:
HK$118,051,000) which may be carried forward for a period

of five years from their respective year of origination.
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—hWF=ZA=+—H8: ZEBEFT-_&H_=-1+@
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

A1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and
31 December 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

31. K&

Authorised
EE
Convertible cumulative
redeemable preference shares of

US$100,000 each Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

EREETEEZERZ
TRRTRETERE LR EREEEE - BI2EER
Number of Number of
Shares shares
BAEE RHEE
US$'000 '000 HK$'000
TER T TET
RZZE-\EMA—H"
“T-A¥=ZA=1+—-H
RZZ-NE+ZA
=+—H 40 4,000 15,000,000 1,500,000

Issued and fully paid
ERTRARE

Convertible cumulative

redeemable preference shares of

US$100,000 each

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREETEERZ
TRRITZETERELER SREBZX¥-TBAIZZER
Number of Number of
shares shares
BAEE BAEE
US$'000 '000 HK$'000
TE5r Tk FTHET
A1 April 2018 RZE-/\FEMHA—H = = 7,101,308 710,131
Issue of new shares upon placing REERBTHRD = = 1,420,000 142,000
At 31 March 2019 R-E-N&E=A=+—H = S 8,521,308 852,131
Repurchase of shares [Note) BRRD (M) - - (655,850) (65,585)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-N&+-A=+—H - - /7,865,458 /86,546
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31.

192

SHARE CAPITAL - Continved 31.

Note:

During the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019, the
Company repurchased and cancelled its own shares as follows:

N

PYaE
RZZE—HAhFENA—HEZE-_ZE—hAhE+=A
=+—HBEHE AQFBELOWEHEES FRHW
—F:

Price per share

BREK

No. of ordinary Aggregate
share of consideration
HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest paid

BREME
S S Y Xz
Month of repurchase BRkGAH EERYA =8 RIE BRE
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
T BT BT FERT
June 2019 ZE-NERA 77,750 0.039 0.038 3,030
July 2019 ZZ-NEEA 578,100 0.050 0.039 25,890
655,850 28,920

The repurchase was governed by the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands. During the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019,
the above ordinary shares were repurchasesd and cancelled. The fotal
amount paid on the repurchase of the shares was HK$28,920,000 (year
ended 31 March 2019: Nil) and accordingly HK$65,585,000 was
deducted from share capital and the difference of HK$36,665,000 was
credited to accumulated losses.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. BRESTE

The Company operates a share optfion scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operation. The Scheme, which was adopted by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders on 14 September 2012, constitutes
a share opfion scheme governed by Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

Under the Scheme, share options can be exercised af any fime
during the periods to be defermined and notified by the directors
of the Company fo the grantees at the time of making offers o
grant share options fo them, provided that such periods shall
not exceed the period of fen years from the date of grant. The
scheme mandate limit of the Scheme was refreshed pursuant o
a shareholders’ resolution passed in the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 4 September 2018 (the "AGM”). The
maximum number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
is 852,130,830, representing 10% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at the date of the AGM, 4 September
2018. The subscripfion price for the shares under the Scheme
shall be a price determined by the directors af its discretion,
provided that it shall not less than the higher of (i the closing
price of the shares stated in the daily quotation sheets of Stock
Exchange on the date of grant and (i) the average closing price
of the shares stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheefs for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant of share options. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable for each of the share options granted.

ARARMEBEIT-RBBREE ([518]) &
ERHAEEZEZBRAEERZAER
SEERHRBIRE -FEAR_FT——F
NATEOAABRREBEBRREREMR &
X EMRRIE+ EEEE 2 BT S -

RIBETE BEREAAARRESEEYE
AARARZEHBRESNEARAZ
HIRABERITE X BE T FEBREA
HIEE tF -8l 28I RELRERE
ARABR T NFLAMARITZRRE
BEAE ((RRBFAE]) LBBZ A
BRABRTAEFH T TAIHETL
BHBEERAN\ERAT-_A—T=8Z
NB=+TAB HERBRRAEFASAH
(—ZE-NFAAER)ARRZEHITE
BEAZBD 2T FHEIET BN RREE
HHEFATHEEE ETFERIRE
IR XM E R RERAIZ MW H
ERiZERRLBREBRIOLEEXA
RE P A RERMY Z RO FH Ak
BMEFZEE BRZEBNBREAX
N—BTZRBHRE-
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32.

194

SHARE OPTION SCHEME - Continved

On 24 April 2018, a total of 340,000,000 share options were
granted by the Company fo the directors of the Company at the
exercise price of HK$0.121 per share and immediately vested.

Fair value of options granted

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during
the year ended 31 March 2019 was HK$0.046 per option.
The fair value of share options at grant date is assessed by
an independent third party qualified valuer using a binomial
opfion-pricing model that takes info account the exercise price,
the term of the option, the impact of dilution [where material),
the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of
the underlying share, the expected dividend vyield, the risk free
interest rate for the term of the option and the correlations and
volatilities of the peer group companies.

Options are granted for a nominal consideration of HK$1 per
grantee and vest immediately at grant date. The options are
exercisable for a period of one year from grant date.

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended
31 March 2019 included:

Grant date i B Ef

Expiry date f&= i B B

R H B2 BB

Share price at grant date

1TEE

Exercise price

Expected volatility TR HAR

FE I HE HAIR

Life of share options
Expected dividend yield TR B s =

Risk-free interest rate 12 3 1) =R
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32. BRAERTE-#

RZZE-N\FOAZ+ME  AREEAR
RAEERHAA=BHUTEMERE 176
BERERBRHEH ———BTKARHEE -

ERHBRENFE

REBE-_ZT-NAF=-A=+—HLEFE B
BREBRENRHBHNEFERFER
BOHBRBTHTE/NET - BRENE L
BHNAFERBYLE=7RERMGERM
e R E BRI R RAT
HE BRERR #FEE (WEEX)
B A B RE R AR RO BB E R K
%~ TR A AR B M R - BB R B IR Y A R [
B EARRREB R A NEEERNKE -

BREIDANEZRARAZERE AR
H R R E A BRSO R B
AR —FRTE-

REBE_ZT-NF=A=+—RLEFEE
BRHBRENEL G ARBIEERE:

2019

—E-hF

24 April 2018
ZE-)N\FWMA=+WMA
23 April 2019
—E-NFMAZ+=H
HK$0.117
TEH——HBT
HK$0.121

T ———#T

108%

BoZ2—BZEN

1 vear

—F

0%

BOZE

1.47%

B2z —#0+
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME - Continued 32. IR AERTE-#
Fair value of options granted — Confinved EREBREATE &
The expected price volatility is based on the historic volafility TEEAE RSN 08 D AR E 2R R (ARIFBR
[based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any EERFIRER)ETE Ut EARERF
expected changes to future volatility due fo publicly available BRI AR FROR B TR BN LSRR -
information.
Exercise Outstanding Granted Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding

price of during of during ot

Grantee Date of grant Exercisable period per share 31.3.2018 the year 31.3.2019 the period 31.12.2019
R=B-NF R=F-NF R=F-hF
ZA=t-8 ZA=t-8 tzZA=+-8

ARA R AH fiyid ] BRTHKE HATE FRRH AT RN AT

HKS

v
- Directors and senior management 2442018 244201810 23.4.2019

Note i 0.12] - 340000000 340000000  (340,000,000] -
—EERERERE (Hih) - \fmAZ+EmA ZE-\fMAZTMAE
ZZ-hENAZtZH

Totol
ag 340000000 340,000000  (340,000,000)

Exercisable at the end of the year/period

X/ BRI S 340,000,000 -
I I

Weighted overage exercise price

ARG - 1121 7 -
I I I

Weighted average remaining contractual lfe

ot the end of the year/period

FR/BRNETIRBENES N/A TR 0.16 years F N/ARERA
I I I

Notes: B3

(i) The Group grant share options to the directors and senior (i) AEEMEERSRAEEERLERE:

management as an award of their confribution to the Group in ERBEFEHAEEMIERR 2 2R -

prior years.
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32.

33.

196

SHARE OPTION SCHEME - Continved

(i) No share-based payment expenses were recognised for the
period from 1 April 2019 1o 31 December 2019 (year ended
31 March 2019: HK$15,742,000) in relation to share options
granted by the Company. During the period from 1 April 2019
to 31 December 2019, all outstanding opfions were lapsed
[year ended 31 March 2019: Nil] and no opfion [year ended
31 March 2019: Nil) was exercised.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Shenzhen Oasis and its wholly-owned subsidiary, 51% owned
by the Group, Oasis Shanghai and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
51% owned by the Group and Sichuan Yi Fang, 59.976%
owned by the Group had material NCI. During the period, the
Group's equity interests in Oasis Shanghai, Shenzhen Oasis and
Sichuan Yi Fang were fully disposed of.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of
Shenzhen Oasis and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Oasis
Shanghai and its wholly-owned subsidiary and Sichuan Yi Fang,
before infra-group eliminafion are presented as follows:
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33.

BRETE-2

i) RZE-—AFOA—HBEZE=_Z—hF+=
A=+ BHE AEERERAQRR
B2 EREERURDBERONTRAX
(BE-ZT—hE=ZA=Z=+—ALEE:
—FTHEALETHEE_-_FERT) - R_ZT—Ah
FMA—REZZT—NF+=ZA=+—8H
HE mARTEERESERAB (BHEZ
T-NFZAZ+BLLEE: 8 RfE
BRE (BT F=-A=+—8L
FEE)BITE

FERE DS

AEEREADZA T —RBBEZRIIK
MEEZ2EMBAR AEEHEAED Z
Et+—#amzgM EeRE2ENB AR
AEAEEREAD AT BN E
w2 SHHEEERFERER - N
N AEERGMN B8 RN R )l 5
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - Continved

33. FiERES 2

Period from

1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZE—hF
BA—HZ HE
—E-hEF —E-NF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
HA 1S H&FE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Shenzhen Oasis and FIBENREZEHNBEAT
its wholly-owned subsidiary
Revenue WA - =
loss for the period/year BN FEAEE (2,449) (2,814)
Total comprehensive income HA/ FAZEKEEHE
for the period/year (2,449) (2,773)
Loss allocated to NCI DB T IR 2 B 1R (1,200) (1,379)
Total comprehensive income DT IR E 2
allocated to NCI Z2EEW BT (1,200) (1,359)
Cash flow used in operating acfiviies &L EFBMAZHERE - 9
Net cash outflow IR e F R - %
At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZZE—hF RZE—NF
+=BA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Non-current assets EMENEEE - -
Current assets MBNEE = 650
Current liabilities mEAE = (57,781)
Net liabilities BEFR = (57,131)
Accumulated NCI REt IR - (27,994)
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—E-AFT=A=t-8

33. FiEERER ~

Period from

1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=-ZE—hF
A—HZ HZE
—E—hEF —E—hF
+=B=+—H =HA=+—H
Hi S HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Oasis Shanghai and BNEBREZENE AR
its wholly-owned subsidiary
Revenue A = 45,573
Loss for the period/year BN FE N E R (2,712 (15,749)
Total comprehensive income BN/ FAREE RS
for the period/year (2,712) (15,692)
Loss allocated to NCI DB T IEIERR M S 2 B 1R (1,329) 7,717)
Total comprehensive income DB FIETERER
allocated to NCI EHEN LR (1,329) (7,689
Cash flow generated from/(used in) LTRSS (FTA) 2
operating activities Rensg - 3,351
Cash flow used in invesfing activities REBHAAZECRE -
Cash flow used in financing activities MEEZBAACZHEERE - (1,712)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BerA/ CRl)F8E - 1,639
At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
RZZB—I%F RZE—hF
+=—HA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERENEE - -
Current assets mEEE = 5,800
Current liabilities MEEE = (64,300)
Net liabilities BfEFH - (58,500)
Accumulated NCI REtIEE s = (28,605)
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - Continved 33. FEKRER &
Period from
1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=-Z—Nh#F
A—BZ S
—E-hE —E-NF
+t=A=t+—8 =A=+—H
AE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
Sichuan Yi Fang Mm%
Revenue ON = -
Loss for the period/year BN/ FRER = -
Total comprehensive income A,/ FREEWRERE
for the period/year - 140
loss allocated to NCI DT IR E R 2 B8 = -
Total comprehensive income DETIFEBRER 2
allocated to NCI THEB L - 56

Cash flow used in operating acfiviies &L EBMAZHERE - =

Net cash oufflow e R FaE - =
At 31 December At 31 March

2019 2019

R-ZZB—H%F R-ZE—NF

+=HA=+—H =HA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Non-current assets ERBEE - 330
Current assets mBEE - 3,094
Current liabilities mEaE = (16,781
Net liabilities BEFRE - (13,357)
Accumulated NC| RErFEIE = — (5,347)
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

200

(a)

34. HEWBLQF

Disposals during the period from 1 April 2019 to
31 December 2019

Name of entities
Notton Limited (Note {i))

Keytime Global Limited (Note |ii))

On 26 September 2019, the Group entered

Disposal date
26 September 2019

27 October 2019

into a

sale and purchase agreement to dispose of the entire
equity interests in Notton Limited. The purchaser is a
connected person of the subsidiary of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the listing Rules. The disposal
was completed on 26 September 2019, the dafe
on which the confrol of Notton Llimited and its
subsidiaries, which engaged in the commercial
kitchen products business, passed to the acquirer. The
net liabilities of the disposed subsidiaries at the date

of disposal were as follows:

(a)

(i)

R-ZEBE-hEWAE-BE=F
—hE+=ZA=+-BHENE
EER

ERER HEAH

Notton Limited —E—hE
(B EE() NA=+xH

Keytime Global —E—hE
Limited +A=++A
CH (i)

RZE—NFENA-+ B AEE
213 B E LA & Notton Limited®
- REA A LETRBEIIAZE
BI=0n N A N/NIST I D F= RN N O e 2
AT -HEFBEBERZ-_ZE—NFNIA
Z+/NHEMK " & XNotton Limited %
ENBAR (NEmABFRERER)
RIEHIEER T IWES -RNEEEE
AHEZEHENBRR Z8EFED
T

HK$'000
FHT
Net liabilities disposed of: P EaERE:
Inventories rE 301
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEY 1
Trade and other payables e E 5 8RR N H A e A5 3R IR (18,142
Tax payables e IR (3,236)
Net liabilities BEFE (21,076
NCI SRR A 5,872
Release of exchange reserve upon BB 2~ R B R B 2 B 3 (A
disposal of subsidiaries 11,154
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B A Rl e 4,051
Total consideration HBR(E |
Satisfied by: AR
Cash Re 1
Net cash inflows arising from disposal of HEMBAREEZRERAFR:
subsidiaries:
Cash consideration RENRE 1
Cash and bank balances disposed of FTHER & RIRTTAES (1)
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - Continved

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2019

(@) Disposals during the period from 1 April 2019 to
31 December 2019 - Continved

(i)

On 27 October 2019, the Group entered info a
sale and purchase agreement fo dispose of the
enfire equity inferests in Keytime Global Limited. The
disposal was completed on 27 October 2019, the
date on which the control of Keytime Global Limited
and its subsidiaries, which engaged in the consumer
electronic products business, passed to the acquirer.
The net liabilities of the disposed subsidiaries at the
date of disposal were as follows:

R 55 SR R I oE
—E-AFT=A=1-R

34 HEMB AT &

) R=ZZE-NLFNBE—HBHE=-Z
—hWE+=ZBA=+—HEHBEMWH
EEE -~

(i)

RZZE-NFE+A=Z++H"
AEBITVEEHRALE
Keytime Global Llimited 2 & i%
B-HMEFEERZZE—NET
AZ+EREK & RKeytime
Global Limited X EH B AR (#E
EHBEETERER) MNIET
BERTKRES REEEEAB
HryEHENBARZAESF
BT :

HK$'000
FET
Net liabilities disposed of: FEEaEFE:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 1,369
Trade and other payables e B 5 R R H 0 B 5UR (56,619)
Short term bank loan REERIRITERR (1,625)
Tax recoverable AT E B IR 1,047
Net liabilities BEFHE (55,834
NCI FEIE AR A 2 49,940
Release of exchange reserve upon HEMB R R R IR 2 IE K # %
disposal of subsidiaries 23,937
loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBRARZERE (18,042)
Total consideration wRE |
Satisfied by: TR
Cash B& ]
Net cash outflows arising from disposal of & i B A B ZE 4 2 3 & %58 :
subsidiaries:
Cash consideration ReRE ]
Cash and bank balances disposed of T ERE MIRTTHER (1,369)
(1,368
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - Continved

(b)

202

34. HEMEB AT &

Disposal during the year ended 31 March 2019 b) RBE=FE-AFE=ZA=+—H
LFENHESR

As referred to in Note 9[b), on 30 January 2019, the AN FEQb)FTI c R T —hF—A

Group disposed of the Disposal Group which engaged in =STE AEELEELESEE (EF

manufacturing and sale of OEM toys. The net liabiliies of RREBHETENGFEREE) - R

OEM toys segment at the date of disposal were as follows: RBHETASHTNEHERHNEE
R

30 January 2019

—ZE-hF
—A=+H
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment ER NS /4,369
Inventories FE 18,882
Trade and other receivables, FEUN & 5 BR 3 K EoAth fE U FROE
deposits and prepayment re RBENKRIE 31,621
Cash and cash equivalents BeMhRESEEY 2,861
Tax recoverable AT U B 7% 18 555
Trade and other payables FETE 5 BR 3 & EoAth FE < 5R0R (109,8606)
Bank borrowings RITIER (51,310)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEEE (14,4306
Net liabilities BEFHE (47,324)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or loss B DA EE w2 E X E58 35,705
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries included in HEMRBAR ZKE (Rirs18%E
loss for the year from discontinued operations NEAMMEERSERAFAKRE
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ERIERERBZ2FAEBE)
and other comprehensive income 11,620
Total consideration wRE |
Satisfied by: XfHR:
Cash B ]
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEFHEEENR ML FHE
Cash consideration ReRE 1
Cash and bank balances disposed of T ERE MIRTTHER (2,861)
(2,860)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35. RESERVES

The Group

The natures and purposes of reserves are set out below:

Share premium

Under the Companies law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions and dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Arficles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distributions or dividend
payments, the Company is able to pay ifs debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet o be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment fransactions in Note

5(o).

Convertible loan nofes equity reserve

Amount of proceeds on issue of convertible loan notes relating o
the equity component (i.e. option fo convert the debt info share
capifal).

Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve represents foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy sef out in Note 5().

land and buildings revaluation reserve

land and buildings revaluation reserve represents the cumulative
net change in the fair value of land and buildings held at the end
of reporting period and are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in Note 5(d).

Accumulated losses

It represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in
profit or loss.

A3 40 R PR

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

35. &

eX
FRmZEE kB BHFEINT

Bt it 8

RERSBHEARA (KER)F202E A
AEZBDEEIRERAEEZAMAR
AR Z 530 RFRRR X 92 Ik RS, -
HEERE D IR B EE - RR R BESEIE
ERNBEEHBRTE R ER-

B

AT EES(O) AR I RERN R 2 X H 2 &5
BRI BRERAEEEESRLARTT
ErREREATE

AR ERREE S A

BT E SRR B A A 1S 5008 S A a5 AP
o (A EHER SRR EEE) BN

TR
PE 3R B h
EX KB REEBRERESIEBYHEERRE

PfTEE A B 91 I 2 BR o 5% R A T AR 4R P RE 5 (1)
PREN &Rt RERETTRIE

T METFEGFEE

THRBFELAREERSBRABAL
WREFTRAFENRFTEEFE MEHEE
THIRBH RSB @ 5T BURE TR IE

RETEER

RABEERBER 2 Ritiiam RER
FEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR ERME
31 December 2019 —E—hAFE+_-_A=+—H

35. RESERVES - Continved 35. #FE-—~#
The Company b /N
Convertible
Share loan
Share option  notes equity  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
ARREX
ZRER
ROEE BRERE 1] 2 B8 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx TER THET TEx THET
At 1 April 2018 R-E-NEMA—-A 415,734 = = (852,085) (436,351)
Loss for the year FRER - - - (80,230) (80,230)
Equityseftled sharebased payment  bARE& A B LARR 7 &
expense EROSTHEY - 15,742 - - 15,742
Issue of new shares, BITHR M
net of transaction cost (NBRFHHA) 8,733 - - - 8,733
Issue of converfible loan nofes BIARKRERER = = 19,835 = 19,835
At 31 March 2019 R-ZZ-NE
ZRA=+-H 424 467 15,742 19,835 (932,315) (472,271)
At 1 April 2019 R-E-NEMA—-A 424 467 15,742 19,835 (932,315) (472,271)
Loss for the period HRER = - - (186,008) (186,008
Equitysetled share-bosed payment LA % & & LA (7 &
expense ERMATHEY - (15,742 - 15,742 -
Repurchase of shares B e = = - 36,6065 36,665
At 31 December 2019 RZB-N%
+=ZA=+-H 424 467 - 19,835 (1,065,916 (621,614)
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36. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2019

A3 40 R PR
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36. ER AR I BRI T

POSITION
At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZZE-h%F RZE—NF
t=A=t-A =A=1—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RB ARz = 255,657 442,751
Financial assefs at FVTPL BAFEFAEBRZ
EHEE 18,306 38,905
273,963 481,656
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments AR 510 476
Tax recoverable AU Bl # 1R 9 9
Cash and cash equivalents ReEKREEEY 4,774 5619
5,293 6,104
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges Hofth & 5 5R38 K e 5T B B 2,366 3,242
Convertible loan notes RRERER 110,038 -
112,404 3,242
Net current (liabilities)/assets B (BE) EEFE (107,111) 2,862
Total assets less current liabilities BEERLBEE 166,852 484,518
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible loan notes ABRRERZR - 100,891
Deferred tax liabilities FREFHIBEE 1,920 3,767
1,920 104,658
Net assets EEFRE 164,932 379,860
EQUITY Ex
Share capital N 31 786,546 852,131
Reserves f#E 35 (621,614) [472,271)
Total equity s 164,932 379,860
On behalf of the directors RERES
Lei Hong Wai Tse Chi Keung
TR Bl
Director Director
EE EZ
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2019 and 31 March 2019, the Group had

no material contingent liabilifies.

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the period/year, the Group had transactions and
balances with related parties, some of which are also deemed
fo be connected parties pursuant fo the Listing Rules. Besides,
transactions between the Company and s subsidiaries have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this

note.

(a) During the period/year, the Group entered into the

following material fransactions with related parties:

Related party relationship
FHEALEE

Companies confrolled by a close family member
of a director of a subsidiary of the Company
HAAR—FHMBARN —REEZ
TR EESIQ A

Note: These companies ceased fo be related parties of the
Group since the resignation of that director on 7 May
2019, and on the same date, the amounts due to these
companies of HK$29,164,000 were reclassified to trade
and other payables. Accordingly, the transactions for the
period from 1 April 2019 up to 7 May 2019 amounting
to approximately HK$11,080,000 were related party
transactions of the Group. Nevertheless, the fransactions
for the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019
amounting to approximately HK$74,365,000 constitute
connected fransaction or continuing connected transaction

as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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37. XAKE

38.

Types of transaction

RXHEE

Purchases (Note)

BE (M)

R-ZE-AE+-_A=+—-HBRER=-ZZE—A
FZA=Zt+—" B AEETESASRE
&

BHEALRS

BR/ 50 AEEREAEEAL (B
MRE EMAR R SBREAL)ETR
SRBERGER W ARBREMER
AlZHENRZERGEE AR HE WER
ARHEER BT

(o) HA/FAR AEBEBEEANL
YIATERRS:

Transaction amount

RXEEH

Period from
1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019

R-ZZB-—hEF

MA—BZE
—E-hFE BEZT-IF
+=—A=+—H =A=+—H
HA [ EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
11,080 71,508

Misdd: ZEARICDHAZEER-_T—NF
AAtHABIRITBALAEEY
EEEAL -RAAR EHZER
ARBE_TAE—T"BONTH
TEEFOBEEEMNESERERK
HENREBE-Bit - R=F— A
FWMAE—BE-_ZTZ—NAFRHAL
AR @ENA—T—EZENE
BLZRSBAEB 2 EBEA
+XG-ARM R_E—hhEWMA
—RAEZE—hhF+=ZA=+—
AMSBENALEtTEE =<
BERATHBELNRSEK LA
FETHOAZEFMATHBRER S HIF
BRIER 5 -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - Continved 38. FRAEAETRG %
(b) Key management personnel compensation b) EEEESRM
The key management personnel includes the directors, R,/ FRNEEBEEERREANTE
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 15(a) and other E(EHFMNAM 50 E) REM
key management of the Company during the period/year. EBREZE-EREEZEER (RESN)
The emoluments of the ke\/ management excluding directors HENa T

were as follows:

Period from
1 April 2019 Year ended
to 31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZE—h&F
A—HZ HE
—E-h#F —E-hF
+=HA=+—H =A=+—H
iR IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FHET
Shortterm benefits 52 HAfE A = Q00
Postemployment benefits BREET = 30

- 230
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39.

208
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CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

On 8 October 2018 (the “lssue Date"), the Company
issued inifially 8% straight bonds with a principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 with conditional conversion rights (the
“Conversion Rights”). The bonds mature two years from the
Issue Date at their principal amount, or subject to the satisfaction
of cerfain conditions precedent in relation to the Conversion
Rights (the “CB Conditions Precedent’), can be converted info
ordinary shares of the Company at the holder's opfion (the
"Conversion Option’) at the fixed rate of HK$O.1 per share.
On 22 November 2018 (the “Change Date”), the Conditions
Precedent have been fulfilled and the straight bonds were
changed to 6% convertible loan notes embedded with the rights
of early redemption by the Company (the “Redemption Rights”).
The convertible loan notes are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. Further defails of the convertible loan notes were set out
in the Company's announcements dated 8 October 2018 and
22 November 2018.

The convertible loan notes confain the Redemption Rights that
allow the Company as the issuer to redeem the convertible loan
nofes at par fogether with accrued inferests af any time during
the life of the convertible loan notes. The redemption price is
substantially equal to the amortised cost of the liability component
of the convertible loan notes. Accordingly, the Redemption Rights
are considered to be ‘closely related” to the liability component of
the convertible loan notes, and the Redemption Right is therefore
not separately recognised from the liability component of the
convertible loan nofes.

The Management considered the ferms of the convertible loan
notes met the ‘fixedforfixed’ criterion. Therefore, the Conversion
Option is recognised as equity component of the convertible loan
notes.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
conversion component were defermined af the Change Date.
The fair value of the liability component, included in non-current
financial liabilities, was calculated using a market interest rafe for
an equivalent non-convertible loan notes. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in shareholders” equity net of deferred income taxes.
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39. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES - Continved

The convertible loan notes recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are calculated as follows:

Equity component of convertible loan nofes
on the Change Date

Notes to the Financial Statements
M| R EE

31 December 2019

30. IKRERTEE &

—E-AFT=A=1-R

B 2 BB AROR R TR e T B AR B R0
TR T AR
HK$'000
FET
R E A2 RS KR E RS
19,835

Equity component of convertible loan nofes as

at 31 March 2019 and 31 December 2019

R-P-NFZA=+—BEK
T-AF+-A=+—R

ﬂ?@&ﬁ?ﬁ(%ﬁéfmﬁﬁé% 19,835

Liability component on the Change Date REERNEERD 94,288
Interest expense FERX 6,603
Liability component at 31 March 2019 R-E-NAF=A=+—H

under non-current liabilities ERBEEETHNEEHY 100,891
Inferest expense FERZ 16,636
First coupon payment EREEIXRE (/7,489)
Liability component at 31 December 2019 R-B-NAFt+-A=+—

under current liabilities MEBEEETHNEE %Bﬁj\ 110,038
Inferest expense on the convertible loan notes is calculated using AHRBREREBENF SR DREEES

the effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate

of 9% 1o the liability component.

Prior to the Change Date, inferest expense of HK$1,
the straight bonds was also recognised in profit or loss during the

year ended 31 March 2019

PEBABEDZNANE

E
157,000 for REFHR REE-_ZE—NLF=
BEFE TBESFHIE

R R 2 BER A ROL

A=+-
ME—®

—tTHBLTATTERNBRETER -

TEREEREERAERAT T

NFR
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40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2019, the Group had non-cash additions to rightofuse
assets and lease liabilities of HK$12,262,000 and
HK$12,262,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings. [year ended 31 March 2019:
Nil).

As disclosed in Note 38(a), amounts due fo the related
companies of HK$29,164,000 were reclassified to frade
and other payables upon the resignation of a director
during the current period.
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40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2019

FINANCING ACTIVITIES - Continved

(b)

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities (b)
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. liabilities arising from financing activities

are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be classified in the Group's consolidated statement of

A3 40 R PR

—E-AFT=A=1-R

40. REBEEDH R EHEK »

T%§i§IJ$%llﬁﬂi§%§bF$ZE

’\ﬂ]%fﬁ‘i\&itfﬁ‘i\m ° Bl
,\/E@JF$ZE\L

ﬂi//m%jszx

i//m%f/jb_/\$¢ .Z?/D\Iﬁi//\hii.%

_ ' = $Aﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ RenEZB
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. &
Convertible Leases
loan notes  Borrowings liabilities Total
R
ERER BE HEAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THET THT TEx
(Note 39) [Note 28] (Note 17)
(H5E39) (Bi3¥28) (Ri3E17)
At 1 April 2018 —E-\FNA—H S 100,391 S 100,391
Change from cash flows: HREenes
Proceeds from issue of %’\%TT—H%HXE HER
converfible loan nofes Fri5zE 120,000 - - 120,000
Proceeds from borrowings Fﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁtﬁ( - 5,612 - 5612
Repayment of borrowings BEEE - (41,281) - (41,281)
Interest paid ENHE - (3,799) - 3,799)
120,000 60,923 - 180,923
Other changes: Hin#s):
Gain on deemed disposal of bonds ﬁf’ﬁtﬂ%f H2Wa (2,410) = = (2,410
Equity component on the Change Date SEAMNESZLS (19,835 - - (19,835
Deferred tax LL%RIE (4,624) - - [4,624)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEM B DA - (51,310 - (51,310)
Finance costs WEKK 7,760 3,799 - 11,559
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-hN&=F=+—H 100,891 13,412 S 114,303
Change from cash flows Rengs
Proceeds from borrowings EEmMEFA - 18,685 - 18,685
Repayment of borrowings EEEE - (11,787) - (11,787
Inferest paid BAIFIE (7,489 (1,341) (1,078) (9,908)
Repayment of principal portion of f& iﬁﬁﬁf ilNeagipa)
lease liabilities - - (©,262) (9,262)
(7,489 5557 (10,340) (12,727)
Other changes Hip &
itial application of HKFRS 16 BERERBENBRE
ERIFE 165 = = 15,290 15,290
New leases HHE = - 12,262 12,262
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBRF - (1,625) - (1,625]
Finance cost BMEKAK 16,636 1,341 1,078 19,055
At 31 December 2019 -hWE+=-B=+—H 110,038 18,685 18,290 147,013
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objective of managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
comprising the borrowings disclosed in Note 28, lease liabilities
disclosed in Note 17 and convertible loan notes disclosed in
Note 39, less cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits
and financial assets at FVTPL, and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising share capital and reserves as disclosed
in Nofes 31 and 35 respectively.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the Management considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capifal. Based on recommendations of management, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, issue of new share as well as new debts or
redemption of existing debis.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

1. EXERER

AEEEEEANB R EERNEEESN
FERLE RRREHOHL AE MR
BATRHE S W RENEREREI

AEBNEARBEBEEGFRE (B2ER
M2 EBEMEE HEI/7RENHEER
BERMEIORENARRERRRRIRS
kB EEY CERRTFRRRATE
AAABRZEREE)  RARBER AR
HHEm (BEDRINMES RISHE 2K
AR f#E) °

AEBHEEETRRAEARBE -ERIL
R — W BEEEEEEEAKA KA
EREXNARENAR - RIBEEENES
AEBEREBRNBE  BITHRIALINE
BRBORBES FEEEENEARR
e

RBEHRRZEERBLRNT

At 31 December At 31 March

2019 2019

—E-NEF —E-NF

+=A=+—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Debts &% 147,013 114,303
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY (47,072) (54,940
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITER (8,190) =
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABEZEMEE (138,581) (228,022)
Net debts BEI%F 5 (46,830) (168,659
Equity M2 326,673 393,440
Net debts to equity ratio E1% F R R N/ATiE A N/ A 1E
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it fo a variety of financial risks:

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR
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42 BREAREE

5t %5 J B X 3
AEBEZEZBEEAH TR BERR FE

credit risk, liquidity risk, inferest rate risk and foreign exchange BB RENE SRR - F R DA R IMNE
risk. % o

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily atiributable to its
trade and other receivables and loans receivable. The
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures fo these credif risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take info account information specific
fo the customers as well as perfaining fo the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of
trade cusfomers and, where appropriate, credit guarantee
insurance cover is purchased. Trade receivables are
due within 30-60 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances that are more than 3 months past due are
requested to seffle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obfain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characterisfics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but fo a lesser extent.
At the end of reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 26% (31 March 2019:
21%) and 51% (31 March 2019: 56%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively within the OBM foys
and Chinese health products business segments.

ZERBRIINARENYHEERREE

HERBRANT ©
o) EERRK

AEENEERRTIEZREHEEKE
29 AR R e EL A R W SR IR A B PR U E 3K
EEEEMENEERR LEHE
EEMAZNZEEERR -

AREWE SRR ME HRAEER
BRETEESRNBEEYSETHE
FIEENE - EFHEIEHERE
BEDNHS R ER LR RBRFOEN
RN YEBBEENENERRER
REMBHRBERENER -AKHE
SUHEFRPHMBINETHER
B X (MER) BEEEERRE
R RBEZEFTHELREE AL
=T ERTHRIH -BREHRE
B=ERBEARNZ BB A
BREREEERER T ERE—D
ZEE-AEE-—RIEREFUKER
Ef e

AEBMNEERREIEZSEFER
HEMEE RREEETERERY
BHERNTSYEEZERK BI2E
BER-RBEHR BRRBEERE
BUEMARPERBEREBE S BE -
BRESGEFRBBZADZ T
(ZZE—hAhE=A=+—RHR: @52
) RBAESZA+T—(ZT—A
F=ZA=+—B :BHZE+N)H5
ARRAEEREAEFRAREFHN
RE BWAKEGFEETEESEYR

B o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(a)

214

42 B ERERE -
BEEREE -7

Credit risk = Continved () ZERR-—Z&
The credit risk of the Group's financial assefs (which AEBSRMEE (RIEERE FERER
comprise gross trade receivables, loans receivable, other F’Eqﬁlfdx B FIEARE S R
receivables and cash and cash equivalent] arises from EEWEB)NEER A% B ¥
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal %FLZ’J RARBRBOSENZET
fo the carrying amounts of these instruments. BEHREE-
Trade receivables JEWE ZBRK
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables AEBZBEENERBEHEERAT L
at an amount equal fo lifetime ECLs, which is calculated AEAFHRANBEHREEFENSRE
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit AERWESRFZERBEE AR
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss AEEZAEEEBRERIL | T
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance RZEFDHE %E/T\EKJ%ETE EXZ8
based on past due status is not further distinguished RIEE ARG E 2 BB Tﬁﬁlﬂb%
between the Group's different customer bases. REENAEFPER  HE—FED
The following table provides information about the Group's THREHEBALRIEER_Z—NF
exposure fo credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at +TZA=+—H E‘JEJEWT%EE KPR H
31 December 2019 R EERREIBHEEEECER
Expected Gross
loss rate  carrying amount Loss allowance
RHBRX BEREE BERERE
(%) (HK$'000] (HK$'000)
(%) (F&T) (F#&1)
Current (nof past due) e (REeE) 0.05 31,077 16
1-30 days past due BH—-AFE=1H 0.47 1,185 5
31-90 days past due BAH=+—-RAZEATH 0.51 412 21
90 days - 1 year past due BENTRE—F 46.12 5,852 2,699
Over 1 year past due BE—FNUE 100.00 2,389 2,389
44,624 5,130
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Confinved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(a)

Credit risk — Continved
Trade receivables — Continved

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure fo credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at

31 March 2019:

MR ERMEE
31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

42. B ERERE o
PEEAREE &
o EERR-H
FEW B SR — 4

TREHBRASER_FT—NE=
A=+ —BREESERFAAERLZ
EERRMEREEERCER:

Expected Gross Loss

loss rale  carrying amount allowance

BHERE AREE BRRA

(%) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)

(%) (F#Em) (F#&m)

Current [not past due] TE (REH) 0.03 34,369 10
1-30 days past due BH-AZ=1H 0.37 4,859 18
31-90 days post due BH=+T-AZEATH 0.65 616 4
90 days - 1 year past due BRNTEE—F 65.62 3,284 2,155
Over 1 year past due BE—FE 100.00 16,298 16,298
59,426 18,485

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rafes are adjusted fo reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

BEHERXREBEEE=ZFNERER
KEIFL -ZFLRE THBUARKR
BN EBFEEIEARAZEBENRR
= R B A S [ R W R IR 2 TR R
FHAZEBEMRRZER 2EHER -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued 42. B RRER -4
Financial risk factors — Continved MBEBEE-Z
(@)  Credit risk = Continved o) EERR-—#Z
Trade receivables — Continved JEWE ZHRK—E
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related BE K 280 B 75 4 R0 (B B R MKORROR B AR AT
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no HENEEHAREZFHEA-

recent hisfory of default.

Receivables that were past due but nof impaired related o

a number of independent customers that had a good track

record with the Group. Based on past experience, the

Management believed that there had been no significant

260 2 {8 8 Rk (6 A B OB B T
AEEARFABCENBILEFH
Mo-REBELR EEERAREE
BRUEBEBAES BXFHEHRIDK

change in credit quality and the balances were still RAREEE -
considered fully recoverable.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade HAN,/ FNEBREKE ZEROES
receivables during the period/year is as follows: BERESHUT:
Period from
1 April 2019 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2019 2019
R=B-IF
A—BZ =
—E-hEF —E-hF
+=—HA=+—H —RA=+—H
A IFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER TET
Balance at the beginning of RETBERY), R B 45 84
the financial period/year 18,485 16,531
Impairment losses recognised RER/ FRE®R
during the period,/year B EE 2,603 3,505
Amounts written off during REAR,FRMEN &5
the period/year - (667)
Elimination through disposal of FBRLENB LR
subsidiaries (15,958) (1,000)
Exchange allowance BE B - 116
Balance af the end of the period/year REIR,ERE &4 5,130 18,485
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Confinved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(a)

Credit risk — Continved
Trade receivables — Continved

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed fo the decrease in
the loss allowance during the period from 1 April 2019 to
31 December 2019:

- Increase in days past due over 30 days resulted in
an increase in loss allowance of HK$2,049,000
(31 March 2019: HK$2,626,000;

- Origination of new frade receivables net of those
seffled resulted in an increase in loss allowance of

HK$554,000 (31 March 2019: HK$879,000);

- There was no amount written off against trade
receivables during the period from 1 April 2019
o 31 December 2019. During the year ended
31 March 2019, a write-off of trade receivables with
a gross carrying amount of HK$667,000 resulted in
a decrease in loss allowance of HK$667,000; and

- Derecognition of trade receivables upon disposal
of subsidiaries resulted in a decrease in loss
allowance of HK$15,958,000 (31 March 2019:
HK$1,000,000).

Loans receivable

The loans receivable have been reviewed by the
Management to assess impairment which are based on the
evaluation of ECls by assessing financial background of
the borrowers (the "Borrowers”), who are independent third
parties of the Group and its connected person, including
but not limited to the fair value of properties held by the
Borrowers and the Borrowers” wholly-owned companies.

31 December 2019

R 55 SR R I oE
—E-AFT=A=1-R

42 B ERERE -

I E R EE &

(a)

EERR—&
FEWE SR — &

EWE B RFREAENATERR
PEIRN T -NFOA-BE_F
—NE+-A=1T—BHRNEERE
R

- @M=t RN NS B
BEEN-EEMEATHER
—E-AfE=A=+-8:
SEATZEATER)

- EETRERKEBESERREHER
BREZATAEONTET (=%
—NF=A=+—H:N\+Lt8&
NTFET)

- RZIZE-NFHEA—BE=Z
—NWF+—A=+—BHHE ¥
EREWE SRFME &5
REBEEZTE-—NF=ZA=1+—
BLEFE MHEREBREAR
NTARBETETHEKREZES
BRRBHEBEBRERL TN
BtFEL &

- REEHBRARE KRILERE
WE SRR EREEBEERD

—FTREATEENTET(Z
Z-NF=A=+—H:—BE
ABTT) e

EEECEMEBRER XBBFHE
fERA(MBERAl RAEE R HEA
BALTHBYIE=7)NIBERL
ERFEHEERBENGRE 8%E
TRRERAMFODENRFERE
RAZERBAHN AT -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(a)

218

Credit risk = Continved
loans receivable — Continved

At the end of each reporting period, the Group analyses
the changes in forwardHooking estimates and accordingly
adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes
in these factors. The Group has identified the year-on-year
change of Hong Kong real Gross Domestic Product and
Consumer Price Index, the 3-month Hong Kong inferbank
offered rate and the Hong Kong annual unemployment
rafe fo be the most relevant factors of the ECL rate for the
individual customers; and the Chicago Board Options
Exchange Volatility Index, the market forecast of the
Purchasing Managers' Index, the yearonvyear change of
nonfarm poyro” to be the most relevant factors of the ECL
rate for the corporate customers.

The movements in the impairment allowance of loans
receivable were as follows:

42 R ERE -
BERREE &

(a)

EERR—&
EREZ—E

K& W& HIR  ANE B A7 AE M
MR YREBEZSFARZBAHE
BEEFARBEBEX AKECDH
AEEERAEERBERERER
BENEFEY —EAAFTBRITH
ENRBLRBEBFRERREZRRERNEP
BEHEEREINREBRAR M
METRERZARB RS KEL
BEARBNTISER FRAEAR
MRFEHREEETFPAMEERR
FHMRMEMARE-

R ER 2 RERBESMNT

Period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019

R-B-NENA-BEZB-NF+tZA=+-HHH

Lifetime ECL not Lifefime ECL

12-month ECL  creditimpaired ~ creditimpaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

R R

FHRH FHRH

12(8F RAGEEE REFEER

REGERRE (EBEHEAE) (BEERE)
(B-HKER) (B-ER) (F=E&) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TR
At the beginning of the period RE 675 4,434 - 5,109
Recognised during the period REIRER 1,267 4,793 - 6,060
Reversed during the period REIR (467) - - (467)
At the end of the period REIR 1,475 9,227 - 10,702
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Confinved 42 BEEBER -~

Financial risk factors — Confinved BRREEE &
(a)  Credit risk — Continved o) EERR-4&
loans receivable — Continved JEWEF A&

Year ended 31 March 2019
ZB2-NEZA=1-H
Lifeime ECLnot  Lifefime ECL Impairment
12:month ECL ~ creditimpaired ~ creditimpaired allowance
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) [Stage 3)  under HKAS 39 Total
AR CE:3
E3 EHRK
1288 HBHEEEE RHEEEE FHREHE
REGERE (EFEHE) (SFEERE)  F39WET
(5-B&) ($=RR) ($=RR) HERE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAR TER THR TER THER

At the beginning of the year REA - - - - -
Effect of inifial adoption of HKFRS & SR#AE BRI @& £A
FTE - = = - -

Recognised during the year RERER 675 4,434 - - 5,109

At the end of the year RERX 675 4,434 = = 5,109

The following significant changes in the loans receivable KRB, AFE REREEBKDH

from money lending business contributed to the increase in BRERZATERSSHEHREER

the loss allowance during the period/year: g N :

e Significant increase in credit risk of loans receivable e RIE-AFE+ZA=+-—H
with a gross carrying amount of HK$59,000,000 MEEHEBERTABEEAET
at 31 December 2019 (31 March 2019: —“E-NAF=ZA=+—8:
HK$35,000,000) has resulted in an increase in loss —TFHREEBT)MNERERZ
allowance of HK$4,793,000 for the period from FERBEAZHEEHR_F
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 (year ended —NEFHAR—-—BRE_ZT-NF
31 March 2019: HK$4,434,000). +-A=+—BHENEBER

BEMNNBELETAE=ZTAET
(BE2-_ZE—NF=A=+—H
FtEE - NEN+=8m/T5
JL) °
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Coniinved 42. MERREER 4
Financial risk factors — Continved MEEEEE-Z
(a)  Credit risk — Continved o) EERR—-4&
loans receivable — Continved JEWEFH—&
The following tables provide information about the Group's TRIBMHE ALK EEREKAHEER
credit risk exposure on loans receivable: ZIEERRZER:
Risk profile by probability of default REAOBE 25| E R
Gross carrying amount (unsecured)
FEAE (BEH)
12-month Lifetime Total
1218 A ERAEHR 5t
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-nF+=A=+-8 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% % FHT FET FEL
0.00-0.10 0.00—-0.10 = S =
0.11-0.40 0.11-0.40 = = =
0.41-1.00 0.41-1.00 = S -
1.01-3.00 1.01-3.00 213,620 = 213,620
3.01-6.00 3.01-6.00 = = =
6.01-11.00 6.01-11.00 = S =
11.01-17.00 11.01-17.00 S S S
17.01 - 25.00 17.01-25.00 = = =
25.01-50.00 25.01-33.00 = 60,913 60,913
Over 50.00 50.000A & - - -
213,620 60,913 274,533
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Coninved 42. MG RREE =

Financial risk factors — Confinved BRRBEE &

(a)  Credit risk — Continved o) EERR-#&

loans receivable — Continved JEWEF A&

Risk profi|e b\/ probobﬂif\/ of default RELHBEZ5HRRER
Gross carrying amount (unsecured)
REAE (REKR)

12-month Lifetime Total
12188 AFERAEHRRA @t
At 31 March 2019 R-ZZE-AE=A=+—-H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% % AT THET THET
0.00-0.10 0.00-0.10 - - -
0.11-0.40 0.11-0.40 - - -
0.41-1.00 0.41-1.00 25719 - 25,719
1.01-3.00 1.01-3.00 204,606 - 204,606
3.01-6.00 3.01-6.00 - - -
6.01-11.00 6.01-11.00 - - -
11.01-17.00 11.01-17.00 - - -
17.01-25.00 17.01-25.00 - - -
25.01-50.00 25.01-50.00 - 35,400 35,400
Over 50.00 50.0004 £ = = =
230,325 35,400 265,725
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved 42 R BER -~
BREAREE &

Financial risk factors — Continved
a)  Credit risk = Continved
Other receivables

The other receivables have been reviewed by the
Management to assess impairment which are based on the
evaluation of ECLs by assessing financial background of
the counterparties.

The movements in the impairment allowance of other

receivables were as follows:

(a)

EERR—&
A1t fE YR

EEECDENEMEYIE LEB
FHEEFIOMBE R LERTEHE
EEBENERE-

Hit YRR 2R EREES T

Period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZZB-NEMA-BE-B-NF+ZA=+-BHH

12-month ECL
(Stage 1
[Note 51h(ii)

1288
BOEEFR
(E-KR)
(B=ES(h)(i))
HK$'000
THR

At the beginning and R RER
at the end of the period -

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL

creditimpaired  creditimpaired

(Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
(Note 5(h]{i)) (Note 5(h|{i)
A nER

EHAH FHAH
EHEEFR RORERR
(REERE) (ERERE)

(F-ER) (B=RR) @t
(H=ES (i) (H&ES(hfi))

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AR TER TEn

- 21,956 21,956
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Confinved 42. BB EREE 2
Financial risk factors — Continved MEREBEE-#Z
(o) Credit risk = Continved o) EERR-—#Z
Other receivables — Continued H M JEW KT — 48

Year ended 31 March 2019
BECR-NF=A=1-ALFE
Lifeime ECLnot  Lifefime ECL Impairment

12:month ECL ~ creditimpaired ~ creditimpaired allowance
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) [Stage 3)  under HKAS 39 Total
Note S[HJil) ~ (Noe S{hlfil]  Note S{hlil
CL:d: QL3
3T ERRl

128F RAGEFE RUGEHE BFESHE
BOGERE (BEERE) (BEEWE)  H9RET
(F-BB) (F-BBR) (BB HERE -
(BEESh)) (RS (RS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEr Thr TR Thr

At the beginning of the year — FAEA] - - - 23,464 23,464
Effect of inificl adoption of RBERMBREENFOR

HKRRS 9 798 - ; Basd (23464 :
Exchange differences EXER = = (1,508) S (1,508)
At the end of the year REXR S S 21,956 S 21,956
For the current period and prior vyear, included in the RAPERBEFE FRABER
allowance for doubtful debts in respect of other receivables KRBz BERREEB R
is a provision for individually impaired other receivables of HEA-_T—BAALTRERTER
HK$21,956,000 with a carrying amount before provision B 18 Bl 2 % (B H fh e W 3IR B
of HK$21,956,000. ZF—BhATEBATHERT
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved

224

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the shortterm investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings
exceed cerfain predefermined levels of authority. The Group
maintains availability of funding through an adequate
amount of available credit facilities. The Management aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group's
and the Company's derivative and non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates, or if floating, based on rates current
at the end of reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required fo pay.
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(b)

MEE SRR

AEERNBYZEERRATANSE
TEE BRSHcBAMEEHRE
REEEFARNERNRSF R (F
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Coniinved 42. BBEBEER &
Financial risk factors — Continved IS B B & — 4

(b)  liquidity risk — Confinved b) mEBESRR &
Total More than  More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted ~ Within1 year less than less than
amount cash flow or on demand 2 years 5 years
BRRFR —£R BB-fF BEME
BHE RERELRE FEER EIRME EBIREEF

31 December 2019 —EZ-NF

+=A=t-H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TERT TER TR TER

Trade and other payables ERESERR

H A e 1308 117,663 117,663 117,663 - -
lease liabilities MEBE 18,290 19,355 12,855 5,183 1,317
Borrowings BE 18,685 18,685 18,685 = =
Convertible loan notes TRBRERZE 110,038 110,038 110,038 = =
264,676 265,741 259,241 5,183 1,317
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
BHRTH —FRH BE-F
REE RERELE EEX BORWE
31 March 2019 “Z-h¥=A=+-H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR

Trade and other payables ENEHERR
HibENHRIE 92,048 92,048 92,048 -
Borrowings &8 13,412 13,412 13,412 -
Convertible loan notes TREEREE 100,891 123,676 3,676 120,000
Amounts due fo related companies B B RE R BIFR 89,737 89,737 89,737 =
296,088 318,873 198,873 120,000
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved

Financial risk factors — Continved
(b)  Liquidity risk = Continued

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clouse
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreements. The amounts include interest payments
computed using confractual rafes. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in the
“on demand” time band in the maturity analysis contained
in above table. Taking info account the Group's financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is probable
that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand

42.

MBEREERE &
B EMEE
b) FEESER A

TRBUL A R ERKEE R RTT
BB R IR S B i0p o P8 2 10 FE 38 K B
MREL MBI - FESHEE
EERANNKRFEZFEMNRK-H
o EEESN ERAHIHA D
e [ERERIGEE-—JFREZS
Bt RAKBZHBAN EFR
AIRIT K ATBEAG 1T 2 B2 SR AN B 8 30
MBEE-EFHE ARRTEER
KERBEE R HEME B EERA

immediate repayment. The directors believe that such HmEE-
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
Total Within -~ Morethan ~ More than
contractual 1year  1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
BRAFR —£R BBE-F BBmME
REE ReRELH FEER EIRWME EIREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T THET TET THET
At 31 December 2019  R=B—-hE+=A
=+-H 18,685 19,934 19,934 - -
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-N$=A=+—H 13,412 13,412 13,412 > 5

(c)  Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and af
fixed rates expose the Group fo cash flow interest rate risk
and fair volue inferest rate risk respectively. The interest
rates and ferms of repayment of the Group's borrowings
are disclosed in Note 28. The Group currently does not
use any derivative confracts to hedge its exposure fo
interest rate risk. However, the Management will consider
hedging significant inferest rate exposure should the need

arise.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued 42. HGRRER a4
Financial risk factors — Continved MBEBEE-Z
(c) Interest rate risk — Continved () FIERR—4Z
The following table defails the interest rate profile of the TRHAINRERRAEB BB LRE
Group's fotal debts at the end of reporting period. 2T o
At 31 December 2019 At 31 March 2019
RZB-NFE+ZA=+-H RZZ-NE=ZA=+—H
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BERAMZ IR
% TER % THET
At fixed rate REERE
Convertible loan notes RRERER 6 110,038 6 100,891
Other borrowings S - - 5.6 1,712
110,038 102,603
At variable rate BEBRE
Bank loans BITER 8.84 18,685 6.14 11,700
18,685 11,700
128,723 114,303
Net fixed rate borrowing as REFNEz FEFRE
a percentage of fofal debis EBBRZEDNY 85% 90%
At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general R_E-NAF+A=+—H &t
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with ME—REA/TRATEEE
all other variables held constant, would increase,/decrease EREEMESRIETE BIAE
the Group's loss before income tax by approximately BRFTS AT B S I, R BN E
HK$93,000 (31 March 2019: HK$59,000). =FET(ZE-—NF=A=+—8:

ABATERL) -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Continved

228

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk — Continved

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in inferest rafes had occurred
at the end of reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to inferest rate risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that
date. The 50 basis points increase/decrease represents
the Management's assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next end
of reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same

basis for the year ended 31 March 2019

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed fo foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect fo United
States dollars ("US$") and Renminbi ("RMB”).

exchange risk arises from future commercial fransactions,

Foreign

recognised assefs and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. The Group currently does not hedge its
foreign exchange exposure.

The following table defails the Group's exposure af the end
of reporting period to currency risk arising from forecast
fransactions or recognised assefs or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
fo which they relate.

42.

MBEREERE &
B EMEE

(c)

(d)

At 31 December 2019
R-BE-N&E+=-A=1+-H

FIEmB &
SR A YRR TR R BN R

EHACELE BELKEARZATE
EZMERETESRITAZNER
fRmEE A+ EEEN AT
AREEEHT @RS BRI 2 HME
W NERATREE A 2 BB BART (4
RBEZ-_T-NAFt+_-_A=+—HL
FEZOMIREREEETT

SN LB

AEEEERETRAER 2 IMNERR
TESRET ([ET)) RARE (TA
R SMNERBR KB BINERZK
KAXRRS CHIABERBENAR
REFEE - AN KB B AL E S E S
EE LR -

TRANANEERFEHRK A BN
RBHAEBERZEEE AN
EBINEZEEREEXRBEZINE
B o

At 31 March 2019
RZE-N&E=ZA=+—H

RMB us$ RMB Uus$
AR% Eye AR® ET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THT THT
Trade and other receivables EUE BT R
Hio KA - 33,353 3,211 29,445
Cash and cash equivalents BekBELEEY 520 8,315 3,787 3,400
Trade and other payable ENESERR
Hip I RE - (14,219) (11,059 (51,737)
Borrowings 5E - (18,681) (1,668 (11,700)
Overall net exposure EREARAE TS 520 8,768 (5,729) (30,592
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - Confinved

Financial risk factors — Confinved

(d)

Foreign exchange risk — Continved

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group's loss for the period/year in response fo
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rafes

Notes to the Financial Statements
M| R EE

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

42 B ERERE -

MEEBREE &
(d)  SMERR—AF
TRETFAEENKTHE KEEH

BREASENRREHRBEENER
ZINEERSIER BB 5| 2 A

to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of 2.

reporting period.

At 31 December 2019 At 31 March 2019
RZB-AF+-A=+-B RZF-NF=A=t-H
Increase/ Increase/ Increase,/ Increase,/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease] (decrease)
in foreign in loss in foreign in loss
exchange rates  for the period  exchange rates for the year
SMEE % rHEER HNEE B & AEEBHE
/(T8 #m/CR2) A/ (T #n/Cid)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
RMB AR 5% (26) 5% 286
(5%) 26 (5% (286)
Us$ ETT 5% (438) 5% 1,530
(5%) 438 15% (1,530

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of reporting period and had been applied to
each of the group entities; exposure to currency risk for
both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in
particular inferest rafes, remain constant.

The stated changes represent the Management's assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period unfil the end of next annual reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between HK$ and US$ would be materially unaffected
by any changes in movement in value of US$ against
HK$. Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the effects on each of
the group entities” profit or loss for the period and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting
period for presentation purposes. The analysis is performed

on the same basis for 31 March 2019.

BREDM AT BERMEE : Hb
EEXFHORBEHREL X
FERANSEREER: MEAGFEZDT
ERETESRITAZINERR K&
PrEREMEER (LERNX)GRE

14
\KO

PREHREREEBH T —FERE
HIRAT 2 B SMEE R AT gES 4 2
EEEFNFH-MEME EBR
BILRAETZBETEEERRETILETT
EBENEMNESHHIERIEATE-
ERAZINDMERRREBEEHE
ERESANREERGTEZHRRE
mhEm BT E (AR27 B WK
BEMRERNEZTBRERET)
RZE-NAF=A=+—B ZoH
TyiR AR BT -
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43. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL  43.
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2019 and
31 March 2019 may be categorised as follows:

RERESHNEREEREME

EHME

AEEBR-_ZE—NE+_A=+—B8B K=
E-NF=ZA=1+—"HHERZTRMEER
cRiBEZEmENSENT

At 31 December At 31 March
2019 2019
R-ZE—h&F RZE—hF
+=—A=+—H =A=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assefs at amortised cost BHENATTEC MEE
(including cash and cash (BERERREEED)
equivalents) 350,920 377,384
Financial assefs at FVTPL BEAFEFABEZ EHEE 138,581 228,022
489,501 605,406
Financial liabilities SRBE
Financial liabilities measured LB AFTEZ SRBE
at amortfised cost 264,676 296,088

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
carried af fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities:

level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
[i.e. derived from prices); and

level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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43. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 43, IRERIBI o e mEERSHRE
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY - Confinved BME =

Period from 1 April 2019 to
31 December 2019
R=-Z-NGFHA—BAZE
—E-hAF+ZA=t—HHEB

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
EF—& EZ& £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET THET
Financial assets at FVTPL WAEBEFABEY
PREE 138,581 - -
138,581 - _
Year ended 31 March 2019
HE-_Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
level 1 level 2 level 3
E—& B F=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT FHET FHET
Financial assets at FVTPL WATEEABRY
TREE 228,022 S -
228,022 = -
There were no transfers between levels during the current period RABRNMEBEFE SERAZEHREE
and prior year. B o
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—E-AFT=A=t-8

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Effect assessment of the Novel Coronavirus disease
outbreak

Since the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) disease
in China, ongoing prevention and confrol measures have been
carried out throughout the whole world. The epidemic will
impact the overall economy as well as the Group, especially
on the business operations of the Chinese health products
segment and the demand of OBM toys from North America and
Europe. Therefore, the Group's operations and revenue may be
negafively affected to a cerfain extent depending on the effects
of the prevention and control measures, duration of the outbreak
and implementation of various policies.

The Company will closely monitor the situation, and assess its
impacts on the Group's financial position and operating results.
As of the date of this report, such assessment is sfill ongoing.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Direcfors on 20 March 2020.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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BEBERER
HEBRBESKRFERNZETMGE

B R AR P B T e A P B R B DA R B4R
THEFREEZRBENET RBELHE
BREBARAEE (LERPERERD
BrEB 2 E A RIS R BN B A m e
EMABR)ERTE KMAEE TR
B EHAREBOKENMBAKFEXRER
T8 FERERRARGIEREREOMR &R
BRHEREALSERAZRROERE-

RABHEET I ABIEN WA EE
HAKB U BRARARBEXEONTE B
EARERY ZAETERAEETED -
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EEoltERIRENE-



CHINA HEALTHWISE HOLDINGS LIMITE
TEEREEZRERA A

Unit 1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
BB THEF168-2005 5= O FE1209=
Tel: (852) 2268 8248  Fax: (852) 2548 5575



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Corporate Structure
	Chairman’s Statement
	Review of Operations
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Back Cover



